AGENDA
CITY OF KENTWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION
TUESDAY, OCTOBER 24, 2023
KENTWOOD COMMISSION CHAMBERS
4900 BRETON AVENUE, SE
7:00 P.M.

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance (Dan Holtrop)

Roll Call

Declaration of Conflict of Interest

Approval of the Minutes of October 10, 2023 and Findings of Fact for: Case#17-23 —
Bosgraff Walma 44" - Change in the Master Planned Land Use Designation from Low
Density Residential to Medium Density Residential located at 2802 — 44 Street -
Approval of the Agenda for October 24, 2023

Acknowledge visitors and those wishing to speak to non- agenda items.

Old Business

Case#24-23 — Hotel Conversion — Special Land Use and Site Plan Review to convert an
existing office Building into a Hotel Located at 2180-44" Street SE (Tabled from the
October 10 public hearing meeting)

Public Hearing

Case#26-23 — Biggby Coffee — Special Land Use and Site Plan Review for a Drive
Through Restaurant — Located at 2300 44" Street SE;

Case#27-23 — Kentwood Drive and Shine — Special Land Use and Site Plan Review for a
Vehicle Wash Establishment — Located at 3311 Woodland Drive SE

Work Session
Case# 28-23 - DAMA Ventures LLC — Special Land Use Indoor Vehicle Sales and Site
Plan Review — Located within Phase A of 3350 Broadmoor Avenue, zoned I-1 Light

Industrial

New Business

4900 BRETON AVENUE SE, PO BOX 8848, KENTWOOD, MICHIGAN 49518-8848 «+ PHONE (616) 698-9610

Equal Opportunity Employer, Drug-Free Workplace www.ci.kentwood.mi.us



Agenda - Planning Commission
October 24, 2023
Page 2
Set public hearing date of , for:

L. Other Business

1. Commissioners’ Comments
2. Staff’s Comments

M. Adjournment

*Public Hearing Format:
1. Staff Presentation — Introduction of project, Staff Report and Recommendation
Introduction of project representative
2. Project Presentation — By project representative
3. Open Public Hearing (please state name, address and speak at podium. Comments are limited to five
minutes per speaker; exceptions may be granted by the chair for representative speakers and
applicants.)
Close Public Hearing
Commission Discussion — Requests for clarification to project representative, public or staff
Commission decision — Options
postpone decision — table to date certain
reject proposal
accept proposal
accept proposal with conditions.

po o AL



PROPOSED MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING
OF THE KENTWOOD PLANNING COMMISSION
OCTOBER 10, 2023, 7:00 P.M.
COMMISSION CHAMBERS

Chair Jones called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m.
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner Holtrop.

Roll Call:

Members Present: Dan Holtrop, Sandra Jones, Alex Porter, Ray Poyner, Darius Quinn,
Doug VanderMeer, Sarah Weir

Members Absent: Bill Benoit and Ed Kape (absent with notification)

Others Present: Community Development Director Terry Schweitzer, Economic
Development Planner Lisa Golder, Senior Planner Joe Pung, Planning Assistant Monique
Collier one citizen and the applicants.

Motion by Holtrop, supported by Poyner, to excuse Benoit and Kape from the
meeting.

- Motion Carried (7-0) —

- Benoit and Kape absent -
Declaration of Conflict of Interest

There was no conflict of interest statement expressed.
Approval of the Minutes and Findings of Fact

Motion by Commissioner Holtrop, supported by Commissioner Poyner, to approve
the Minutes of September 26, 2023 and the Findings of Fact for: Case#22-23 —
Storage Five Kentwood LLC — Rezoning of 8.2 acres of land from C-2 Commercial
to Conditional I-1 located at 1800-1900 44" Street SE; Case#23-23 -Body Shop Boss
— Special Land Use and Site Plan Review for a Major Vehicle Repair located at 3851
Model Ct. SE

- Motion Carried (7-0) —

- Benoit and Kape absent -
Approval of the Agenda

Motion by Commissioner Poyner, supported by Commissioner Quinn, to approve
the agenda for the October 10, 2023 meeting,.

- Motion Carried (7-0) —
- Benoit and Kape absent -

Acknowledge visitors wishing to speak to non-agenda items.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023

Page 2

H.

There was no public comment.
Old Business

There was no Old Business
Public Hearing

Casef17-23 — Bosgraff Walma 44™ - Change in the Master Planned Land Use

Designation from Low Density Residential to Medium Density Residential located at
2802 — 44" Street

Golder stated the request is for a 4.72 acre parcel of land at the southeast corner of
Walma and 44" Street. She stated it was zoned office and master planned for office up
until 2021 at which time staff received a request to go to low density residential. Golder
stated the commissioners approved the amendment to the Master Plan and then the
developer withdrew the application. She stated now Bosgraff is interested in changing
the Master Plan again to medium density residential from the low density residential.

Golder stated what they intend to build is attached condominiums and they have said that
they would be willing to do it within a PUD.Golder stated when the applicant went before
the LUZ Committee, the committee wanted to make sure they are condominiums and not
rental units, medium density 4-8 units per acre. The committee members were more
comfortable with closer to 6 units per acre but could possibly go higher depending on
what design they come up with within the PUD. She stated the PUD will allow some
control for the City.

Golder stated there was concern about having an adequate buffer on 44™ Street and the
appearance of the buildings along 44th Street. She stated there is also concern about
having sidewalk leading out to the public street as well as sidewalk internal to the
community and visitor parking.

Golder stated that the staff recommendation is for conditional approval for the change to
the Master Planned designation with two conditions. 1. The site would have to be
developed as a residential PUD and 2. The residences would be limited to 2 stories or 25
feet in height. The basis for that is staff feels that the development to medium density
could be accomplished in a way that is compatible with the existing residential units. The
residential units to the south and to the east are low density. There is no road that goes
through; therefore, it is not going to increase traffic for those units but feel like they can
provide adequate separation to those uses.

Golder stated with the development of the PUD the property would require approval of
the site plan the building elevations and landscaping plans. That will allow the Planning
Commission



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023

Page 3

and the City the ability to see whether the density proposed is adequate and whether there
is enough separation between it and the existing units. If there is too much traffic or too
much density the Planning Commissioners can make that determination as to whether or
not that site plan suits what they are expecting. She stated at the same time it will allow

the developer flexibility to try to cluster the housing to preserve open space and provide
screening.

The applicant has indicated his intent to develop units that are owned and that can be a
condition of approval with the PUD.

Golder stated the City Commission would like to see this Master Plan change proposed
again after the Planning Commission.

Mike Corby, with Integrated Architecture, 840 Ottawa Grand Rapids, MI was present.
Corby discussed the point of access and egress that they are proposing even though they
don’t have a detailed design yet. He stated they did engage with Amy Gecario from Wade
Trim to confirm or at least identify where the safe ingress and egress point would be on
44 Street. He stated that any kind of access off Walma would not be safe mostly because
of the proximity to the intersection. He stated Amy suggested putting it about 300 feet
from the intersection and that would allow about 300 foot distance between that point and
the cross over to westbound.

Jones opened the public hearing.
There was no public comment.
Motion by Poyner, supported by Quinn, to close the public hearing.

- Motion Carried (7-0) —
- Benoit and Kape absent -

VanderMeer questioned if we have the legal ability regarding ownership if he were to
purchase a condo and then rent it out to someone else. Golder stated any individual that
purchases could rent it out, but what we don’t want is someone buying a group of condos
and rent them all out. She stated that will be a condition of approval and we will put that -
in the condominium-documents as well.

Poyner wanted to make sure the commissioners will see the landscaping plan and

building elevations. Golder stated they will see all of that.

Porter questioned whether the ingress can have a slow down lane. Corby stated that
would be something that they would address however, because of the low volume of the
peak hour traffic that would indicate that it is not required.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023

Page 4

Motion by Poyner, supported by Quinn, to recommend to the City Commission
conditional approval of the request to amend the Master Plan Designation for 4.72
acres of land located at 2802 — 44t Street from Low Density Residential to Medium
Density Residential as described in Case No. 17-23. Approval is conditioned on
conditions 1-2 and basis points 1-6 as described in Golder’s memo dated October 2,
2023,

- Motion Carried (7-0) —

- Benoit and Kape absent -

Case#24-23 — Hotel Conversion — Special Land Use and Site Plan Review to convert an
existing office Building into a Hotel Located at 2180-44™ Street SE (Recommendation
to Table Action to October 24)

Jones opened the public hearing.
There was no public comment.

Motion by Holtrop, supported by Quinn, to table Case#24-23 Hotel Conversion to
October 24, 2023.

- Motion Carried (7-0) —

- Benoit and Kape absent -
Work Session

Case#25-23 — Master Plan Amendment 52" and Broadmoor Ave — Change in the Master
Planned Land Use Designation from Industrial to Commercial located at the northeast
corner of 52" Street and Broadmoor Avenue

Schweitzer introduced the request. He stated the request is to change the Master Plan
designation from industrial to commercial in the northeast quadrant of 52™ Street and
Broadmoor Ave.

Schweitzer stated the applicant submitted a one page narrative and conceptual site plan
and conceptual interior floor plans for a pickleball and wiffeball restaurant and interior
and exterior recreational sports courts. He stated the restaurant use is allowed by special
land use and site plan review under the existing zoning, however the recreational sports
are not allowed under the industrial zoning.

Schweitzer stated Broadmoor Avenue is a state trunkline, M-37, and across the frontage
of the site it is a four-lane boulevard within a 205-foot-wide public right-of-way. The
52nd Street frontage is a five-lane arterial roadway within an 83-100-foot-wide public
right-of-way. No direct left turns are allowed at the intersection as well as along the
Broadmoor frontage. Schweitzer stated the main thing with a State trunk line route is to
move traffic through safely and efficiently.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023

Page 5

Schweitzer stated the northwest quadrant is master planned and zoned and developed as
commercial. He stated as you look at the SE quadrant it is developed as industrial with
similar constraints with the adjacent rail spur and proximity to a major intersection. This
provides evidence that it is feasible along the Broadmoor frontage and comparable to the
SE quadrant to have industrial there.

Schweitzer stated it is predominantly master planned for industrial in that area with the
exception of the NW corner. Schweitzer displayed the general layout shown as a concept

of how they would develop the property if the master designation was changed and there
was a subsequent rezoning.

Schwitzer displayed a layout of a plan that was submitted earlier this year involving a
concept that was being considered by a developer. They wanted to show for their own
benefit as well as perspective tenants that it would be feasible to develop this for an
industrial use. Very comparable to the development pattern on the SE quadrant with

parking in the front, buildings to the western portion of the property, then having loading
and circulation parallel to the railroad spur.

Schweitzer stated in both cases the concept plan does not include the two corner
properties. There was a request in January 2022 from Kum and Go for a master plan
change from industrial to commercial for the two corner properties. He stated we took it
to the East Beltline Advisory Board and within about 10 days Kum & Go withdrew their
application. He stated there has been previous interest. Schweitzer stated for those two
particular properties it would be reasonable to tie those together. The main thing is for
safe access onto the streets. If it is left up to the configuration of the two lots where it is
right now, it would not meet MDOT’s standards as far as access for them to access onto
Broadmoor Avenue and 52™ Street. If you are going to have access further onto 52
Street that is going to be further to the east closer to the railroad spur where that crosses.

Schweitzer stated the commissioners have a summary of the discussion with the LUZ
Committee and Master Plan Committee and a lot of that conversation involved the
primary staff/commissioners concern relating to the availability of land suitably zoned to
support industrial development in Kentwood and the greater Grand Rapids area. A recent
Crains Grand Rapids Business article dated August 8, 2023, highlighted the scarcity of
available industrial real estate in the West Michigan area. Schweitzer stated we reached
out to Tim Mroz, the Senior Vice President of Community Development with The Right
Place for his perspective on the availability of industrial properties. He provided us a
report describing the industrial vacancy rates in the southeast portion of the Grand Rapids
Metro area through the second quarter of 2023 from the viewpoint of JLL and NAI
Wisinski of West Michigan. Mroz also provided the 2023 The Right Place Development
Report which described their pursuit of build-ready industrial sites.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023

Page 6

The current amount of industrially zoned land in Kentwood is approximately 2,760 acres
and it is a major component of the city’s tax base. He stated working with the City
Assessor’s Office we have identified the subject site as well as 6 others that appear to be
vacant and available for industrial development according to the Commercial Alliance of
Realtors website. However, these sites only range from 1-10 acres in size.

Schweizer stated we will have a public meeting on November 14 for this Master plan
change request from the applicant.

Andy Anderson was present. He stated he would like that Master Plan to be changed
from industrial to commercial so he can build a pickleball and wiffleball restaurant. He
stated within the restaurant they will have 6 indoor pickleball courts, 4 outdoor courts and
an indoor whiffleball field. He stated pickleball is the fastest growing sport in Ametica
and this will be the first one in the State of Michigan. He stated the land has been vacant
for 40 years. The last survey of it was 1989. He stated it has been up for sale around 10
years. He stated he is here to develop the land and add some tax revenue to the City of
Kentwood. He stated with pickleball there can be noise complaints if it is in a residential
area, this is not near residential , there will be no noise complaints and 6 of the 10 courts
will be indoors.

Anderson stated he chose this area because this will provide a restaurant not only to the
residents but also to the workers, so they won’t have to take an hour to get to lunch on
28%Mstreet. He stated additionally people going to the airport getting off of M6 from
Lansing or Holland, it will provide an additional place for them to grab a meal other than
the Arby’s and Burger King that is also on Broadmoor.

Anderson stated looking through Kentwood’s documents there has been strong interest in
adding pickle ball courts. He felt that what he is proposing will compliment the pickleball
courts that are being added to Covenant Park.

Anderson stated he has been to LUZ and there were some concerns. He stated the
CRAINS article said the SE portion of Grand Rapids has about 5% availability for
industrial land. He stated he had his realtor do a search and he found 22 sites that are
currently for sale for lease, that includes 180,000 square feet of building space and 14
acres of land that are available for industrial right now. There are also 75 acres in
Wyoming, 237 acres in Lowell and 16 acres in Caledonia surrounding Kentwood. He
stated the acres he would like to convert to commercial will not impact the overall
potential for industrial.

Anderson stated another concern was that this will not be industrial wages, it will be
restaurant wages. He stated he will employee approximately 30 employees, however the
business will drive economic growth. He stated pickleball tournaments draw people from
all around.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023

Page 7

Anderson stated another concern is that the City Commission won’t approve due to the
past decline of the indoor soccer facility. He stated he spoke to a couple of City

Commissioners and they are in favor of his project and 2 of them voted against the indoor
soccer field but they are in favor of this.

Anderson stated another concern was whether this will compete with Covenant Park
pickleball courts. He stated this will compliment them. The public courts are open to the
public, his restaurant will also be open to the public, but you have to pay to play on a
court. When Covenant Park closes for the winter, they can come to his place and play
inside, also when it is too dark to play, snowing or raining they can come to his place and
play. He stated this will be year-round.

Porter stated there are a few restaurants in the area, he can see the benefit, however on the
other hand he sees the point about industrial space and where we can grow industrial
businesses. He stated he is curious about the tax base, questioning which gets more tax
revenue commercial or industrial and if we expect to see a big difference. Schweitzer
stated he would check with the City Assessor. Porter questioned if the railroad spur is
active. Schweitzer stated it has been inactive for many years, still owned by the State.

Porter questioned the industrial concept plan. He noticed in the study it was about 5
dollars a square foot for industrial. He questioned whether we know what the net cost
would have been for them with what they had to do to put it in here and would it have
met the 5 dollar per square foot or was it working out higher or was there a cost factor.
Schweitzer stated he doesn’t know that detail but we can check with the source that
shared that with us. Porter stated this would be an important factor for him for a change
in the Master Plan land use designation.

Porter questioned if the two properties at the corner were rezoned, if the access to those
would be through the proposed property. Schweitzer stated in the best case it would be. It
would be a matter of property rights that come into play, but in terms of optimum design
and also the unlikelihood of MDOT relaxing its standards to allow for separate access for
one or both of those corner properties. Schweitzer stated that is why the Advisory Board
gets together to get a broader perspective for an issue like this. Anderson stated as part of
the plan they would share access together. That would be his ideal situation. Porter stated
the easement is critical for the efficient use of all of this. Discussion ensued.

Holtrop questioned if this property has always been planned industrial. Schweitzer stated
since about 1980 when public water and sewer was extended out to that area. Holtrop
stated this has been industrial for 40 years and nobody has moved on it therefore he is ok
with the change.

Holtrop stated another concern is the two corner lots the owner is holding it as industrial.
He wondered if that owner had been notified about the request. Schweitzer stated because



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023

Page 8

of the November 14 public meeting date we have not yet sent out that notice, however a
notice of intent was sent out in late September to the adjoining land owners.

Holtrop stated we are looking at articles about lack of industrial but our presentation
states there is 2,700 acres of industrial and 6 that are still vacant and those 6 range from
1-10 acres. He stated at the highest point we would have 60 acres of industrial land left in
Kentwood. Holtrop stated he is ok with changing the Master Plan.

Holtrop stated we have discussed the noise with pickleball next to residential, however
how would that apply to having a restaurant in close proximity to pickleball courts.
Anderson stated they tvs will be loud they won’t even realize that it is happening. The
inside will have some glass walls so they can still see but also not be as distracted.

Poyner questioned if the outdoor pickleball courts would be far enough away from M37
that they are not going to get noise from all the vehicles that are going down M37. He
stated that is going to disturb those playing pickleball. Anderson stated he doesn’t think
the noise from the traffic will irritate them.

Poyner stated he is also curious to know about the tax revenue. He stated he doesn’t
believe that you can look at something and say that because it has been vacant for years
that it would likely stay vacant going in the future. He would argue that we have had a lot
of development recently at that intersection and if there is a demand for industrial that
something may come in for industrial. Poyner questioned if he has looked at any other
commercial properties in the City of Kentwood. Anderson stated he has done a very
exhausting 3 month effort looking at all potential locations. Anderson stated however,
you have to look at the size, he needs about 4 acres, and the cost, and is the location a
good location. Discussion ensued. Poyner stated that he agrees that if we are going to
change to commercial the other two adjacent lots on the corner sound also be considered
as commercial as well.

VanderMeer stated he doesn’t have a concern about the noise at this location.
VanderMeer stated the buildings that are now on the southeast corner have gone up in the
last 5 years. He stated that this property has been for sale for 10 years, why didn’t they
buy the northeast property when they had a chance.

VanderMeer questioned if the applicant has been talking to MDOT about access off of
Broadmoor. Anderson stated he was waiting for the planning stages. Anderson stated
whatever it is they will do whatever MDOT tells them to. Schweitzer stated we sent this
request to the Advisory Committee and Anderson will be a part of the discussion at the
October 19 meeting.

Quinn stated he is in support of zoning. He stated there has been discussion regarding the
2,700 acres, 6 vacant lots, and he doesn’t see very much demand. He stated why let a



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023

Page 9

property sit for many years. Quinn stated that parking would be his only concern.
Anderson stated once we get into the actual details with this building, he feels that there
will be adequate parking

Jones questioned what kind of screening will there be. Anderson stated he is hoping to
work with staff on the appropriate screening.

Case#26-23 — Biggby Coffee — Special Land Use and Site Plan Review for a Drive
Through Restaurant — Located at 2300 44™ Street SE;

Golder stated the applicant is proposing a drive-thru only Biggby Coffee facility located
on a currently vacant property at 2300 44" Street. She stated it is zoned commercial the
proposed use is an 800 square foot coffee shop. There is no indoor seating, only the drive
through and then there is a walk up window out in the front.

Golder stated it is a narrow lot 85 feet wide. There are wetlands to the south and to the
west and that makes it impossible to get that rear exit that we might have thought we
could get over to Countrywood.

Golder stated if you want to get into the property you would access from the adjacent
property to the east there would be a direct turn into the property and then an easement
that would allow you to go to get to the proposed Biggby. When you exit, you would
have to turn right, go through the intersection and then come all the way back if you want
to go back to the west. It is more difficult to get out to go westbound.

Golder stated this is a special land use therefore we use the general and specific
standards. She stated there are no problems with the general standards. She stated with
the specific standards there is a reference to if you are adjacent to office or commetcial to
try to make a connection to the adjacent property. She stated maybe there is a possibility
to connect over to the office building adjacent, but that turn would be difficult. She stated
the lane is narrow and it is a one way, 15 feet from curb to curb, it is very narrow to make
that turn. She stated it might be difficult, and if you did get out there it is only 180 feet
from the driveway to get to the indirect left. She stated she will look into that to see if
there is any benefit to have any type of easement the west so that if something would
happen in the future, we know where we can make a connection and make it safely.

Golder stated there is plenty of stacking area. She stated with the walk up she thought
that it might be a good idea to have a crossing for that driveway so people know that
there might be pedestrians there. The lanes meet our minimum and there is room for
bypass, but the two landscape islands do not meet our standards. She stated we would
also need more information on site lighting.

Mark Bailey with Feenstra & Associates was present. He stated the easement Golder was
referring to they still do not have all the title work for the property they are trying to find



Proposed Minutes

Planning Commission

October 10, 2023

Page 10
out if one exists already, they should have that soon. He stated they moved the building
over because of the landscaping. It was very tight to put anything in so it made it much
easier to put landscaping in with the wetlands they are trying to minimize the area that
they are going to impact, so by sliding everything over it doesn’t help a whole lot, but it
does decrease that some. He said they put stripes across the road for the walk crossing.
He stated they are currently working with EGLE on mitigation and the wetlands. He
stated as far as the site lighting they are working with a commercial lighting company
that is supposed to be providing that for them, they have not yet.

Garner Tyson with Biggby coffee was also present.

Holtrop questioned the landscaping on the east side of the parcel. Bailey stated they put
about 7 deciduous trees on each side and about 25 shrub or dwarf type ornamental trees.
Holtrop stated he thought it was strange that only one parcel is going to have landscaping.

Holtrop questioned their parking for the staff. Golder stated there are 8 spaces and that is
more than they need for employees, it is only an 800 square foot building. She stated
because it is tight, they might be able to remove some spaces and it might be a help with
maneuverability because backing out is going to be tight.

Jones questioned why drive-thru only. Tyson stated they have done a lot of Biggby’s and
through covid they found that the lobbies aren’t being used as much, not only can they
staff less it is more economical.

The commissioners were ok with the request.

Case#27-23 — Kentwood Drive and Shine — Special Land Use and Site Plan Review for a
Vehicle Wash Establishment — Located at 3311 Woodland Drive SE

Pung stated the request is a special land use and site plan review for a vehicle wash
facility and with it they are also proposing a accessory oil change and quick lube.

Pung stated this is a 4 ¥ acre site located on the north side of Woodland Dr. west of the
East Beltline. The site is currently an overflow parking lot for the office building to the
north which the applicant also owns.

Pung stated there is currently a drive that only provides access to Anna’s House which is
on the adjacent property to the east. He stated with this proposal would also serve as the
main access to this site. The existing drive connection to the north goes into the other
‘parking lot that will be an egress only for bypass traffic. It will also serve as an egress
only for bypass traffic.

Pung stated the building would be a 23,400 square foot building with an oil change
facility, interior carwash, interior self-vacuum, and interior vacuum and cleaning that will
be done by staff and then there will also be some exterior vacuums. He stated they are



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023
Page 11

also proposing future vacuums that will be closer to the residential so there may be some
concerns with noise and screening.

Pung stated this site was conditionally rezoned to C2 community commercial in
December of last year. One of the conditions of approval was that the use was restricted
to the carwash and the accessory oil change only. As long as it is zoned C2 this is the
only use that can be there, and the oil change can only be associated with the carwash.

Pung stated they also went to the Zoning Board of Appeals for several variances One
was for a reduction to the rear yard setback. They were granted a variance of 28 feet to
the rearyard setback. They were also granted a reduction of 17 feet to the adjacent
residential to the northwest. They were also granted a waiver to the 10-foot buffer zone
requirement along the property line, but one of the conditions of approval was that, they
would be putting in a permanent landscape easement that would act as that buffer but it
will be on the adjacent property to the north.

Pung stated the applicant provided an operational description and indicated that the
number of employees would be 6, but staff would like that to be clarified that they only
intend to have 6 employees and that will be adequate to manage the services that they
provide. Staff is also looking at them to add into the operations statement of how the
wastewater is going to be treated. Pung stated staff would also like some additional detail

of how long it takes to provide each service so staff can see how long the stacking might
be.

Pung stated it is currently located on 3 separate parcels. Those parcels will have to be
combined as part of this project. As noted, they want future outside vacuums on the
westside of the building. Those would be closer to the apartments and residential to the
northwest and they would not be screened by the building. Pung stated staff wants to
make sure there isn’t any noise issue. He stated regarding the noise the applicant has
indicated that they have done studies showing how the noise is not going to be an issue.
Staff is looking for them to provide that information and the studies of what the noise
levels are going to be at that property line.

Pung stated we are looking at having the permanent landscape easement and also
providing a permanent egress to the East Beltline over to the adjacent property to the
north. We have to make sure if the property to the north is ever sold that egress is
maintained and they are able to get off the site for the bypass. He stated staff is also
looking at the bypass. If there is more than one vehicle the bypass could be blocked, we
will need to know how busy the use is and how often it will get blocked or is there a way
to create a different bypass so people aren’t waiting in line for the oil change and they are
not blocking the egress from someone trying to get out of the carwash.

Carolyn Kurtz, from AR Engineering was present. She stated they met with staff and the
traffic engineer and a representative from the Fire Department to discuss any potential
issues. In concerns of the vacuum noises, she read documents from the manufacturers



Proposed Minutes

Planning Commission

October 10, 2023

Page 12
giving their statement on the noise levels and a statement from the owners. They do not
see a potential issue with the noise generated from the vacuums. Even with the future
vacuums shown, they are over 120 feet from the residential, twice the distance that the
owner states and there is some tree screening.

Porter questioned if the building will be one or two stories and a lot of glass. Kurtz stated
it is one story and the vacuum enclosure is all glass.

Holtrop stated he thinks if they can move the bypass lane further west, that would address
the oil change back up potential. He stated he isn’t sure of the reasoning of needing the
reserved area for future vacuums, he is not a huge fan of putting the vacuums to the west.
Kurtz stated the owners want them: there in case demand is high for them and the actual
vacuum is in an enclosure.

Poyner questioned if they have a specific plans as far as noise. Kurtz stated there is quite
a bit of existing landscaping and they do have some proposed landscaping. She stated as
mentioned they are over 100 feet from that residential property and according to the
manufacturer the vacuums are 60 decibels at the actual enclosure therefore 100 feet it
wouldn’t provide much noise at all if any.

VanderMeer gave examples of other businesses that are 100 feet within a carwash with
vacuums. He stated that you don’t hear the noise. He stated he was more concerned about
the only 6 employees, but the owner understands what it takes to run a business.

K. New Business

Motion by Holtrop, supported by Quinn, to set public hearing date of November 14,
2023, for: Case# 28-23 - DAMA Ventures LLC — Special Land Use Indoor Vehicle
Sales and Site Plan Review — Located within Phase A of 3350 Broadmoor Avenue, zoned
I-1 Light Industrial
- Motion Carried (7-0) —
- Benoit and Kape absent -
L. Other Business

1. Commissioners’ Comments

Commissioners offered no comments.

2. Staff’s Comments

Schweitzer stated Tuesday October 17 at the City Commission Committee of the Whole
meeting at 5:30pm there will be a presentation on the transit master plan and invited the

commissioners to attend. Golder stated at the same meeting staff if also presenting the
housing recommendations to the City Commission.



Proposed Minutes
Planning Commission
October 10, 2023
Page 13

Golder stated Storage 5 has retained legal counsel and they tabled their City
Commissioner conditional rezoning request. She believes they might try to amend the
conditions and bring it back to the Planning Commission.

M. Adjournment

Motion by Commissioner Weir, supported by Commissioner Porter, to adjourn the
meeting.

- Motion Carried (7-0) —

- Benoit and Kape absent

Meeting adjourned at 8:55pm.

Respectfully submitted,

Ed Kape, Secretary



CITY OF KENTWOOD

PLANNING COMMISSION
PROPOSED
FINDINGS OF FACT
OCTOBER 24,2023

Golder 10/2/23
PROJECT: Bosgraaf Homes LL.C
APPLICATION: 17-23
REQUEST: Change of Master Plan designation from Low Density

Residential to Medium Density Residential
LOCATION: 2802 44th Street SE
HEARING DATE: October 10, 2023

MOTION: Motion by Poyner, supported by Quinn, to recommend to the City
Commission conditional approval of the request to amend the Master Plan
Designation for 4.72 acres of land located at 2802 — 44™ Street from Low Density

- Residential to Medium Density Residential as described in Case No. 17-23. Approval is
conditioned on conditions 1-2 and basis points 1-6 as described in Golder’s memo

dated October 2, 2023.
- Motion Carried (7-0) —
- Benoit and Kape absent
CONDITION:
1. The site shall be developed as a Residential Planned Unit
Development.

2. The proposed residences shall be limited to two stories or 25 feet in
height.

BASIS:

1. Redevelopment of the site from Low Density Residential to Medium
Density Residential can be accomplished in a way that is compatible with
the surrounding residential uses.

The areas adjacent to the subject property are low density
residential homes. The proposed development can provide
adequate separation from the adjacent uses. Further, any
proposed structures on the site would be limited to 2 stories in
height, consistent with homes located on adjacent properties.

4900 BRETON AVENUE SE, PO BOX 8848, KENTWOOD, MICHIGAN 49518-8848 - PHONE (616) 698-9610

Equal Opportunity Employer, Drug-Free Workplace www.ci.kentwood.mi.us



2. When developed as a PUD, property will require approval of a site plan,
building elevations, and landscape plans at the time of the rezoning.

In preparing the Master Plan amendment the applicant has provided
examples of housing development that may be proposed for the site.
Some concern was expressed that the amendment of the Master Plan to
Medium Density Residential would allow the maximum density of up to
8 units per acre. The requirement to develop the site as a PUD offers
the city flexibility in determining whether the density proposed is
appropriate for the location. At the same time, the PUD will allow the
developer the flexibility to cluster the housing in a way that preserves
open space and provides screening to the adjacent homes.

3. The applicant has indicated his intent to develop the site for housing units that
are owned rather than rented.

The PUD zoning will allow the city to incorporate this intention into
the PUD Statement, which will become a condition of the rezoning
approval.

4. The City will have the ability to review the plan and to determine if the proposed
site plan, density, open space, access, and amenities offered are adequate.

Review and consideration of the site plan submitted for PUD approval
may require amendments to the plan; including, but not limited to, a
reduction in density, a reduction in building height, an increase of open
space and amenities, or a traffic analysis to determine whether ingress
and egress to the site and provide safe access to the development..

5. The 4.72-acre site includes wetlands on the south side of the site and
660 feet of frontage along 44th Street, an arterial street with a vehicle count of

more than 36,000 vehicles per day. Low density residential use may be difficult
to build given the limitations of the site.

6. Discussion at the Master Plan Committee, Land Use and Zoning
Committee, work session, public meeting and public hearing.



PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Golder

PROJECT: 2180 44" Street hotel

APPLICATION: 24-23

REQUEST: Special Land Use for a 24-room hotel

LOCATION: 2180 44" Street SE

HEARING DATE: 10/24/23

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommend Conditional Approval of the request for
Special Land Use approval of a 24-room hotel as described
in Case No. 24-23. Approval is conditioned on the
following:

CONDITIONS:

1.

Compliance with the Applicant’s Statement of Operation dated
October 19, 2023.

Applicant to record a restrictive covenant, with language reviewed and
approved by the city attorney, that the property cannot be used for
“residential rental” purposes and that no landlord tenant relationship
can be formed with any hotel guests.

. The Applicant shall establish a guest policy or guest agreement that

must be given to guests or posted in a prominent location that states,
“Every Guest acknowledges that he or she is not a tenant but a licensee
on a day-to-day basis, and that Guest has no property or possessory
interest in the room being rented to Guest. The hotel may ask the
Guest to leave the premises at any time.”

Staff approval of a landscaping and lighting plan. The landscaping
plan shall include detailed information on the type, size and quantity of
proposed landscaping and details regarding the fence along the south
property line. The lighting plan must meet the standards of Chapter 20
of the Kentwood Zoning Ordinance and must minimize any adverse
impact on adjacent properties and maximize security enhancements.



BASIS:

The lighting plan will be subject to the review of the Kentwood Police
Department.

. Applicant shall provide operational security cameras within and

outside of the hotel (including the parking lot) to ensure the safety of
guests. The security camera system proposed shall be subject to the
review of the Kentwood Police Department.

. Relocation of the current driveway to align with the drive aisle nearest

to the hotel. The other existing driveway serving the property shall be
closed.

. The one-way drive aisles on the east of west sides of the parking area

shall be two-way drives of at least 24° of width.

. The applicant’s Statement of Operations includes rental policies,

improvements, employees, and amenities that will ensure that the
operation will be harmonious with the character of the area. The
Statement of Operations also includes a representation to the City of
the durational limit that will apply to all customers and guests to
ensure that the hotel does not become a long-term rental property.

. Michigan law does not have clear rules that distinguish hotel guests

from tenants. If a guest becomes a tenant, there are specific tenant
rights and landlord obligations that come into play and the nature of
the use will have been changed. The requirement for restrictive
covenants would prohibit the property from becoming a residential
rental property (multifamily development) which is not permitted in
the C-4 District.

. The addition of security cameras for the hotel will ensure the safety of

guests in the common areas of the hotel and in the outdoor perimeter
of the property.

. The property is zoned for Office use, which allows for hotels with

Special Land Use approval. A total of 24 rooms are proposed. The use
will not generate significant amounts of traffic and will be screened
from view of the neighboring properties. Landscaping and fencing
have been proposed along the south lot line to screen the residence to
the south.

. A hotel generates relatively little traffic when compared to other

commercial/office uses that are permitted by right in the C-4 Office
District.



6. Discussion at the work session and public hearing.



LOOY

YON L3FHS

e
HOILdNDSI0 | 3iva | oN|
SNOISIATY

\

N
ol
(4

8066Y I "GOOMLNE
IS IS HIbY 0812

NOILYVAONZY / NOISHIANO
J3LOH 3NDILNOY LS H1Y

ROTHINVENTUVAMM
5t09-899-L15
pzEgr 1N 'LUMIG
uG NDSIBHIH I €16

FUNLIALHIAY
SNIAUWY

“SININIACHARE
FUTNCILINHASNGD GISO0Hd ATWNOD OL GIANIAN
ATNO S1NYd 1ML “GaIHVONNOS ALNIS0Hd HO ENOLYDOT

3TOLLON S1GNY AZAMNG TVIDI4:0 NV LON §I NV SIHL T
* RUEDVAI VI TIAVIVAY ONY
$OHCOTY ALE3AOU ALNRGS AN NG GASVE NYTd SIHL L

IONTWE3NaS

BAN
dVIN ALINIDIA

10/0 NOA BHOTE

ERVARN

1340 ONDRIOM € SUH 2L TIv3 @

Y ANOZ

NYid 208 )

0IO-ZLTHEBL-LY

save A(m
“UN 78 NCD “dAL"avaNNS
PAZHNZOIONS HEVAL 30NV 3431 SNIND
NG TIVL 9 VN 0OMTIVEIMIN FXNVAL004TT
%861
i =
o T S U- ro)
0 o> ° (¢} ) =
2 4 0 0P NI 1 O 3
4 B Y -
A Y
— e — - —— d\].]«l..._
ey ~
" fvsor o !
(375 azonaTu L o e |
yawy nz.xsi S1KDA1 A3 GURTIO
:s:? ?5 2401ND TINIAMEN |
W
ol
3
@ . )l
ONEWAY A ofpwe
¥ 13NOZ LN >
“gAL SNIGRILS CHOZTITBEGI-LY ONDYVE s T
QN MR TEeEOY 1§ “dAL‘oNIdvosON ¢
- UILINEE TONVISH
et Er FAVISONVIROINH
[
20 ANOT ® -
$90-9TTRLGL-LY
RO }

., & / tazunouncoai

ISR NS

38 avel
QRNONIE 38
oL VWEOIS
“18IXF A0 NOILNOd

% 5 mumen'ivia
oY SV

: LWHeSY 2503

5331 LE0G

g

oNqIng
aavvi4 GooM 7
AMNOSWA ANOLS TN T
45 B4°CLLSPG

Sd315 1HVMITIS
ONGO 1SN

FH

[ NOIS GIINNDR
-150d 4503

ASHIYY

“157G 407963

TIACNIY 38 OL
FANC ONDD 4508

MIONT140 47

34 SEAUNG LHOIIH
“NiRt 21 JAL CNY
JTULNITHDHINS
Wi 2 ING B3UL

0 ANOZ
S00-0LZBTHL-IY

VIBY FdVISONVT
™ sEvuS L0

¥aune
29uMD ONCDM
[™— 30 SNoOMIN

YO QOOMIddY

TIAGARY T8 OL
|™~— 3G ONOO 180G

srIos
f——"2N02 2500

AONYNIGHD ¥3d
- SyiDviL3s GO

¥0 “ANCZ
FOO-O0LZ-GE-Bi-tY

e WO LS0E

Tvm
RUNEYRIENA

9NN DNOD 1STE

SN HO FAML NIINOUIAT UIFO0U %
HEN SNONCIDAC GISSICHd o
33M1 SHCATL30 QALOACHH [o]
wrwwoamiisa O

[ECR

FLYD ONY
%A (GOOM ANY2SIS3H-AVOIS YO AUNOSYH JLINONGD BALYECD3A
30330 NIN 9 K14 S3TIS TV NO GINITHOS 30 OL TUNOTIONT -
‘UNSOIDNI ONCAZE ‘NIN 5 ONIONIXE 35v8

BY15 ALFHINOD ‘SNITY NIm 9 M 325 NIW 22t 0 OL RUNSOTONT
"LOINISIQ TVLNTGISTH ANY HOYd "O2 » I5¥D.ON NiONY

FHNSOIONT 3601 SU3LEANNG -
TEMSODNT HovEL

3801 LHOI UNN3d 1¥KL STUNIDNULS

OLOAHOVLLY 36 10N T TONDINYd -

24 /6 ONYZ0 NIIML35 39 OL NOLLYNIR Tl ONDOiVd "ONYAMON JHOT
193410 il STALXIS 3407110 T3 28 OL SIHNLA INGM ONDV -

“LHOGH NI DY < 30 JON TIHS 35N 5O ADH150

L NHLM 51 1) 40 32UNOT ~
“A¥Q HOV3 SHAGH ONDIEYA T/VION NVHL HIHLG NO LHOM 4O INNOHY.
ET ANV TVINITISIY IN2DWTOY
noud 3oL -
GILVNIROTII 38 OL BIVAHNS

HOQNNOND 4¥24$') GF32)G OL 10N NGILYNINNTI ONIIKON ALRNDIS -
‘CEIVNIRATH 20 02 3VSHNS U0 GNNCYD LY ALIVNI
2401/
“ALMIJOHA TINOZ ¥IHIO ANY BOd 34 70 HO ALNZLONd WIINFOIST

i ALU34ONd ANY
‘5531 HOMOG JO S3dAL V1 NILVEODID
UIHI0 O S5A) HOMOD 40 SIUNLNS INTOSIONVINI BALLYEODID
14373 'G3LOTBIC AIOHVANMOG SINNLXIA G3TTIEHS 3B OL BNUKOM -

“EVINY J4VISONYY TIY LOL0N TIVHS BHNO QIS Y-
“SINANITA T ¥BH e

.\_.
"ONINFINIS ONY ONIdYISONY ALVNGIAY

3QINOYS O1 JAVASINCISSINNG ONINNVIE AU GININY3LIT 30 Avrt
Q2AMIEIN 30 OL GSGNTLNI DNINITUDS HO ONIVISINYI ONIEIT ~
ONTGVISGNYT VHINIO

*533ML TOTY 40 %07 OL dft HO4 TIIML NIIUOUZAT

49T 40 1HDIH 133H1S 21BN K3¥3 ONOTY 'Q03H LHENIING NN 03~
TV 10N} INF ALN3A0Hd INCHS ONGTY

‘GO 1730 NAZYD NiN 5 TSIV ¥OI TFSN THYA INDH IN3tm -
TTHERTIEG

INOZYISING NI INM ALHIIOU ONOTV O

03 L2IRISKT O 25N WINITISTY SNIOTOY 261 TALONTIION J3HM -
SIENURVINIIALGT CNNIAYSS

“1Z3MLE ¥ ONILNON: 3N 1O 3GI ¥ 40 L1 NIHLIM HO SYSUY GHYA
ANCY ‘TOZN NI TEOLLEIAS NIRY T

‘ONV3NT} 107 40 HLONT) JUNT ONILXA YIVHS INGZ ¥3441 “SNOZ

M344n8 ¥ 51 3NN AL2JONJ LSIMVAN MO 40,03 'SY NIW 30 TIVHS

RYSH 73015 '120USK

O3S ONDINV UM~

101 A35Y2dS10 30 01 ONIAYISONY] 10 ONDRSV

3 NHA
ML 4O MOIBLNI LY U31v20T 38 02 SH3NL VLY ENDINYE 40 NIt U3
“520dS 01 3d QO3 VALY QIAVISONV J5 001 NV T3u1 AdONYD INO~
ONITIT NIWH Gt "NiR 03 38 OL S30VeIS DNDINY GRIAOONN -
DAL AMING
G4 ACIA S HO D14V AVMAOML KO DAWA I 0 OL STISIY SSI0TV -
NIFt Q125 * NOISNING J0VS ONDItYd 003k -
(0350d0MHd 7'Q03Y SIIVS INDIHYS TMISTIINVEZ <
(STOVAS ONBINVA TY10L 0592 ¥0J ‘D3 SIVES TMISEI0Y

o ¥4
NnmngE SIS Sw 00H STOVIS ¥ = ZX SUNA KT <
AN V3 H3d 003U S3IVS DNDIYS 2
"SI/ QIMOTIV Sr -
TREIEH SRS

» 45005 TLIND QIS0OYA /NN '35 04T 36 OL SLIN LSAND 13LQATLON
IIETRR

Q350dONd SUNR 1S3N0 T
7 QIAKITIV SLINN IE3N0 L7 » 00P 145 U381 =S 0000 - LIS 56 L0005
1IN 15300 (T310K1Z10H] ¥ad YHv

10745 00p + 254 4O HAOWA 10T NI M ‘OD3Y YUY 101 Nit IS 0000+
VIHV IOT NR7 AOSHI0 IR

1STX3 35 €OL'B/ CIMOYIV 45 04T x S X LIS 45 40805 <
(vawY HOGT GNNGYD O 1) BOVHIAGD HOHIXYH %IT -
VIR 10T

“JSIXATO0 £ QOFM T WVDH~
1305 TIONIS) 1513 NINF L/ [TVLOL ST Q0IM 28 30IS -
“LSIXE¥E/ QO3 OF INDHI -

TROVALID

SOEVANYLS LNIRA0 13/aa 315

S3LYLST VA 010, 13 08 833 T 1001 05V 1 101
‘NOTLGSSIq WoaT

SeTTRHAY

FIE5Evd



LED pole kit with single 150 Watt LED light. 15-25 ft. pole options. Part #: PK150

Pole Specifications:
-Pole Material:
-11-gauge steel (15 & 20 ft. poles)

-7-gauge steel (25 ft. pole) 5
-Pole height: 15/20fpnd 25 ft. 20' POLE SPECIFIED
-Pole Shape: 4 in square FOR PROJECT -
-Pole Color: Bronze SEE SITE PLAN.
-Bolt Circle: 89"
-Anchor bolt size:
-3/4" X 17" X 3" (15 & 20 ft. poles)
-3/4" X 30" X 3" (25 ft. pole)

LED Specifications:
-Mounting Style: Direct Mount (Fixed-Not adjustable)
-Power: 150 Watt
-Voltage: Auto-Detect: 120 to 277 Volt
-Delivered Lumens: 18,000 lumens
-Amps: 1.25 (120 Volt) to 0.55 (277 Volt) Amps
-Material: Die-Cast Aluminum
-Rating: Wet location- Commercial Grade
-IP Rating: IP 65
-Color Temperature: 5000 K
-Warranty: 5 Years
-Operating Temperature:-40 to 130 F
-Lifespan: 50,000 hours
-Certification: UL listed
-Maximum Wind Rating:
-160 mph: 15 ft.
-150 mph: 20 ft.
-140 mph: 25 ft

EEEE EEER
SoScchiecsss
=EEE] =1=1
=1 86
===l =1=1=1=]
S889) EEER
SRR
sescilecscs

ShEljisnss

2112 [ff

Energy Light Inc. 800 E. Northwest Hwy. Palatine, IL 60074




UNIT 1A

ATil

ELEC.

UNIT 1C

Ad:l

[

UNIT 1D

PARTIAL FIRST FLOOR PLAN

44ih STREET APARTMENTS
CONYERSION/RENOYATION

2180 44TH STREET E
KENTWOOD, M. 49508



SX WIREY 9V

44th STREET APARTMENTES
CONVERSION/RENOYVATION

2180 44TH STREET SE
KENTWOOD, ™Mi. 49508

A%



SX Tvalay '8V

EET APARTMENTS

/ VI%

SION/RENOVATION



HOTEL OPERATING STATEMENT

2180 and 2186 44" Street SE /D RA E " \

Kentwood M1 49508

e 4SSN

Date: October 19, 2023

Hotel Operating Statement #1.2

This Hotel Operating Statement (“Statement”) executed on October 19, 2023 by Aura Boutique Hotel,
LLC (“Hotel”), a legal structure of the Hotel, with its principal place of business located at 2180 and 2186
44™ Street SE, Kentwood M1 49508 (the “Property”).

1. Purpose
This statement outlines the terms and conditions governing the operation of the Hotel and the

responsibilities of the parties involved, relative to development and use of the Property as a
hotel for land use and zoning purposes.

2. Maximum Stay Duration
It is agreed that no tenant or guest shall be allowed to stay at the hotel for a continuous period
exceeding three (3) months (90 days) within any six (6) month (180 day) period. Undersigned
affirms that the property will not be used for residential rental purposes and no landlord /tenant
relationship will be formed with any guest.

3. Reservations and Checl-in
Guests may make reservations through the Hotel’s reservation system or at the front desk. All
guests are required to have valid identification and complete the check-in process.

4. Room rates and Payment

Room rates and payment terms will be set by the Hotel and communicated to guests during the
reservation process or at the time of check-in. Rooms will be processed for single days only (e.g.,
not monthly).

5. Guest Conduct

All guests are expected to adhere to the Hotel’s rules and policies, which will include but are
limited to:

No excessive noise or disturbances.
No smoking in designated non-smoking rooms.
Compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.



10.

11.

12.

No illegal activities on the premises.

Maintenance and Repairs

The hotel will maintain the premises in a clean and safe condition. Guests are responsible for
reporting any damage or maintenance issues promptly. The Hotel will provide housekeeping
services.

Termination
The Hotel reserves the right to terminate a guest’s stay for violation of Hotel policies, illegal
activities, non-payment, or other reasonable causes as permitted by law.

Governing Law
This statement shall be governed by and constructed in accordance with the laws of the State of
Michigan.

Booking Restrictions
The Hotel will enforce a policy that mandates guests to engage with hotel staff for reservations
of consecutive nights, thereby preventing the option to book multiple nights online.

Regular Room Inspections:
The Hotel will conduct regular room inspections to ensure the guests are not turning hotel
rooms into long-term residences.

Periodic Rate Adjustments
The Hotel will regularly update the rates for extended stays to align with current market trends
and discourage prolonged occupancy at a fixed price.

Promotion Restrictions
Extended stays can be obtained through various promotional offers, discounts, or loyalty
programs available to individuals who can provide proof of employment from local businesses or

hospitals in the area.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Hotel Operating Statement as of the
Effective Date.

Aura Boutique Hotel LLC

By:

Vince Rostov

Date :




Golder 10/19/23

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

2180 44t Street hotel

PROJECT:

APPLICATION: 24-23

REQUEST: Site plan review of a 24-room hotel

LOCATION: 2180 44™ Street SE

HEARING DATE: 10/24/23

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommend Conditional Approval of the site plan dated
October 17, 2023 for a 24-room hotel as described in Case
No. 24-23. Approval is conditioned on the following:

CONDITIONS:

1.

Compliance with the Applicant’s Statement of Operation dated
October 19, 2023.

Staff approval of a landscaping and lighting plan. The landscaping
plan shall include detailed information on the type, size and quantity of
proposed landscaping and details regarding the fence along the south
property line. The lighting plan must meet the standards of Chapter 20
of the Kentwood Zoning Ordinance and must minimize any adverse
impact on adjacent properties and maximize security enhancements.
The lighting plan will be subject to the review of the Kentwood Police
Department.

. Applicant shall provide operational security cameras within and

outside of the hotel (including the parking lot) to ensure the safety of
guests. The security camera system proposed shall be subject to the
review of the Kentwood Police Department.

Relocation of the current driveway to align with the drive aisle nearest
to the hotel. The other existing driveway serving the property shall be
closed.

The one-way drive aisles on the east of west sides of the parking area
shall be two-way drives of at least 24’ of width.



BASIS:

. The applicant’s Statement of Operations includes rental policies,

improvements, employees, and amenities that will ensure that the
operation will be harmonious with the character of the area. The
Statement of Operations also includes a representation to the City of
the durational limit that will apply to all customers and guests to
ensure that the hotel does not become a long-term rental property.

. The addition of security cameras for the hotel will ensure the safety of

guests in the common areas of the hotel and in the outdoor perimeter
of the property.

. The property is zoned for Office use, which allows for hotels with

Special Land Use approval. A total of 24 rooms are proposed. The use
will not generate significant amounts of traffic and will be screened
from view of the neighboring properties. Landscaping and fencing
have been proposed along the south lot line to screen the residence to
the south.

. Approval of the Special Land Use for the proposed hotel.

. Discussion at the work session and public hearing.



Golder 10/17/23

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

PROJECT: Biggby Coffee Drive Through
APPLICATION: 26-23

REQUEST: Special Land Use for a Drive-Through Facility
LOCATION: 2300 44™ Street SE

HEARING DATE: October 24, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend conditional approval of the Biggby Coffee

CONDITIONS:
1.

BASIS:

Drive-Through facility as described in Case No. 26-23.
Approval is conditioned on the following:

Drive-through shall be operated in accordance with the Applicant’s
operations narrative dated October 5, 2023.

. Review and approval by the Kentwood City Engineer and compliance

with the Kentwood Fire Marshal’s memo dated October 2, 2023.
Applicant shall provide turning radius information to ensure that
service vehicles accessing the site can be accommodated.

. Approval of the proposed site wetland mitigation by the Michigan

Department of Environment, Great Lakes and Energy (EGLE).

. Applicant shall provide a copy of the recorded cross access easement

with the property to the east.

Staff approval of final landscaping and lighting plan for the site.



. The final landscaping must be reviewed to ensure that it meets the
requirements of Chapter 19 of the Zoning Ordinance and provides
adequate visibility from the public street. The plan must also be
reviewed from a safety standpoint to ensure that all areas of the site
meet the lighting uniformity standards of Chapter 20 of the Zoning
Ordinance.

. The applicant has proposed the mitigation of wetlands area that must
be approved by EGLE.

. The site plan indicates the easement with the adjacent property as a
proposed, rather than an existing easement.

. The plan otherwise meets the Special Land Use Standards of Section
15.02 and 15.04BB of the Zoning Ordinance.

. Discussion during work session and public hearing.



KENTWOOD FIRE DEPARTMENT
4775 Walma Ave., SE
Kentwood, Ml 49508

Station 1: 616-554-0800
Station 2: 616-949-1780
Station 3: 616-534-7117

KENTWOOD PLAN REVIEW

Fire Department Information

Occupant ID: 24403 Inspection Date: 10/02/2023

Inspected By: QUICK, PATRICK

Facility Information

Occupant Name: BIGGBY COFFEE
Business Address: 2300 44TH

Inspection Information

Inspection Type: SITE PLAN ONLY

Inspection Notes: Site plan for new drive thru coffee shop. Plans approved as submitted.

Fire Code Reference

Description '

Comments

Approved vehicle access for fire fighting shall be provided to all
construction or demolition sites prior to and during the time of
construction. Access road(s) (20 feet wide, designed and maintained
to support a vehicle weighing 20 tons on a single axle with dual
wheels and standard road tires) shall be constructed as required.
This road may be gravel, but vehicle access must be maintained and
unobstructed at all times. (IFC 501.4, 503.1.1, 503.2.3, 503.4,
3310.1)

Provide fire lane(s) on the side(s) of the
building. Each side of the building where a fire lane is required must
have an entrance as close to the middle as possible. The fire lane
must be a minimum of 10 feet and a maximum of 30 feet from the
building, and within 100 feet of all fire department connections. (IFC
503.1.1) ’

Install inch Arabic numerals on the front of the building in a
color that contrasts with the immediate background on which the
numerals are mounted and that will be readily visible during normal
daylight. (IFC 505.1 - 505.1.7)

Install supplementary inch Arabic address numerals on a post
or mailbox on the same side of the public road as, and directly in
front of, the building in such a manner as to be readily visible to
occupants of fire department vehicles on the public road. (IFC
505.1.2.4, 505.1.3)

Gas meters, regulators and piping shall not be placed where they
will be subjected to damage, or shall be protected by approved
physical barriers. (IFC 603.9, 312; NFPA 54)

Required means of egress shall be maintained during construction
and demolition, remodeling or alterations and additions to any
building. (IFC 3311.2)

Signatures

Fire lanes are adequate for building.

6 inch numbers required on building on the 44th

street side. Or 4 inch numbers on building and sign

atroad.

Provide temporary numbers during construction
phase of project.

First Name Last Name Signature Date

Pat Quick 10/02/2023

Page 1 of 1



Kentwood Planning Department

Brad Boomstra, P.E.
City Engineer
October 18, 2023
Biggby Coffee

2300 44 Street SE
41-18-28-226-006

We have completed our review of the proposed revised preliminary plat site plan dated 9-18-2023
for the above referenced project.

Kentwood Engineering has the following comments that will need to be addressed before this
office can grant site plan / construction plan approval:

Overall Plan Comments:

9
2.

Sheet C1: Site Plan Key Notes: #4 — provide a detail for the sidewalk construction.

Sheet C1: Site Plan Key Notes: #7 — Provide a copy of the wetland permit when it is
acquired.

Sheet C2: The construction schedule is not accurate.

Sheet C2: Storm Sewer Structures — The proposed outlet is 0.5 higher in elevation than
the inlet pipes. Provide a detail for these structures. Also label these structures in the
Plan View.

Include the City of Kentwood General Notes on the plan(s). These notes are required
for the work being performed in the 44" Street right-of-way. Highway permit
conditions, specifications and required general plan notes are posted on the City’s
website, and can be accessed at http://www.ci.kentwood.mi.us (hover over “CITY
SERVICES” and “DEPARTMENTS” then click “ENGINEERING”, then click the “RIGHT-OF-
WAY” link near the top of the page). This requirement relates to the construction of the
proposed sidewalk

Sheet C2: The proposed sign will not be allowed in the Street public right-of-
way.

Storm Sewer / Drainage:

1.

Provide a tributary area map and calculations to verify the capacity of the proposed and
existing storm pipes to carry a 10-year storm (or a 100-year event if no overland
floodway is provided). Use the Kentwood Storm Sewer Design Standards available on
the City’s website; they contain a Kentwood-specific IDF curve and time of



Biggby Coffee
2300 44" Street SE

Page 2 of 5

2.
3.

concentration (Tc) nomograph. Use a minimum initial Tc of 10 minutes. Maintain a
minimum cleansing velocity of 2.5 ft/sec in the pipes. Calculations must be sealed by
a registered engineer.

How will the roof be drained? Where will this flow go?

Additional comments regarding drainage may be made upon further review.

Detention Basin:

1.

On-site stormwater detention will be required for this parcel. Section 78-123 of the
City of Kentwood Ordinance requires that the new detention facility be sized for the
entire parcel in a fully developed condition. We will need to see these calculations.

The amount of detention volume required may be based on an estimate of the
percentage of impervious surface area based on the Kent County Subdivision Drainage
Rules (short method #1), on the basis of 0.1 acre-ft per acre for the entire parcel (short
method #2) or, alternately, a tabulation of actual reservoir routing (long method).
Routing calculations usually result in the lowest required volume. The detention sizing

must be based on a 25-year storm. We will need to see detention sizing and release
calculations.

We need to see a more detailed drawing of the proposed detention basin outlet control
structure.

Kentwood allows a maximum detention release rate of 0.33 cfs/acre, based on the total
parcel size.

The minimum diameter restrictor pipe size is 4 inches.

In order to allow a proper transition from a point discharge to natural flow, 50 feet of
downstream protection will be needed for the detention basin outlet pipe. This may
consist of 4” concrete, grouted riprap, or properly sized riprap, all on filter fabric
(MDOT “Geotextile Liner”). Both the surface material and the fabric must be toed in
at least 18 inches at all earth interfaces. The treatment must be extended completely
around the end of the pipe by two (2) feet to protect from eddy currents. The point
source must be at least fifty (50) feet from the property line.

The emergency outlet pipe must be capable of carrying a 10-year, fully developed non-
detained storm flow. Please provide calculations to show that the pipe can carry this
flow.

An emergency spillway may also be used instead of an outlet pipe. Section V(E) of
the City of Kentwood Standard Specifications for Design and Construction of Storm
Detention Storage requires that the detention basin spillway “shall be constructed of
hot-rolled plant mix asphalt or concrete, and must extend from the top of the berm to
the intersection with the outfall channel. All interfaces with native soil shall be toed
in.” Show a detail on the plans.

Soil Erosion and Sediment Control:

1.

We will need to see some additional soil erosion control measures as part of the plan
review. Section 78-62 of the City of Kentwood Ordinance (posted on the City’s



Biggby Coffee
2300 44 Street SE
Page 3 of 5

website) contains minimum requirements for information that shall be included on the
plan. Go to: http:/www.ci.kentwood.mi.us (hover over “CITY SERVICES” and
“DEPARTMENTS” then click “ENGINEERING”, then click the “SOIL EROSION AND
STORMWATER” link near the top of the page). Please review this ordinance carefully.

2. Indicate and label the 1% chance (100-year) flood elevation on the SESC plan or add a
note that none exists on this site.

Indicate and label the wetland delineation line or add a note that none exist on this site.

4.  Include a written description of the soil types of the exposed land area contemplated
for an earth change.

5.  Place a note on the soil erosion control plan to indicate that existing and new catch
basins shall be protected with an inlet filter drop (silt sack). Straw bales or fabric placed
under the grate are NOT acceptable, and sediment traps alone are not sufficient to
provide adequate sediment filtration. Such a note might read, “EXISTING AND NEW
CATCH BASINS SHALL BE PROTECTED WITH AN INLET FABRIC DROP (SILT SACK).” Include a
simple detail of the proposed silt sack on the Soil Erosion and Sediment Control plan.
We can provide you with an acceptable CAD detail upon request.

6.  Place the following notes on the soil erosion control plan:

o ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL COMPLY WITH
ARTICLE 2 OF CITY OF KENTWOOD ORDINANCE 78 AND PART 91 OF PUBLIC ACT 451.

o ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS SHALL BE INSPECTED AND MAINTAINED ON
A DAILY BASIS AND IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING EVERY SIGNIFICANT RAINFALL EVENT.

« ALL EXCESS SPOILS ARE TO BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE. OTHERWISE, STOCKPILES
MUST BE PROVIDED WITH TEMPORARY AND PERMANENT STABILIZATION MEASURES.

« EXCESS DIRT IS NOT TO BE PLACED ON ANY AREAS ON OR ADJACENT TO THE SITE
WHERE THE PLAN DOES NOT SHOW THE AREA BEING DISTURBED. (This area of
disturbance, or grading limits, must be clearly shown on the site plan.) :

«  SILT FENCING IS REQUIRED ALONG ALL DOWNSTREAM EDGES OF THE GRADING LIMITS
AND MUST REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL VEGETATION IS UNIFORMLY RE-ESTABLISHED. THE
SILT FENCE MUST BE TOED IN A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES ALONG ITS BASE. (Remember
that silt fences are intended to intercept sheet flow only and must always be installed
parallel with the ground contours. Silt fences must not cross ravines, overland
floodways, ditches, swales, etc. where concentrated flows occur.)

« ALL DISTURBED BANKS EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN 4:1 AND THE DETENTION BASIN
BANKS AND BOTTOM MUST BE COVERED WITH TOPSOIL, SEED AND NORTH AMERICAN
GREEN S-150 (OR APPROVED' EQUAL) EROSION CONTROL BLANKET. THIS BLANKET,
ALONG WITH THE NECESSARY STAPLES OR WOOD PEGS, SHALL BE PLACED PER
MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS. SEAMS SHALL BE PLACED PARALLEL TO THE
DIRECTION OF SURFACE RUNOFF. (Indicate such areas with shading or hatching on
the plan.)

o ALL SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO ANY EARTH
MOVING OPERATIONS AND SHALL BE MAINTAINED UNTIL VEGETATION IS UNIFORMLY RE-
ESTABLISHED AND THE SITE IS PERMANENTLY STABILIZED.



Biggby Coffee
2300 44™ Street SE

Page 4 of 5

e NO SEDIMENT SHALL BE TRACKED ONTO THE ADJACENT PUBLIC STREET AND IF IT DOES
OCCUR, IT SHALL BE CLEANED DAILY.

e THE STORMWATER DETENTION BASIN IS TO BE THE FIRST ITEM OF EARTH MOVING AND

SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN CONJUNCTION WITH THE INSTALLATION OF SOIL EROSION
CONTROL MEASURES.

Per the requirements of Part 91 of P.A. 451, place on the soil erosion control plan a bar
graph or chart showing the proposed timing and sequence of each proposed earth
change. It must include the installation of both permanent and temporary soil erosion
and sedimentation controls, as well as the removal of temporary controls. It must also
show the sequence of any construction phases.

A stone construction exit must also be included as part of the soil erosion control plan.
Indicate the location of this exit on the plan, along with a detail. The length of the rock
construction exit shall be at least 50 feet and shall consist of a 6-inch minimum layer
crushed rock or stone on top of non-woven geosynthetic fabric (MDOT “Heavy

Geotextile Liner”). The size of the stone shall be selected so that it cannot get caught
between dual truck tires.

Additional soil erosion and sediment control comments may be made by Kentwood
staff upon further review.

Utilities (Sanitary & Water):

1;

The City of Grand Rapids owns, operates and maintains the sanitary sewer collection
and water distribution systems in this portion of Kentwood. Any alterations, extensions
or new connections to either of these systems will require approval from Grand Rapids.
Construction plans (drafting standards) and specifications for the proposed watermain
and sanitary sewer must conform to Grand Rapids requirements.

A representative of the City of Kentwood Inspections Department must be present
when the tap is made into the existing sanitary sewer.

‘The Grand Rapids Water Department must be present to make the tap into the existing

watermain. Notify the Grand Rapids Water Department before making the connection
to the existing service lateral.

Required Permits, Bonds, Fees [and Escrow]:

L

Because this parcel is adjacent to a public street, over one (1) acre is being disturbed,
or is within 500 feet of a lake or steam, a Permit for an Earth Change (fee $400) and a
$5,000 soil erosion control performance bond or an irrevocable letter of credit using
the City of Kentwood format will be required through Kentwood Engineering. The
Owner/Developer must sign the Permit for an FEarth Change. Both the
Owner/Developer and the Contractor must be named on the bond. Please contact us if
you need a permit and/or a bond template form, or one can be accessed on the City’s
website at http://www.ci.kentwood.mi.us (hover over “CITY SERVICES” and
“DEPARTMENTS” then click “ENGINEERING”, then click the “SOIL EROSION AND STORM

WATER” link near the top of the page). There is a 365-day limit to complete the work
under this permit.




Biggby Co

ffee

2300 44 Street SE

Page 5 of 5

2.

A $30,000 Site Grading and Stormwater Management Bond or an irrevocable letter of
credit using the City of Kentwood format and an administrative fee of $600 will be
required through Kentwood Engineering. This bond is posted to assure that the plan,
once approved, is constructed in the field according to that plan. Both the
Owner/Developer and the Contractor must be named on the bond. Let us know 1f you
need our bond template, or it can be accessed on the City’s website.

A permit will be needed from the MDEQ for the proposed work within the existing
wetlands.

Please note that all required bonds and permit applications and fees must be submitted
to, and accepted by, Kentwood Engineering before any permits can be issued! There
will be no “partial” or “conditional” permits issued.

Miscellaneous / Reminders:

1.

Please be advised that at the completion of construction, a civil engineer or surveyor
will need to provide an as-built plan to the City of Kentwood with a certification by a
registered engineer stating that the site grading and the stormwater system were
constructed in accordance with the approved plans. A copy of the certification form is
available upon request or on the City’s website.

Remember that, for a Building Permit to be issued, other City departments (fire,
assessor, treasurer, water, planning) may have comments regarding this plan. Contact
Kentwood Inspections (Renee Hargrave, 554-0781) regarding building permit
application procedures, fees, plan requirements and approval status.

Once final approval by all departments has been granted, make sure the contractor has
the latest approved set of plans before beginning construction!

Should you have any questions regarding this department’s review, please feel fiee to contact our

office.

ce:  Kentwood Engineering Permit Staff



Golder 10/17/23

PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

PROJECT: Biggby Coffee Drive Through
APPLICATION: 26-23

REQUEST: Site Plan Review for a Drive-Through Facility
LOCATION: 2300 44" Street SE

HEARING DATE: October 24, 2023

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend conditional approval of the site plan dated

CONDITIONS:
1.

BASIS:

October 9, 2023 for Biggby Coffee Drive-Through facility
as described in Case No. 26-23. Approval is conditioned
on the following:

Drive-through shall be operated in accordance with the Applicant’s
operations narrative dated October 5, 2023.

. Review and approval by the Kentwood City Engineer and compliance

with the Kentwood Fire Marshal’s memo dated October 2, 2023.
Applicant shall provide turning radius information to ensure that
service vehicles accessing the site can be accommodated.

. Site plan shall reflect the recorded cross access easement with the

property to the east.

Staff approval of final landscaping and lighting plan for the site.

. Staff approval of the building elevations and signage.



. The final landscaping must be reviewed to ensure that it meets the
requirements of Chapter 19 of the Zoning Ordinance and provides
adequate visibility from the public street. The plan must also be
reviewed from a safety standpoint to ensure that all areas of the site
meet the lighting uniformity standards of Chapter 20 of the Zoning
Ordinance.

. The site plan indicates the easement with the adjacent property as a
proposed, rather than an existing easement.

. The building elevation must meet the materials requirements of
Section 8.03 2 of the Zoning Ordinance. The signage proposed for the
proposed building elevations does not meet the requirements of the
Kentwood Zoning Ordinance

. Approval of the Special Land Use drive through for Biggby.

. Discussion during work session and public hearing.



Tyson Garner

616-802-7017
Tgarner@biggby.com

October 5th, 2023

Lisa Golder

Economic Development Planner
City of Kentwood, Ml

Dear Lisa,

| am representing Biggby Coffee, we recently acquired land on 44th Street
with the aim of establishing a drive-thru Biggby location. | am writing to
formally request a special land use and site plan review. Our proposal
outlines a drive-thru Biggby Coffee operation. The property will house a
drive-thru-only location with no indoor seating. Instead, we plan to incorporate
a walk-up window option, allowing customers to place their orders and
receive their purchases through this convenient service point. In terms of
staffing, we anticipate a total of 15 employees. However, there will be no
more than five employees working simultaneously. Our intended hours of
operation will be from 5 a.m. to 9 p.m. | recently communicated with Dave
Hanko from Feenstra, who informed me that they will be applying to EGLE for
a wetland permit.

We look forward to discussing this proposal in detail, addressing any
questions or concerns, and collaborating with the city and local authorities to
ensure a successful development process. Thank you for your time on this
project. We look forward to the opportunity of bringing this drive-thru Biggby
location to 44th Street.

Sincerely,

Tyson Garner
Tgarner@biggby.com

616-802-7017



NORTH 1/4 CORNER
SEC 28, ‘TBN,

S89°01'16"E

NORTHEAST CORNER
SEC 28, T6N, RIIW

NB9®0I"E™W  570.55 \/\_ .

C2:

T | COMMUNITY

COMMERCIAL
DISTRICT

o

BENCHMARK:
ELEVATION 772.93
Flange Bolt on Hydrant on South Side of 44th Street, 7.3’ East of East property Line.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

PPN# 41-18—-28-226—006

2300 44th St SE

Owner:  MT3 Holdings LLC
2030 Lake Michigan Drive SW
Grand Rapids, MI 49504

The North 330 feet of the East 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 28, T6N, R11W, City
of Kentwood, Kent County, Michigan, excepting therefrom the East 570.55 feet thereof.

Contains 28,270 SF or 0.65 Acres

DEMO PLAN KEY NOTES:

[1] REMOVE EXISTING BLACKTOP

[2] Remove exismiNG cuRB

[3] RemovE ExisTING TREES

g R
\ o9
H
4
‘:\(,..‘2_‘.,,.'_{!'(‘;,/ 44TH ST
e SITE
DR
ENGINEER ]
Know what's below, 39'%;%2,
Call before you dig. D syt
FRorgssian
wwiw.CALL811.com
LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE
( ) [ Revsions \( )
LEGEND TORRE ks SURVEY & DEMO PLAN
T - tom [ Secrion CoRueR | | COWNENTS BIGGBY COFFEE
R~ RANGE 4~ SET CAPPED IRON
L § oo L -ouro o ot WAL 2300 44TH ST SE
P E g - AT O STORM SEWER MANHOLE
o - O SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE FOR: TYSON GARNER
EXSTING TREES -, o s 2 ERRCEE BIGGBY COFFEE
& RORT =1 2030 LAKE MICHIGAN DR NW/
PR =z -PWDSED BiAGRTOP o VALVE GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49504
EXISTING TREES é‘ D ‘ 5 coGE (i \;1;1:;;0‘,5 L PART OF THE HORTHEAST B SEcTon 28, Tot, RITH. J
e ; =<
%X UGHT POLE t
EXISTING BLACKTOP WAL MOUNTED LIGHT ee ns ra S1
EXISTING WETLAND SCALE: 1" = 30' EXISTROICONCRETE ; ::ﬁgg;mm cIvIL ENGINE‘ERAS-:OSCJ&“E.#L':%
UnDRE —— sioN - L Grandto, WI43018__ wwmfsensroincicom 9/18/2023




'WESTBOUND 44TH ST

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

me 1/4 CORNER

SITE PLAN KEY NOTES:

[1] menu BoarD

[2] PARKING SPACE 9'x21’ (TYP)

NEW BITUMINOUS PAVEMENT

PROPOSED 5' WIDE CONCRETE SIDEWALK
[5] PROPOSED DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

[6] EXISTING POLE SIGN TO REMAIN

1,855 SQ. FT. OF IMPACTED WETLANDS

GREASE TRAP

[2] SHIELDED WALL MOUNTED LIGHTS (TYP.)
SHIELDED LIGHT

[11] TRANSFORMER

BENCHMARK:
ELEVATION 772.93
Flange Bolt on Hydrant on South Side of 44th Street, 7.3' East of East property Line.

PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

PPN# 41-18-28-226-006

2300 44th St SE

Owner: MT3 Holdings LLC
2030 Lake Michigan Drive SW
Grand Raplds, MI 49504

The North 330 feet of the East 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 28, T6N, R11V, City
of Kentwood, Kent County, Michigan, excepting therefrom the East 570.55 feet thereof.

Contains 28,270 SF or 0.65 Acres

REQUIREMENTS:

1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION:
CONSTRUCTION OF A NEW 800 SF BUILDING WITH ASSOCIATED DRIVEWAYS AND PARKING

2. ZONING: C—2 (COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL DISTRICT) ZONING

- SETBACKS:
ConAGreD SR8 AL FRONT YARD: 35 FEET .
REAR YARD: 30 FEET
) H PAVING SIDE YARD: 0 EXCEPT WHEN ABUTTING OS, C—4, OR RESIDENTIAL
>
A & & E] {—— LOT DIMENSIONS:
: e aZe 11/2° R MINIMUM AREA: 11,050 SF
) 5 "es MINIMUM WIDTH: 85 FT
" MAXIMUM LOT COVERAGE: 75%
PR 15 BAR COMT. MAXIMUM BUILDING HEIGHT: 45 FT (30 WHEN ABUTTING RESIDENTIAL)
¥
'S 1 3. PARKING REQUIREMENTS:
¢ A SIDEWALK WITH INTEGRATED CURB PARKING REQUIRED BY ZONING:
3 L NOT TO SCALE 1 SPACE PER 50 SF UFA, PLUS 4 STANDING SPACES PER OUTSIDE SERVICE WINDOW/
2 PROPOSED PARKING:
3 ) 7 EEGULAR SPACES
1 HANDICAPPED SPACE
) [s]™ f FINISH GRADE . 8+ STANDING SPACES FOR SERVICE QUEUE
’ ; R 1 e e o
: BUII;ODI:G | —~——6" MDOT 22A AGGREGATE BASE GENE L NOTES
- 8 2 | R A -
) 800 SQ. Frg ‘ 4 127 MDOT CLASS Il SAND COMPAGTED 1. All utilities shown are approximate locations derived from actual measurements and
T avallable records, They should not be Interpreted to be the exact locations nor should
h ) N PAVING DETAIL it be assumed that they are the only utilities in the area.
E z o NOT TO SCALE 2. Al ‘vior‘k‘ s'!\oll comply wllhr nppllcoble requirements or the local code, ordinances and
. i
3. Remove all demolltlon materials and debris from the site and dispose of properly
D offsite.
- 100" | 4"x4" Treated post with TI-11 4. Do not bury any debris, roots, topsoll or other materials.
X ) 1. Plywood Siding (Treated) 5. Adequately protect the site, adjoining property, and utility services.
' ) =l i Alternate: Block Enclosure 6. Contractor shall field verify all utilities prior to commencing work on new utility
a 5 swing gate, connectlons.
F ? P I clearance min. chain link with 7. Install all utllllles in uccordunce with local speclfcu!lons and requirements.
) | H I =) =1 privacy slats B. Contractor shall be re for ry perml(s for work in
: | N T / right—of—way and on any utility i
) ‘g | | 6' high T1-11 : 9. Damage to existing utilities by the controctor sholl be repalrsd at the contractor's
2 ) K . B 5 Plywood siding 6’ drop pin expense,
F | s Y | (Treated) (0
8 wo g % wog ‘ .
| | g 8y | Grade T t Grode
) 10| | 8 na | 1 i
) I| 12 | 36" S.J
) 3 | cleorance min. | L
» | Py e 1
Il s |
i 3000 p.sii. te slob with
3 ' AR /\L'r 8 g e e R s o
: g | e __\____/___, [ privacy slots 6" thickness
' % / Y ) !
] 6 g
i PLAN N g g ELEVATION
DUNMPSTER ENCLOSURE
NOT TO SCALE
o
oss
<
AATH ST
S‘TE
| COUNTR' DR
BOREN BLYD
Know what'sbelow,
Call before you dig.
v, CALL811.com
LOCATION MAP
NOT TO SCALE
( ) (Revisions B ( W
LEGEND Moo SITE PLAN
I- om Q- SECTION CORNER __ COMMENTS BIGGBY COFFEE
- L SET CAPPED IRON
L 4 - Nom | FOUND IRON OR NAIL 2300 44TH ST SE
= £ - B O_STOR SEWER MANHOLE
- O SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE FOR: TYSON GARNER
EXISTING TREES 14 sec. - secmon B oTon s BIGGBY COFFEE
. o G FDORAIT 2030 LAKE MICHIGAN DR NV
R § o = [B Proposeo euackrop °© VAWVE " GRAND RAF'/DS' W} 49504
PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 28, T6N, RI1W,
e EXSTNG TREES J ’ PROPDSEO CONCRETE : g:,l Iv::EmE L CITY OF KENTVOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN )
\.\N ' R
| |lesmm BLACKTOP Xr UGHT POLE t
WAL MOUNTED LIGHT ee n Sl ra C1
EXISTING WETLAND SCALE: 1" = 20 E’Ex}snnc CONCRETE ; :RE"EST“ cIviL ENGINEERAS. :."s"‘ufz‘\fe'vg}a%
ANSFORMER 3145 Peairio S SW Phone: 616.457.7050
\m Bulbing —— SioN g JL Grandsito, M1 4941 v foonsiainecom 9/18/2023




2024 .
SCHEDULED ACTIVITY Nov bec AN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG _ggggHMﬁzr\;g(-
D BRUS| X
:;LSEQLTT?[E;SP AgRos:)N }::ONTROLS I Flange Bolt on Hydrant on South Side of 44th Street, 7.3' East of East property Line.
STRIP_TOPSOIL
ROUGH GRADE SITE

UTILITIES PROPERTY DESCRIPTION:

PARKING LOT
PPN# 41-18-28-226-00
TOPSOIL, SEED, & LANDSCAPE 23(’;’5 21!?;‘88E23E i

FINAL RESTORATION & CLEANUP Owner:  MT3 Holdings LLC
REMOVE TEMP. EROSION CONTROLS 2030 Lake Michigan Drive SY

4£\ﬁ— Grand Rapids, MI 49504
=

The North 330 feet of the East 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of Section 28, T6N, R11V/, City
of Kentwood, Kent County, Michigan, excepting therefrom the East 570.55 feet thereof.

“ NORTHEAST CORNER
| SEG 28, ToN, RIIW
et

NORTH 1/4 COR|
SEC 28, T6N, RITW —

16"E

Contains 28,270 SF or 0.65 Acres

— STORM SEWER STRUCTURES:
Bgion s ol CATCH BASIN #1 SOIL EROSION CONTROL GENERAL NOTES

FLoW 2' DIA WITH EJW 5105 GRATE
al_’;' SRR VT TooD 1. ALL SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO
Toe ST : ANY OTHER CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTAINED, AS NECESSARY, UNTIL THE
RS S0 CATCH BASIN f2 SITE HAS BEEN PERMANENTLY STABILIZED.

;

SILT FENCE DETAIL BTt B 1051CRATE 3. RE-SPREAD 9" OF TOPSOIL OVER ALL GRADED AREAS. SEED AND
O 15 Sicpp (¥ Fkod FERTIUZE USING DRILL (MDOT ROADSIDE MIX).

NOT 70 SCALE a -

Wiz S Wy -rohon 4. AL DRAINAGE SWALES SHALL BE STABILIZED WITH A MINIMUM OF 4”

(S) 67 PVC NV 764. TOPSOIL, SEEDING, AND SC—150 EROSION CONTROL MATTING.

o
=
>
g

77049). (77060
-

ar
"

P i
-,

EX. GAS SERV.

5. STONE RIP-RAP SHALL BE 8" MIN. DIAMETER.
6. SILT FENCE SHALL BE TOED IN 6" AND STAKED EVERY 6' 0/C.

7. PROTECT NEW & EXISTING STORM INLETS BY EXCAVATING A SUMP
AROUND. THEM & PLACING A SILT SACK INSIDE THE CATCHBASIN.

8. INSPECT AND MAINTAIN ALL TEMPORARY SOIL EROSION CONTROLS AFTER
EACH SIGNIFICANT RAINFALL.

9. STREET SWEEPING SHALL BE COMPLETED DAILY ON AN AS NEEDED BASIS
THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.

10. DETENTION FACILITIES SHALL BE THE FIRST ITEM CONSTRUCTED.

PROP, 1°
W.s.

1 BUILDING

PROP, 4°
SAN. LAT.

800 sQ. FT.

ri 1. STREET SWEEPING SHALL BE PERFORMED EACH DAY (OR MORE OFTEN
WF=771.0

AS NEEDED) BY MECHANICAL MEANS ON PAVED STREETS IN AND
AROUND THE PERIMETER OF THE PROJECT. THIS INCLUDES SWEEPING
PAVED SURFACES OUTSIDE THE LIMITS OF THE PROJECT, AS AFFECTED
BY ANY TRUCKING OPERATIONS.

12. DUST CONTROL SHALL BE PROVIDED BY MEANS OF WATER DISTRIBUTION
ON A REGULAR BASIS OVER AREAS THAT COULD POTENTIALLY PRODUCE
DUST CONDITIONS.

13. IT SHALL BE THE RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PROPERTY OWNER AND ALL
OTHER PERSONS PARTICIPATING IN, CAUSING OR BEING FACTUALLY OR
LEGALLY RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY EARTH CHANGE TO PROVIDE SOIL
EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL TO ADEQUATELY PREVENT SOIL
FROM BEING ERODED AND DISCHARGED ONTO ADJACENT PROPERTIES, OR
INTO A CITY STORMWATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM, A PUBUC STREET OR

3 | RIGHT-OF—WAY, WETLAND, CREEK, STREAM, WATER BODY,

PROPOSED e FLOODPLAIN, NON—COMPLIANCE WITH THIS WILL RESULT IN VIOLA110N

BUILDING NOTICES WITH RE—INSPECTION FEES

> l ~
|l . -~ / \
B ~-
3 PROPOSED \
H
]
]
]
! PROP, GAS
i SERVICE
]

"

= L L [270.3¢ *
N & ek s SOIL EROSION KEY NOTES:

(1) GRADING LMITS TTTLL Tttt

(2) sILT FENCE ¥, S, S

(3) PLACE SILT SACKS IN CATCH BASIN (3 PROP) ©)

(4) PLACE NA GREEN SC-150 STRAW BLANKET  [Sisy]

oF o°
Know what's below. "
Call before you dig. <
viww.CALL811.com aai ST
et

BOREN BLYD

GRADING DETAIL

SCALE: 1" = 10

LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

J

J
N

(REVISIONS

LEGEND GRADING AND SESG PLAN
@ SeoTo coer e BIGGBY COFFEE

YN
RANGE & SET CAPPED IRON _—
NoRTH §-_FOUND IRON OR NAIL R e 2300 44TH ST SE
EAST O STORM SEWER MANHOLE S
(O SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE FOR: TYSON GARNER
Bl CATCH BASIN BIGGBY COFFEE
Foi or R 2030 LAKE MICHIGAN DR NW

EMOZD~
rrrrrn
-
ﬁg g
g

o0

b3
sS4

NORTH

- © UTUTY POLE PART OF THE HORTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 28, Totl. RITW,
CONCRETE  ["e— GuY WRE

s CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN
|:] EXISTING BLACKTOP XX LIGHT POLE
{__ WALL MOUNTED LIGHT

SCALE: 1" = 20' EWST‘NG CONCRETE o PEDESTAL

eenstra C2

e & Assoclates, Inc.
CIVIL ENGINEERS & SURVEYORS

-PROPOSED BLACKTOP o VALVE —_— GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49504

3145 Prairio St SV Phono: 616.457.7050
- )L Grandville, MI 49418 ww.feenstrainc.com 9/18/2023

Va @ TRANSFORMER
" BULDING —— SIGN




TH 1/4 COR|

Kl
NORTHEAST CORNER
LEEQ 28, TN, RITY

NORTH 1/: i
SEC 28, T6N, RITW — —

2
Vudl

R NP e X
I

N, 200

g i :
PROPOSED |
BUILDING |
| 23
B
E . ’
800 sQ. FT. v 3

LANDSCAPING PLAN KEY NOTES:

®
@
®
®

LAWN AREA, 4" MIN. TOPSOIL
FRONT YARD GREENBELT
PARKING LOT CANOPY TREE

PARKING LOT LANDSCAPE AREA

LANDSCAPING LEGEND:

4  DECIDUOUS CANOPY — RED MAPLE (ACER RUBRUM) [MIN. CALPER 2.5"] %(\‘%

20 GOLD MOUND SPIREA (SPIRAEA JAPONICA) [MIN. SPREAD 24"]

23 MY MONET WEIGELA (WEIGELA FLORIDA) [MIN. SPREAD 24"]

50 DENSE YEW

LAWN AREA, 4" MIN. TOPSOIL

°
&
[ ]
PROPOSED LANDSCAPING AREA _I

BENCHMARK:

ELEVATION 772.93

Flange Bolt on Hydrant on South Side of 44th Street, 7.3' East of East property Line.

LANDSCAPE REQUIREMENTS:

10" FRONT YARD GREENBELT
REQ'D CANOPY TREES
REQ'D SHRUBS

1/40 x 85 LF = 2.1 (3 CANOPY TREES)
7/40 x 85 LF = 14.9 (15 SHRUBS)

PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING (8 PARKING SPACES TOTAL)

REQ'D CANOPY TREES
REQ'D LANDSCAPING AREA

1 CANOPY TREE PER 10 PARKING SPACES
100 sQ. FT.

BUFFER YARD, C2 TO C2 ZONING, TYPE C

REQ'D SHRUBS

REQ'D CANOPY OR EVERGREEN TREE 1/40 LF x 200 LF

= 5 TREES
5/40 LF x 200 LF = 25 SHRUBS

.PROPOSED LANDSCAPING:

EXISTING DECIDUOUS TREES:

10" FRONT YARD GREENBELT:
3 DECIDUOUS CANOPY TREES
24 SHRUBS

PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING
1 DECIDUOUS CANOPY TREES

TO REMAIN ALONG SOUTH PROPERTY LINE

(MINIMUM 2.5" CALIPER WHEN PLANTED)
(MINIMUM SPREAD 24"WHEN PLANTED)

(MINIMUM 2.5" CAUPER WHEN PLANTED)

I
LANDSCAPE AREA

190 SQ. FT. WITH 19 SHRUBS
(MINIMUM SPREAD 24"WHEN PLANTED)

10 SIDE YARD GREENBELT: C2 TO C2 ZONING, TYPE C
5 DECIDUOUS CANOPY TREES — EACH SIDE
(MINIMUM 25" CAUPER WHEN PLANTED)

25 SHRUBS — EACH SIDE

(MINIMUM SPREAD 24"WHEN PLANTED)

Know what's below.
Call before you dig.

wviw.CALL811.com

LOCATION MAP

NOT TO SCALE

( ") (Revisions N ( )
LEGEND e N LANDSCAPING PLAN
EXISTING TREES T - Tom < SECTION CORNER — COMMENTS BIGGBY COFFEE
R - RANGE " SET CAPPED IRON
I N = Nom - FOUND IRON OR NALL 2300 44TH ST SE
E % - Eéﬁ O STORM SEWER MANHOLE
= S O SANITARY SEWER MANHOLE FOR: TYSON GARNER
EXISTING TREE! z
ISTING S o Eg‘é = ggﬁ}}ogl’_ B CATCH BASN BIGGBY COFFEE
SR 2030 LAKE MICHIGAN DR NW
z -"R°*’°SE° BLACKIOP © VALVE GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49504
PART OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4, SECTION 28, T6N, RiIW,
EXISTING YETLAND , -B PROPOSED CONCRETE (i 3‘;’::;;“—5 L CITY OF KENTWODD, KE/NT COUNTY, MICHIGAN )
EXISTING BLACKTOP L LGHT POLE t )
D {_ WALL MOUNTED LIGHT ee n S ra C 3
PROPOSED TREEUINE /M/J_\ SCALE: 1" = 20’ ENS“NG CONCRETE ; ::::STAL T C|VILENGINE‘EQS'::‘;‘?]‘R‘\’E‘%!)"RCS.
(LA pnon = : Jl e o/10/2023




PRELIMINARY
NOT ISSUED FOR
CONSTRUCTION

e = BIUUWOSUY
. ® [
99}}09n Agbbig

Plan and Elevations
exterior elevations

05 July 2023

HH T~ HHH T (AR
yhk HHT MHHHHHHHH HAHRH U HH
H THHH HHHH H HHHHHRH S HHHHHHHHHHHHH]
i THH i i i
] 2 I !
, T i i O
i THHHHHHHRHHHHHH R Il — —— |
HH HHHE I HHHHHHHHH] THHHHHR THHHHHHEHR THHHH
K] = LT HHHTHH Bt R 2ol
HHH 1“__!1.. H o) HH1 THHH MUl HHH b= MHHEHHEHHREY “\ W
HHH-~ T FRRARH HHHHHHHHHHHH ity HH i G e
5 H T HL HHHHHHH HHH HLL L HT
] T THHH ik i HTHT
k- i [ i
E. e I S——— HHHHHHHHHEHH THHHH Y HUHHHHEHHH R HEEH -]
Alll.,. J.TAll HHHHHHH HH L - - HH iRl h L Ill
i1 Rl bt I L
it I Y T
HH THH] H HHHHUHHY HH H K HH H EFHH
- FHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHHRHEH HHHHH WA
tHE HHHHHHH? MIBRBRIT HHHH] .c..v.-ﬁ..ﬂﬁ:ﬂ (A
i il el ittty ety ity byt ol i HHH
= : ? HHHH] i 7 | [HHHH
HHH- u N ; R | e | h
| ; Wi
i w7 W ol i
[T Nz (e
i AR g bbb
g1l 11\ Jlxl lllLll H S
i s :
e i I :
T.. HH Iy HHHRHHHI .‘L.”ALL ..A.“I ..“i X .5
HHH il I it it Iy A
i HHH e TR H HEHHH H 1
1 HHHRY HHHHHHHH HHHRY 1 oy
iy N R HHHHHH 0
IS ittt gl i
HHH {HH} H Ar_ HHH HrH ”
HHH - oy u {HHHH 4
|.HH ”.. H HHHA b
A il - i il I
S e i) i |
HL - HHHHHHHHHHHUHEHHHHHH yigklehsl +
T ! e
T HH I HH T
I HHHHHRHHHHN CRHRARAANRARRNANARAA NERHH
I HHHHHHHHHHHHH or R HHRHHH Y
LU - ll\l|lf.lll)llll|1xAllllle
\\ ol /// .v;...H....,H..H.,......-..U,
o HHH T HE R HE
o MU H U N B H HHHH
I M1 R R
LT e
. HHHHH] HEHHHEHE
ety || HHHHHHK UHEHHE R HH R HREH R
P 111 i HH MM LN b |_.I,_.| LIL||
AHHH bbb bbby lab i
~ || [
UHHHH HHHHERHH R HHHHH folHHH
H i1 l|rll\rxl|lv. pipipiainisininl = -
e HHR KRR
I HHHHHHH A R h




PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Pung 10/19/23

PROJECT: Kentwood Drive and Shine

APPLICATION: 27-23

LOCATION: 3277, 3311, & 3343 Woodland Drive, SE
HEARING DATE: October 24, 2023

REVIEW TYPE: Special Land Use for vehicle wash establishment

RECOMMENDATION: Conditional approval of the vehicle wash establishment as
described in Case 27-23. The approval is conditioned on the

following:

CONDITION: 1. Planning Commission approval of the site plan dated September
18, 2023.

2. Use to be operated consistent with the project narrative dated

September 22, 2023, and revised October 16, 2023.
3. All washing activities shall be done within the building.

4. A permanent egress easement, reviewed and approved by staff
and the City Attorney, to East Beltline Avenue through the
properties to the north (2329 East Beltline Avenue & 2333 East
Beltline Avenue) as depicted in Exhibit 1 shall be recorded.

5. If the sound generated by the outdoor vacuums or the car wash
drying system becomes a detriment to adjacent residential or
neighboring properties, measures shall be taken to mitigate the
detrimental impacts.

6. If vehicle stacking for the oil change/lube facility becomes an
issue, as determined by city staff, by blocking egress to the
north, then measures shall be taken to address the issue.

7. Compliance with all applicable standards and requirements of
the Kentwood Engineering Department.

8. Compliance with all applicable standards and requirements of
the Kentwood Fire Department.



Case 27-23 Special Land Use Recommendation

Page 2

BASIS:

The use is a special land use in the C2 Community Commercial
district and as such is compatible with the current zoning of the
property and the Master Plan recommendation for commercial
development of the site.

A permanent egress easement is required to ensure that egress
remains accessible for the site in the event property ownership
changes, etc.

Based on the information provided by the applicant for sound
generated by the outdoor vacuums and interior drying system
(see Exhibit 2 and Exhibit 3), the use is not anticipated to have
a substantial and adverse impact on neighboring property nor
create any type of blight within the area.

The applicant has indicated that the oil change operation would
see less than three (3) cars per hour which will not produce a
wait outside of the service bays.

Section 15.04.F.11 states that a vehicle wash establishment
building, and its accessory uses and buildings shall be located
not less than one hundred (100) feet from any right-of-way line
or from any side or rear lot line abutting a residential district.
The building is setback eighty-seven (87) feet from the adjacent
residential property to the northwest; a variance (Case V-23-01)
was granted allowing for the reduced setback from the
residential property.

Representations by the applicant at the work session and public
hearing.

Discussion at the work session and public hearing



Case 27-23 Special Land Use Recommendation
Page 3

Exhibit 1: Egress Easement to East Beltline Avenue




Case 27-23 Special Land Use Recommendation
Page 4

Exhibit 2: Automotive Drying System Sound Levels

INDUSTRIAL INC.
FAST, DEPENDABLE SALES & SERVICE

P.O. BOX 235 BETHEL PARK, PA 15102 PHONE (412) 833-0113 FAX (412) 833-7027

REF: Aerotherm Automotive Drying System

SLG Industrial the exclusive manufacturer of the Aerotherm Automotive Drying System, our dryers are
designed with the intent to minimize noise levels, while maximizing drying efficiency. These dryers
produce only 82 decibels of noise at 5’ of distance from the output nozzle.

To minimize noise impact to neighboring properties, we recommend that the dryers be installed inside
the building- not outside. When mounted inside a masonry, the noise level outside the building is
insignificant compared to average traffic noise. Here are some noise level measurements when dryers
are mounted inside an 8” masonry block building:

- At 50’ of distance directly forward of the exit of the dryers, the noise level is 63 decibels

- At 100’ of distance directly forward of the exit of the dryers, the noise level is 58 decibels

- At 100’ of distance and perpendicular to the carwash exit, the noise level is at only 54 decibels
- At 100’ of distance and perpendicular to the carwash exit, the noise level is at only 45 decibels

President




Case 27-23 Special Land Use Recommendation
Page 5

Exhibit 3: Vacuum Sound Levels

SOUND LEVEL METER READINGS

MODEL: FT-DD-T340HP4 (40hp VACSTAR TURBINE VACUUM PRODUCER)

READING ONE: 43 DB-A, 3 FEET FROM CORNER OF ENCLOSURE @ 45° ANGLE
AND NO BACKGROUND NOISE OR OUTSIDE INTERFERENCE.

READING TWO: 36 DB-A, 10 FEET FROM CORNER OF ENCLOSURE @ 45° ANGLE
AND NO BACKGROUND NOISE OR OUTSIDE INTERFERENCE.

READING THREE: 24 DB-A, 20 FEET FROM CORNER OF ENCLOSURE @ 45° ANGLE
AND NO BACKGROUND NOISE OR OUTSIDE INTERFERENCE.

READING FOUR: 12 DB-A, 30 FEET FROM CORNER OF ENCLOSURE @ 45° ANGLE
AND NO BACKGROUND NOISE OR OUTSIDE INTERFERENCE.

NOTE: THESE READINGS WERE TAKEN OUTSIDE OF 8'x10'x8’ CINDER BLOCK ENCLOSURE WITH 4 WALLS,
4-0 DOOR AND CONCRETE SLAB WITH NO ROOF.

SOUND LEVEL METER USED:

SIMPSON MODEL #40003 — MSHA APPROVED.
MEETS OSHA & WALSH-HEALY REQUIREMENTS FOR NOISE CONTROL.
CONFORMS TO ANSI $1.4-1983, IEC 651 SPECS FOR METER TYPE.

Vacutech
1350 Hi-Tech Drive, Sheridan WY, 82801
PHONE: (800) 917-9444 FAX: (303) 675-1988
EMAIL: info@vacutechllc
WEB SITE: vacutechllc.com




A

AR ENGINEERING

September 22, 2023
Rev. 10/16/23

Joe Pung

City of Kentwood Planning Department
4900 Breton Avenue, SE

Kentwood, MI 49518

RE: Site Plan Review — Operational Description

This operations description is for the proposed Drive and Shine located at 3311 Woodland Dr in the City
of Kentwood.

Proposed Building: 23,400 sft car care center including a car wash, indoor vacuums, interior detail belt,
and a lube center.

Proposed Use: Vehicle wash, outdoor vacuums, indoor vacuums, interior detailing, lube center.

Hours of Operation:
Exterior Car Wash
Mon-Sat: 7:30 am — 8:00 pm
Sun: 8:30 am — 7:00 pm
Oil Change
Mon-Fri: 8:00 am — 7:00 pm
Sat-Sun: 9:00 am — 6:00 pm
Interior Self Service
Mon-Sat: 7:30 am — 7:30 pm
Sun: 8:30 am — 6:30 pm

Number of Employees: 6 (3 car wash. 3 oil change).

Expected Vehicles Per Hour: 78 vph for car wash peak hour, 14 vph for lube center peak hour. (refer to
Traffic Impact Analysis prepared by Fleis & Vandenbrink). With an average service time per vehicle of
18 seconds for the car wash and 60 seconds in the queuing line. The average service time for an oil
change is 10 minutes. The busiest Drive & Shine oil change sees 25 vehicles per day, less than 3 cars per
hour which will not produce a wait outside of the service bays.

Wastewater Treatment: The majority of the water from the car wash will be recycled through the car wash
to reduce waste. The remaining wastewater will be sent through an oil water separator to the public sewer
system. The oil from the lube center will be recycled through their heating system.

5725 Venture Park Drive = Suite A = Kalamazoo, MI 49009 = Phone: 269.250.5991 = Fax: 866.569.0604



Drive & Shine - Operational Description October 16, 2023

Thank you for your continued support of the project and working with our team to achieve site plan
approval. Please let us know if there is any additional information you need at this time.

Sincerely,

AR ENGINEERING, LLC.
Andrew S. Rossell, P.E.
Principal Engineer

Page 2 of 2



PLANNING STAFF RECOMMENDATION

Pung 10/19/23

PROJECT: Kentwood Drive and Shine

APPLICATION: 27-23

LOCATION: 3277, 3311, & 3343 Woodland Drive, SE
HEARING DATE: October 24, 2023

REVIEW TYPE: Site plan review for a vehicle wash establishment

RECOMMENDATION: Recommend conditional approval of the site plan September 18,
2023, as described in Case 27-23. Approval is conditioned on the
following:

CONDITION: 1. Planning Commission approval of the special land use vehicle wash
establishment.

2. All washing activities shall be done within the building.

3. Recording of a permanent landscape easement, reviewed, and
approved by staff and the City Attorney, on the adjacent property to
the north (2333 East Beltline Avenue) as identified in Exhibit 1.

4. A permanent egress easement, reviewed and approved by staff and
the City Attorney, to East Beltline Avenue through the properties to
the north (2329 East Beltline Avenue & 2333 East Beltline Avenue)
as depicted in Exhibit 2 shall be recorded.

5. If vehicle stacking for the oil change/lube facility becomes an issue,
as determined by city staff, by blocking egress to the north, then
measures shall be taken to address the issue.

6. The western most ninety-five (95) feet of existing pavement which
will not be removed shall not be used for parking or storage and shall
be kept free of weeds, trash, junk, etc. and shall be removed if it
creates a nuisance or is otherwise a detriment to adjacent property
or the surrounding neighborhood.



Case 27-23 Site Plan Recommendation

Page 2

BASIS:

10.

11.

The three (3) parcels (3277, 3311 & 3343 Woodland Drive) shall be
combined.

Staff review and approval of a landscape plan.

Staff review and approval of an exterior photometric plan consistent
with current Zoning Ordinance requirements.

Compliance with all applicable standards and requirements of the
Kentwood Engineering Department.

Compliance with all applicable standards and requirements of the
Kentwood Fire Department.

The use is a special land use in the C2 Community Commercial
district and as such is compatible with the current zoning of the
property and the Master Plan recommendation for commercial
development of the site.

Section 8.03.B of the Zoning Ordinance requires a rear yard setback
of 30 feet (the rear yard building setback is two (2) feet), Section
19.03.C requires a 10-foot buffer zone adjacent to the office zone to
the north (no on-site buffer zone is provided).

The Zoning Board of Appeals approved variances (Case V-23-10)
in February of this year for a reduction of 28 feet to the required
rear yard setback and waiver to the required 10-foot buffer zone
adjacent to the office use to the north. A condition of the approval
was that a permanent landscape easement was to be created on the
adjacent property to the north.

A permanent egress easement is required to ensure that access to
East Beltline Avenue remains accessible for the site in the event
property ownership changes, etc.

The applicant has indicated that the oil change operation would see
less than three (3) cars per hour which will not produce a wait
outside of the service bays.

The applicant wishes to retain the western portion of the exiting
pavement. To prevent the area from becoming a nuisance or
detriment to the area, parking and storage are prohibited in this area,
and it shall be maintained to prevent it from becoming a nuisance or
detriment. The pavement will need to be removed if it does become
a nuisance or detriment.



Case 27-23 Site Plan Recommendation

Page 3

Section 15.04.F.11 states that a vehicle wash establishment building,
and its accessory uses and buildings shall be located not less than
one hundred (100) feet from any right-of-way line or from any side
or rear lot line abutting a residential district. The building is setback
eighty-seven (87) feet from the adjacent residential property to the
northwest; a variance (Case V-23-01) was granted allowing for the
reduced setback from the residential property.

The site plan otherwise meets the requirements of the Kentwood
Zoning Ordinance.

Representations by the applicant at the work session and public
hearing.

Discussion at the work session and public hearing.



Case 27-23 Site Plan Recommendation

Page 4

Exhibit 1: Permanent Landscape Easement

DETAIL SHEET).
[TTER - MDOT DETAIL

PED BY OWNER, INSTALLED BY
[CATION WITH OWNER. (SEE

C2 (sEE

J

1l L Asie

STICCTT, VO STAINCESS TUnD TTISCILD A UV SW OOULT O TICTTT FOLE, TN FARRINS
LOT ISLAND, EAST SIDE OF LOT, ch._iOmNggw._.
BELTLINE BUILDING

ELEVATION : 761.73

BM-B

CHISELED SQUARE ON NORTH SIDE OF LIGHT BASE.
EAST SIDE OF PARKING LOT, SECOND PARKING LOT
SOUTH OF 2333 EAST BELTLINE BUILDING.
ELEVATION : 766.79

_um:sm:mi _.mzamnmvm Easement |

Qﬁv‘
] ]

MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT \

PR VACUUM SUPPORT

"]

o

<
TuRE 2 WiDE CuRB .—. A

—ro——— % — =

#1.1, e e ,lv .*. !

NN~~~

u
i
4

,,
A
|

g

I\\l\. Og <)Q.F_§ SPACES

_lJ,_

~ EXISTING TREELINE (TYP.)




Case 27-23 Site Plan Recommendation
Page 5

Exhibit 2: Egress Easement to East Beltline Avenue




4 LOCATION MAP
R
DRIVE & SHINE ta
! | EIIIE

e WOODLAND DR SE

SITE
LOCATION-
E-Mall-DrSE!

3311 WOODLAND DR SE Pt

| 91823 )

KENTWOOD DRIVE & SHINE

SECTION 11, T.06N, R.11W "’
CITY OF KENTWOOD \
KE N T COUN TYJ M I [ LEGAL DESCRIPTION

PARCEL #: 41-18-11-302-005, 41-18-11-302-004, 41-18-11-302-003

PARCELS 1, 2 AND 3:
LOTS 2, 3 AND 4, PLAT OF WOODLAND MALL, PART OF THE SOUTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 10, TOWN 6

NORTH, RANGE 11 WEST, AND PART OF THE SOUTHWEST 1/4 OF SECTION 11, TOWN 6 NORTH, RANGE
11 WEST, CITY OF KENTWOOD, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN, ACCORDING TO THE PLAT THEROF AS
RECORDED IN LIBER 77 OF PLATS, PAGE 44.

\.

SEPTEMBER 18, 2023

ISSUED FOR: SITE PLAN REVIEW

SHEET INDEX REVISIONS
No. SHEET TITLE No. ISSUED FOR: DATE: BY:
T1.0 TITLE SHEET 0  SITE PLAN REVIEW 09/18/2023 cvk
C0.0 OVERALL SITE PLAN 1
C1.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS 2
C1.1 DEMOLITION PLAN 3 - N
C2.0 SITE LAYOUT 4 UTILITY CONTACTS
C3.0 UTILITY PLAN 5
4.0 GRADING - SESC PLAN CABLE AT&T TELEPHONE AT&T
515,'(? B'\Elzgg‘g APE PLAN 955 36TH ST SE 955 36TH ST SE
GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49508 GRAND RAPIDS, Ml 49508
L2.0 PHOTOMETRIC PLAN 616-510-5768 616-510-5768
WATER CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS SEWER CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS
300 MONROE AVE NW 300 MONROE AVE NW
GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49503 GRAND RAPIDS, Ml 49503
616-456-300 616-456-300
OWNERS: CIVIL ENGINEER:
DEV 2333 BELTLINE AVE AR ENGINEERING, LLC. \
16915 CLEVELAND RD. 5725 VENTURE PARK DRIVE, SUITE A /— GAS DTE ENERGY ELECTRIC CONSUMERS ENERGY
GRANGER, IN 46530 KALAMAZOO, MI 49008 A\ 444 WEALTHY ST SW 176 FULTON ST
TEL. (269) 250-5991  FAX. (866) 569-0604 gfg\g'sg '2/2;’:[)3’ MI 49503 SOROAL\;D? RS/SSP(')DS’ MI 49503
DEVELOPER:
DRIVE & SHINE, INC
16915 CLEVELAND RD. MISS DIG 811
GRANGER, IN 46530
ANDREW ROSSELL. P.E. DATE



AutoCAD SHX Text
SITE LOCATION


N/

AN

THE PRESERVE AT WOODLAND
APARTMENTS

H .

& SN——

v N\

0 30 45 60

™

1inch = 30 ft.

——

IIJJIII|||

FORMER WMU —
BUILDING

—

METER BOX

DRIVE AND SHINE
F.F. 764.50

WOODLAND MALL

WOODLAND DRIVE (41' PRIVATE ROW)

ANNA'S HOUSE

( PLANS PREPARED BY: )

.

AR ENGINEERING

CIVILENGINEERING & SURVEYING

MICHIGAN | INDIANA | ILLINOIS | OHIO
269.250.5991 PHONE | 866.569.0604 FAX
www.arengineeringlic.com

DRAWN: ar
GHECKED: ASR
4 N
\_ Y
(
o s
“ z
w| S :
E| g z
<|® :
Dg é
o
L :
3|,
7| @
2|3 :
h'd )
zZ x
< £
- 5
[a x
w o
= :
@ S
gO\—N(‘O#é
\_
4 N
)]
Z O W
<< O " w
_|;(ZJ W =
o F < ELE
LIJ%LIJ“QE“
5o : 2F
U)%(l) =
- = —
R 82
<< 24 50
Y 8 = =
W w X -9
>§D a7y
™
OD
ij % 3
E 5 &
Y & I E E
kw o O c/)c/))
f JOB NUMBER )

2139006

DATE

09/18/2023
\ J

SHEET NUMBER A

C0.0

T

S




r PLANS PREPARED BY: )
0 30 45 60
(SURVEYOR'S NOTES ) E;!;E
1inch = 30 ft.
1. THE LOCATIONS OF UTILITIES AS SHOWN HEREON ARE BASED ON ABOVE GROUND \
STRUCTURES ONLY. UNDERGROUND UTILITIES/STRUCTURES MAY EXIST ON SUBJECT PARCEL.
ADDITIONAL BURIED UTILITIES/STRUCTURES MAY BE ENCOUNTERED. NO EXCAVATIONS WERE 4 ) A
MADE DURING THIS SURVEY TO LOCATE BURIED UTILITIES/STRUCTURES. BEFORE EXCAVATIONS BENCHMARK INFORMATION L\
BEGIN, MISS DIG SHOULD BE CONTACTED FOR VERIFICATION OF UTILITY TYPES AND FOR FIELD
LOCATIONS.
A AR ENGINEERING
2. SUBSURFACE AND ENVIRONMENTAL CONDITIONS WERE NOT EXAMINED OR CONSIDERED AS CHISELED X ON SW BOLT OF LIGHT POLE, IN PARKING CIVILENGINEERING & SURVEYING
PART OF THIS SURVEY. NO STATEMENT IS MADE CONCERNING THE EXISTENCE OF LOT ISLAND. EAST SIDE OF LOT. SOUTH OF 2333 EAST
UNDERGROUND OR OVERHEAD CONTAINERS OR FACILITIES THAT MAY AFFECT THE USE OR BELTLINE BUILDING ’ MICHIGAN | INDIANA | ILLINOIS | OHIO
DEVELOPMENT OF THIS TRACT. 269.250.5991 PHONE | 866.569.0604 FAX
ELEVATION : 761.73 o
www.arengineeringlic.com
3. PURSUANT TO THE ACCURACY STANDARDS AS ADOPTED BY ALTA AND NSPS AND IN EFFECT ON
THE DATE OF THIS CERTIFICATION, IN THE SURVEYOR'S OPINION, THE RELATIVE POSITIONAL BM-B
PRECISION OF THIS SURVEY DOES NOT EXCEED THAT WHICH IS SPECIFIED THEREIN. CHISELED SQUARE ON NORTH SIDE OF LIGHT BASE, DRAWN: ar
EAST SIDE OF PARKING LOT, SECOND PARKING LOT
4. PARCELS 1, 2, AND 3 ALL LIE WITHIN ZONE C (AREAS OF MINIMAL FLOODING) PER NATIONAL SOUTH OF 2333 EAST BELTLINE BUILDING CHECKED: ASR
FLOOD INSURANCE RATES MAPS WITH COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 260107-0010B (EFFECTIVE : : \\
DATE OF 11/18/81) AND COMMUNITY PANEL NUMBER 260106-0020C (EFFECTIVE DATE OF kE'-EVAT'ON 1 766.79
11/5/82). J
5. THE PORTION OF PARCEL 1 HAS 167 PARKING SPACES AND 16 DISABLED PARKING SPACES. THE é )
PARKING SPACES ON PARCEL 3 WERE INDISTINGUISHABLE AT TIME OF SURVEY.
6.  PARCELS 1, 2 AND 3 ARE CONTIGUOUS AND HAVE NO GAPS OR GORES. COMBINED PARCEL o I
AREA IS 10.8 ACRES, MORE OR LESS. PARCEL 4 F 757
41-18-11-100-069
7. PROPERTY CORNERS SHOWN AS SET ARE 5/8" X 18" IRON BARS WITH RED PLASTIC CAPS 9333 EAST BELTLINE AVENUE SE
MARKED "FTCH PS 52479" OR AS NOTED. PROPERTY CORNERS SHOWN AS FOUND ARE AS 758 (2.9 ACRES)
NOTED ON SURVEY DRAWING. : _ ) .
8.  BASIS OF BEARING: EAST-WEST 1/4 LINE, SECTION 11, TOWN 6 NORTH, RANGE 11 WEST, CITY OF | 158
GRAND RAPIDS, KENT COUNTY, MICHIGAN PER WARRANTY DEED RECORDED IN LIBER 2095,
PAGE 405, KENT COUNTY RECORDS. e
—_— —— - - - - - —
9. VERTICAL DATUM: NAVD 88, GPS DERIVED 7sj ©
T <
o
10. A PORTION OF WOODLAND DRIVE WAS LOCATED USING AERIAL IMAGERY. B -
\ ) I | L |
I T e —_—— T T =7 _ == \_ )
’
(—
~ Y Y — POB, PARCEL 4
S87°20'40"E 771.54' r>- :
= Y e SIS m| &
[:—_:_‘ __________________ 371.54' 887 2OI4O”E 371 54| 765\ 210' -~. — 2 LID
————————— py—— r 470.23' 761 z
767 =-220.00' ser2040€ L\~ = ___N87°2120'W (P) N87°2040'W (M) 2 VARVAR ™ z
768 T SIS~ 766 — e °5)140)" 62— ¥ ] w
_________________________ = - — N87°20'40"W ] ] I3\ g
760 707 T D R ~ ll-'_J < 5
§§§§§§ _ —770- — Lhed — - ——— 65\766_ —_—— = = — P 762_%1___—————- < & o
| T - o U — __’_,l_,——7777? ———————— — 787768 ¢4 /7 /—*-—————’—_—7607?ng Al o
B , T —— = —— 1 i SOUTH LINE OF NORTHWEST 1/4, SECTION 11— — — = /9%~ ——— —— i/ > 3
———— i B e el e R T - 773 _1 g
l \\— __________________________ N TSNS T T LT = ——=— AT ——=— =TT Il | Y %
= I | _ Y i &
_______________ : P — N — :
— METER BOX A ) z
— — v 1 z
[N R 14 3
—————— | z
== | | e
| A 2
L o 3
l | O =
25'X 36' | |18 T s
SALT | @ a Q
STORAGE '| LR m :
/ © &
! || fizcPp (RIS < 8 E A
f | INv.758.79 IR = s £
| [ || 2| w — | w S
| 13 & x %
Lo 8 Z g
l B 5 3 :
PARCEL b1 = o g
4118.11.005.004 — PARCEL 1 ol | z Lu o
-18-11-302- _ 41-18-11-302-005 AN W x— ) &
766 3311 W??E/'é’;‘égR'VE SE e 3343 WOODLAND DRIVE SE 61113 il b 3 DUMPSTER @ g
| R PARCEL 3 . _ (1.6 ACRES) B L) \ % ENCLOSURE 8
f | \ 41-18-11-302-003 - ) _ ®- o _ __‘ § || :
24" CONCRETE 3277 WOODLAND DRIVE SE = = | — — — " i 1 FENCE IS Slo|«w|a|w|<]8
S ¢ | FLAREDEND (1.5 ACRES) = S = 7 3¢ - N 0.2 EAST < i
= SECTION e — — — I WS — — s LTV iR OF R \ §
S L INV.75658 - — — = — 18, — —— |= 2> ! |
& Pl T —— 8T T — —785— — o - MR
_ 1o 1 _— [Tel B2 « .l |
8ls \ —— i 1 A3 - SR
-5|2 \ Ble 218 T | R é )
[ _J/ EJ/ \ ll:g " g :_.:)/ -7 l || \
N\ ) E \ LOT 4 5  STM 60770 __ 15'ST™M - - w’ 60768 \ AT L
. o 'STM = ___@_—— -
-~ R \ 18" STM PLAT OE \LVOODLAND Eﬂéu' & R § PLAT OF le')C())TDzLAND MALL L \
— 60772 LOT 3 S | |
PLAT OF WOODLAND MALL | I
EXISTING STRUCTURES \ | |’ | f |EDGE OF ASPHALT PARKING
STRUCTURE RIM @ PIPE DIR. INVERT NOTES \ | | DPBSCURED BY SNOW AT TIME
[ :
30035 753.99 6"W 741.79 4' PRECAST \ __I | OF SURVEY
6" NE 741.59 ) \2% l _____________________ / (D e
30036 747.14 12" RCP SSE 744.44 DOMED CB/FLOODED ) o — Z O w
30229 756.58 4'PVCE 752.48 2' PRECAST/DOMED 1 \ l —————————————————————————————— O O o Ww
4 PVCW 752.48 -~ | —_— O w <
. @ @ INGRESS & EGR — < Zz Y=
30232 756.73 3" METAL SW 755.53 4' PRECAST - —— l EASEMENT — I_ — E m
. Y Y Y L. 2095, P. 405 - -
+ OPPE ——— Y ¥ Y Y Y Y Y%Y CoNSUMERS For L. 2540, P. 1260 Q E Wb AZ2
6"'PVC S 752.23 - — - ~
: ittt - COMPANY EASEMENT / e \ o Z N'd Z Q-
6"PVCN 750.83 N l_
. Y Y Y ¥ oMot = L. 2114, P. 541 / 7/ _ O w I <ZE
8'PVCE 752.03 G ey e - _ _— -
UTILITY EASEMENT T s — / —_— O =z ) N
; ; —_— 7 \ ELECTRIC -
12'RCP W 750.93 L. 3169, P. 1351 762 / — EQUIPMENT — w D <~
BOTTOM 749.23 I - — — ] CABINET (D L L O £
40012 753.72 6"'PVC E 752.47 2' PLASTIC — - - // (D O O
I o3 > ~
6'PVC W 752.37 DIRT IN BOTTOM ___________————————-———‘—_—_—‘ - e —_—— — 7/——— _— _— E ; 5
MAYBEALEACHBASN | /| A =, o NS o ke s S e T T T = e e kT T el ‘__, APPROX. Ic/_) L A T w
40048 751.00 24"RCP W 744.60 4 BLOCK B T T [ — e ——————— —‘1 - LOCATION OF —_— 2 n N
24"RCP S 744.55 , SIGN EASEMENT - >< D: ™
- T = 203.47 a R R/W _— D
BOTTOM 742.75 —_— — — — - R/W R/W - , LL]
G E  N89s6E (P) N 89°5640'E (M) UNDERGROUND UTILIT
60153 753.02 12" RCP SE 748.72 4' PRECAST AN U)/\A/ ——— A WV} EASEMENT
18'PVC N 748.72 ) 632.98 (P&M) L. 2109, P. 901
60398 755.86 3" PVC SSE 751.41 4' PRECAST UNDERGROUND UTILITY EASEMENT
' _ L. 77 OF PLATS, P. 44 L=36.45' R=374.00-(F&M)
12" RCP NW 750.76 ™ _ L. 2194,P. 15 CH=NB87°0905'E (M) 36.44' (M)
12" RCP E 750.66 ¥@ UTILITY EASEMENT = — — = —
60768 763.81 12" RCP NE 756.86 4' PRECAST ~ PLATL.77,P. 44 - WOODLAND DRIVE (41' PRIVATE ROW)
15"RCP W 758.71 / -
BOTTOM 756.51 yd - i
60770 763.54 15'RCP E 757.79 4 PRECAST = 1 2 35
18" RCP W 757.74 = 5 x 5
- a L
BOTTOM 755.34 o m o B < o
L L L
60772 763.85 18"RCP E 756.60 4' PRECAST u IiJ 8 | [
k %) o (@) n 0 J
18" RCP W 756.50 N\
BOTTOM 754.75
60773 764.34 24"RCP N 755.04 8' PRECAST WITH 60774 f w
18'RCP E 755.04 JOB NUMBER
2"TO 3" ORIFICE 755.04
T 2139006
60774 764.35 2"TO 3" ORIFICE 754.85
28"RCP S 755.05 DATE
61113 763.29 12'S 760.14 4' PRECAST Know what's helow.
BOTTOM 758.19 ® ca“befmewudig_ 09/1 8/2023
70000 755.15 3'CPP S 751.35 \_ )
12" PVC NW 750.75
ALL UTILITIES AS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS DERIVED N
FROM ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS AND AVAILABLE RECORDS. THEY SHEET NUMBER
SHOULD NOT BE INTERPRETED TO BE EXACT LOCATION NOR
SHOULD IT BE ASSUMED THAT THEY ARE THE ONLY UTILITIES IN THE
AREA. FIELD WORK PERFORMED BY: FISHBECK C 1 O
n



AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
  

AutoCAD SHX Text
   

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
SOUTH LINE OF NORTHWEST 1/4, SECTION 11


DEMOLITION NOTES

(LEGEND

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO ALL LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS, RULES
AND REGULATIONS IN FORCE AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL
PERMITS, PERMIT COSTS, TAP FEES, METER DEPOSITS, PERMANENT UTILITY
APPLICATIONS, BONDS, AND OTHER FEES REQUIRED FOR PROPOSED WORK. THIS
SHALL INCLUDE, BUT SHALL NOT BE LIMITED TO THOSE REQUIRED BY THE CITY OF
KENTWOOD, MICHIGAN AND KENT COUNTY.

CONTACT "811" FOR LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES A MINIMUM OF 48
HOURS BEFORE COMMENCING EXCAVATION WORK. THIS DOES NOT RELIEVE THE
CONTRACTOR OF THE RESPONSIBILITY OF NOTIFYING UTILITY OWNERS WHO ARE
NOT PART OF THE "MISS DIG" ALERT SYSTEM. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONDUCT
HIS OPERATIONS IN A MANNER AS TO ENSURE THAT THOSE UTILITIES NOT
REQUIRING RELOCATION WILL NOT BE DISTURBED.

DEMOLISH & REMOVE ALL EXISTING SITE FEATURES AS REQUIRED.

ALL SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO
DEMOLITION.

ALL EXCAVATION SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TECHNICAL
SPECIFICATIONS AND GEOTECHNICAL REPORT FOR THIS SITE BY.

ALL EXISTING ELEVATIONS ARE TO BE VERIFIED AND ACCEPTED AS SHOWN PRIOR
TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.

CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE PRECAUTIONS TO AVOID TRACKING SOIL ONTO
ADJACENT ROADWAYS. CONTRACTOR SHALL SWEEP IMMEDIATELY IF OCCURS.

ANY DISTURBED AREA WHICH WILL BE LEFT UNWORKED 15 DAYS OR LONGER MUST
BE SEEDED TO ESTABLISH VEGETATION FOR TEMPORARY STABILIZATION. BASINS
TO BE SEEDED AND MULCH BLANKETS APPLIED IMMEDIATELY TO PROVIDE A
STABLE BASE AND AVOID EXCESSIVE EROSION.

REVIEW ALL THE REMOVALS AND PROTECTION WITH OWNER PRIOR TO
COMMENCING CONSTRUCTION. INSTALL TEMPORARY SNOW FENCE AROUND ALL
TREES REQUIRING PROTECTION. SNOW FENCE SHALL BE PLACED AT EDGE OF DRIP
LINE.

SAWCUT ALL CURB, SIDEWALK, AND PAVEMENTS PRIOR TO REMOVAL. ADDITIONAL
SAWCUT MAY BE NECESSARY PRIOR TO REPLACEMENT TO ENSURE CLEAN EDGE.

ALL REMOVALS SHALL BE TAKEN OFF-SITE AND DISPOSED OF PROPERLY. NO
STOCKPILE OR BURNING OF DEBRIS IS ALLOWED.

ALL REMOVALS SHALL BE TO THE LIMITS INDICATED ABOVE UNLESS OTHERWISE
DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. UNAUTHORIZED REMOVALS AND SUBSEQUENT
REPLACEMENT SHALL BE AT THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

REMOVE, STORE, AND RESET ANY EXISTING SIGNS AS DIRECTED BY THE
ENGINEER/OWNER.

REMOVE ALL TREES TO THE CLEARING LIMITS AS SHOWN. REMOVE ALL EXISTING
TREES, STUMPS AND BRUSH FROM THE SITE AS NECESSARY TO CONSTRUCT THE
IMPROVEMENTS.

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DEMOLISH AND REMOVE ANY ITEMS REMAINING FROM
THE EXISTING BUILDING, IN ITS ENTIRETY, INCLUDING WALLS, FOUNDATIONS AND
FOOTINGS. ALL BUILDING DRAINS AND UTILITY LEADS SHALL BE LOCATED AND
PROPERLY PLUGGED. UTILITY LEAD WORK SHALL BE COORDINATED WITH THE
APPROPRIATE UTILITY COMPANY.

BACKFILL EXCAVATED AREAS WITH CLEAN GRANULAR FILL COMPACTED TO 95% OF
THE MATERIAL UNIT WEIGHT BY MODIFIED PROCTOR.

CONTROL SHALL BE MAINTAINED OVER THE SITE AND OPERATION TO ELIMINATE
HAZARDS TO THE PUBLIC. NAILS OR OTHER TIRE PUNCTURING ITEMS SHALL NOT
BE DROPPED ON STREETS, ALLEYS AND ADJACENT PROPERTY. PUBLIC STREETS,
CURBS AND SIDEWALKS SHALL BE PROTECTED FROM DAMAGE. THE PERSON
ENGAGED IN THE DEMOLITION WORK SHALL BE LIABLE FOR ANY AND ALL DAMAGE
TO CURBS, STREETS, SIDEWALKS AND OTHER PUBLIC OR PRIVATE PROPERTY AND
FOR ANY BODILY INJURY OCCURRING AS A RESULT OF THE DEMOLITION WORK.

J

EXISTING STRUCTURES
STRUCTURE RIM @ PIPE DIR. INVERT NOTES

30035 753.99 6"W 741.79 4' PRECAST

6" NE 741.59

30036 74714 12" RCP SSE 744.44 DOMED CB/FLOODED

30229 756.58 4"PVCE 752.48 2' PRECAST/DOMED

4"PVCW 752.48

30232 756.73 3" METAL SW 755.53 4' PRECAST

4"CPPE 754.28

6"PVC S 752.23

6"PVC N 750.83

8"PVCE 752.03

12" RCP W 750.93

BOTTOM 749.23

40012 753.72 6"PVCE 752.47 2'PLASTIC

6"PVC W 752.37 DIRT IN BOTTOM

MAY BE A LEACH BASIN
40048 751.00 24"RCP W 744.60 4'BLOCK

24"RCP S 744.55

BOTTOM 742.75

60153 753.02 12" RCP SE 748.72 4' PRECAST

18"PVC N 748.72

60398 755.86 3"PVC SSE 751.41 4' PRECAST

12" RCP NW 750.76

12"RCP E 750.66

60768 763.81 12" RCP NE 758.86 4' PRECAST

15" RCP W 758.71

BOTTOM 756.51

60770 763.54 15"RCP E 757.79 4' PRECAST

18" RCP W 757.74

BOTTOM 755.34

60772 763.85 18" RCP E 756.60 4' PRECAST

18" RCP W 756.50

BOTTOM 754.75

60773 764.34 24"RCP N 755.04 8' PRECAST WITH 60774

18"RCP E 755.04

2"TO 3" ORIFICE 755.04

BOTTOM 755.04
60774 764.35 2"TO 3" ORIFICE 754.85

28"RCP S 755.05

61113 763.29 12'S 760.14 4' PRECAST

BOTTOM 758.19
70000 755.15 3"CPP S 751.35

12" PVC NW 750.75

VA A A A4

D
®
®

PAVEMENT REMOVAL

BUILDING REMOVAL

SAWCUT

TREE REMOVAL

REMOVE

PROTECT

LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION
CURB & GUTTER REMOVAL
UTILITY LINE REMOVAL

0 40 60 80

o ™

1inch = 40 ft.

\ é PLANS PREPARED BY:

1

fBENCHMARK INFORMATION

N

~

BM-A
BELTLINE BUILDING
ELEVATION : 761.73
BM-B

SOUTH OF 2333 EAST BELTLINE BUILDING.
ELEVATION : 766.79

\

CHISELED X ON SW BOLT OF LIGHT POLE, IN PARKING
LOT ISLAND, EAST SIDE OF LOT, SOUTH OF 2333 EAST

CHISELED SQUARE ON NORTH SIDE OF LIGHT BASE, DRAWN:
EAST SIDE OF PARKING LOT, SECOND PARKING LOT

www.arengineeringlic.com

A\
AR ENGINEERING

CIVILENGINEERING & SURVEYING

MICHIGAN | INDIANA | ILLINOIS | OHIO
269.250.5991 PHONE | 866.569.0604 FAX

ar

GHECKED: ASR

J

GAS

REMOVE EXISTING - T T T T

WALL, SIGN, LANDSCAPING AND
PROTECT EXISTING
K LIGHT POLES
AV

LIGHT POLES

REMOVE EXISTING —
PAVEMENT MARKINGS,
CURB AND GUTTER

[l
7

AND GUARDRAILS

I I I I I I I
SAWCUT PAVEMENT FOR
DRIVE CONNECTION

12" CPP
INV. 758.79

24" CONCRETE
FLARED END
SECTION

INV. 756.58

—

_—
/

60774 (s

00—

24" STM

60773

=,

28' STM

—o

REMOVE EXISTING WALLS

WEST RQW LINE QF EAQLBELTLINE ] e ——— —— —

o

— L

REMOVE EXISTING
LIGHT POLES

REMOVE EXISTING
WALL

, REMOVE EXISTING TREES s

—}— REMOVE EXISTING LIGHT POLES,
1. POST, ELECTRICAL BOX, AND W
CURB AND GUTTER

ANE

ik
ARAEK M}*“&J\_j/&)\/\// Ty A

. ! ) \ V}\_/‘L % N A _/”\‘,7)§ l‘\;//\//\_) N Nan'dh-
NG — |

N
1 \ PROTECT EX STING ELECTRICAL I
BOX AND WATER LINE REMOVE EXISTING

l ‘ LIGHT POLES

|
|

REMOVE EXISTING
SALT STORAGE BUILDI

EXISTING PAVEMENT REMOVE EXISTING @_ O AAA o ;
TO REMAIN L ﬁ!/_‘ LIGHT POLES ——\_—\_W ) o

pa— . ——

/////6///////
i i

( 'l REMOVE EX

|| VALVE

REMOVE EXISTING
STORM STRUCTURES
AND LIGHT POLES

REMOVE EXISTING STORM STRUCTURES

‘ PROTECT EXISTING
LIGHT POLES

SAWCUT CLEAN EDGE FOR /
PAVEMENT CONNECTION

WOODLAND DRIVE (41' PRIVATE ROW)

ISTING UNDERGROUND

ELECTRICAL BOX AND IRRIGATION

w
40012

[{— REMOVE EXISTING CURB
AND GUTTER

ELECTRIC

EQUIPMENT

CABINET

PROTECT EXISTING
STORM STRUCTURES
ELECTRICAL BOX AND
FIRE HYDRANT

Know what's helow.
>  Gallbefore you dig.

r

\.

sy [

ar

DATE
09/18/2023

ISSUED FOR:

SITE PLAN REVIEW

REPRODUCTION, COPYING OR OTHER USE OF THIS DRAWING WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT IS PROHIBITED © AR ENGINEERING ~ 2023

) ( No.

DRIVE & SHINE, INC
3311 WOODLAND DRIVE SE

DEMOLITION PLAN
DRIVE & SHINE KENTWOOD

SHEET TITLE:
PROJECT:
CLIENT:

SITE ADDRESS:
SITE SECTION

SECTION 12, T11N, R11E

J

é JOB NUMBER

2139006

J
w

DATE

L 09/18/2023

J

ALL UTILITIES AS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS DERIVED
FROM ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS AND AVAILABLE RECORDS. THEY
SHOULD NOT BE INTERPRETED TO BE EXACT LOCATION NOR

SHOULD IT BE ASSUMED THAT THEY ARE THE ONLY UTILITIES IN THE

AREA. FIELD WORK PERFORMED BY: FISHBECK

SHEET NUMBER

“

\

v, C1.1



AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS


/7

\

WOODLAND DRIVE (41' PRIVATE ROW)

g

( \ ( \ f \ 0 30 45 60
SITE DATA SITE PLAN NOTES LEGEND GENERAL NOTES EE;E
1inch = 30 ft.
1. PROPERTY INFORMATION: 4. PARKING: CONCRETE PAVEMENT (SEE DETAIL SHEET). 10' X 10' VACUUM ENCLOSURE (SEE ARCHITECTURAL STANDARD CONCRETE PAVEMENT 1. DIMENSIONS TAKE PRECEDENCE OVER SCALE. CONTRACTOR ne
PARCEL #8S: 41-18-11-302-003, 41-18-11-302-004, & VEHICLE WASH = 1 SPACE FOR EACH EMPLOYEE PLANS). SEE DETAIL SHEET TO VERIFY ALL DIMENSIONS IN FIELD.
41-18-11-302-005 6 EMPLOYEES = 6 SPACES 13'X 10" (MIN.) - DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE (SEE ( )
REQUIRED = 1 PARKING SPACE PER 250 SF. ARCHITECTURAL PLANS). [Q] 3-6'X22-11" STAINLESS CURB BY OWNER, INSTALLED BY 2. IF ANY ERRORS, DISCREPANCIES, OR OMISSIONS BECOME
SITE AREA: 196,020 SF (4.5 AC) OF GROSS FLOOR AREA CONTRACTOR. APPARENT, THESE SHALL BE BROUGHT TO THE ATTENTION
19,822 SF/250 = 79.3 = 79 INTEGRAL CURB/WALK (SEE DETAIL SHEET). BLACK PIGMENT DYED CONCRETE OF THE ARCHITECT/ ENGINEER PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION OF
OWNER: DEV 2333 BELTLINE AVE CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER - MDOT DETAIL F4 (SEE PAVEMENT W/ FIBER REBAR 1' O.C. ANYTHING AFFECTED SO THAT CLARIFICATION OR REDESIGN
16915 CLEVELAND RD. PROVIDED = STANDARD 9'X18' SPACES EXIT GATE (SEE DETAIL SHEET). DETAIL SHEET). MAY OCCUR.
GRANGER, IN 46530 (6 FUTURE VACUUM SPACES) = 22 RS
DEVELOPER: DRIVE & SHINE, INC BARRIER FREE SPACES = 2 A SIGN PERMIT IS REQUIRED FOR ALL NEW SIGNAGE - B CURB TO BE PROVIDED WHERE SHOWN AND INTEGRAL WITH
16915 CLEVELAND RD. TOTAL PROVIDED 34 APPLICATION WILL BE SUBMITTED AFTER SITE PLAN 10-6" X 22'-11" STAINLESS CURB BY OWNER, INSTALLED L1 SIDEWALK AT PAVING EDGE.
GRANGER, IN 46530 *DEFERRED PARKING ALLOWED BY ZONING APPROVAL. BY CONTRACTOR. T -
ADMINISTRATOR ST CONCRETE SIDEWALK 4. SLOPE GRADES UNIFORMLY BETWEEN ELEVATIONS SHOWN.
2. ZONING: BUILDING SIGN. 6" BARRIER CURB - MDOT E2 (SEE DETAIL SHEET). AN (SEE DETAIL SHEET) NOMINAL GRADING, SLOPE SIDEWALKS AWAY FROM BUILDING
PROPERTY CURRENTLY ZONED: 5. BUILDING: AP AT 1/4" PER FOOT ON ENTRY WALK.
C-3 REGIONAL COMMERGIAL SINGLE-STORY (28-1") ENTRY GATE. 2 WIDE 2 DEEP PINNED TO CURB AND (2) #5 BAR #3 FIBERGLASS REBAR 1' O.C. (LOOPS \- /
ABUTTING PROPERTY CURRENTLY ZONED: MAXIMUM HEIGHT: N/A HORIZONTAL THE ENTIRE LENGTH (FOR VACUUM o
NORTH: CITY OF GRAND RAPIDS TOTAL AREA OF 23,400 SFT. (SEE FLOOR PLAN AND ATTENDANT SHELTER (SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS). SUPPORT). PROVIDED BY OWNER, INSTALLED BY
NOS-NEIGHBORHOOD OFFICE SERVICE & ELEVATIONS FOR MORE DETAIL.) % ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR) ) ~ ~N\
MDR MIXED DENSITY REDISENTIAL PROPOSED BUILDING COVERAGE: 12% [l.] CANOPY SHELTER (SEE ARCHITECTURAL PLANS). 3-6" X 3-6" LPR STAINLESS CURB BY OWNER, INSTALLED BENCHMARK INFORMATION
SOUTH: C-3 REGIONAL COMMERCIAL MAXIMUM BUILDING COVERAGE: 75% BY CONTRACTOR (SEE DETAIL SHEET).
EAST:  C-3 REGIONAL COMMERCIAL BOLLARDS - (24) TOTAL (TYP.).
WEST:  C-3 REGIONAL COMMERCIAL 6. LOT: 3-6" X 3-6" LPR CURB FORMED AND INSTALLED BY BM-A
MINIMUM LOT SIZE: 11,050 SFT DOWNSPOUT (TYP.). CONTRACTOR (SEE DETAIL SHEET), NO STAINLESS CURB CHISELED X ON SW BOLT OF LIGHT POLE, IN PARKING
PROPOSED LAND USE = VEHICLE WASH MINIMUM LOT WIDTH: 85' FOR THIS LPR. LOT ISLAND, EAST SIDE OF LOT, SOUTH OF 2333 EAST
*REZONED TO CONDITIONAL C-2 COMMUNITY COMMERCIAL LOT SIZE: 196,020 SFT/ 4.5 ACRES PAINT/ STRIPING (SEE DETAIL SHEET) (TYP.). BELTLINE BUILDING
ON 12/06/2022 LOT DIMENSIONS: IRREGULAR GUARDRAIL. ELEVATION : 761.73
[M] 4" PAINTED PARKING LOT MARKING/ STRIPING (TYP.).
3. SETBACKS 7. LANDSCAPING: XPT ENCLOSURES PROVIDED BY OWNER, INSTALLED BY BM-B
FRONT = 35' SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH LANDSCAPING PLAN. LIGHT POLE (SEE L2.0 PHOTOMETRIC SHEET) (TYP.). CONTRACTOR. VERIFY LOCATION WITH OWNER. (SEE CHISELED SQUARE ON NORTH SIDE OF LIGHT BASE,
SIDES = NONE WHEN ADJACENT TO C-2,C-3.I-1 OR ARCHITECTURAL PLANS). EAST SIDE OF PARKING LOT, SECOND PARKING LOT
I-2 8. STORM WATER DETENTION REQUIRED: 6' DIA. FLAG POLE BASE. FLAG POLE AND HARDWARE BY SOUTH OF 2333 EAST BELTLINE BUILDING.
REAR = 30' (50' AGAINST RESIDENTIAL STORM WATER MANAGEMENT SHALL BE IN OWNER, CONTRACTOR TO INSTALL BASE AND FLAG POLE. 1' MOUNTABLE CURB (SEE DETAIL SHEET). ELEVATION : 766.79
ACCORDANCE WITH COUNTY STORM WATER (SEE DETAIL SHEET). \_ _J
GUIDELINES. CONCRETE CURB AND GUTTER - MDOT DETAIL C2 (SEE
\_ < DETAIL SHEET). y
| | n | [ ]
l - j:,'\‘ ']* — - ——— —— ——— —— ——— — r—ars
) L L L | L | L
l ) MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT MATCH EXISTING
§ | 7 \ CURB AND GUTTER \
[ p %, & X
[ >F
|| sl
_ L 20' Q‘{o i h | |
L S Y VN VEVEN
D =
| ' — N \ —\
EXISTING TREELINE (TYP.) |f & zZ ]
N 5 - H i 1 » >— _
> O -
L ) I o W w © C -
® 2 D
~~ \__/ —A—A = ->
-’ N<
~ U - EXISTING TREELINE (TYP.)
| 18 )
N 5 N % ) =]
D u = | 4
’ S e = EQUIP. ROOM o
\ EQUIP. ROOM K At
% n
l R55: E 6(\1 .
| , S
EXISTING STORMWATER =
DETENTION BASIN ﬂ
. — m
m ok
=00 I _Em
= _— L
' B SHINE =
, i DRIVE AND
- —T|T ; EZ] %) : i T |
; — " L FUTURE 2' WIDE CURB C S o | ] - OUTDOOR VACUUM SPACES
- = i —— FOR VACUUM SUPPORT 8 4o v} © =
J__’_ a [T L -
. \J = \&) f=—18—" %«, L5 %/148 8 |
= l =
O
4 <
~ L«
4 ) 4 9
4 N n
7 Ll
£ o
b £
% ~ =0 N
s - (oNe]
o 170"
| ‘)‘/- EXISTING TREELINE (TYP.)
|
MATCH EXISTING —
_—
/
_—
_—

Know what's helow.
>  Gallbefore you dig.

ALL UTILITIES AS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS DERIVED
FROM ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS AND AVAILABLE RECORDS. THEY
SHOULD NOT BE INTERPRETED TO BE EXACT LOCATION NOR

SHOULD IT BE ASSUMED THAT THEY ARE THE ONLY UTILITIES IN THE

AREA. FIELD WORK PERFORMED BY: FISHBECK

~/

( PLANS PREPARED BY: )

N

AR ENGINEERING

CIVILENGINEERING & SURVEYING

MICHIGAN | INDIANA | ILLINOIS | OHIO
269.250.5991 PHONE | 866.569.0604 FAX
www.arengineeringlic.com

DRAWN: ar
GHECKED: ASR
4 N
\_ Y
(
o s
-
w| S :
E| g z
< |2 ¥
() g é
o
L B
) 2
w 2
2| 3 ;
- 8
Z x
:
[a x
w o
= .
@ S
g o ~ N (42] ﬁ'é
& ['4
4 N
)]
S, Hu
SQ wt
= £ 2 25
- X -
O Ly oZ
> 5 f 2F
L -
<% S o
w LD 8z
F 2% 60
— o5 = =F
»n Ly Eﬁi
> 0 <
oY ™
)]

-8 & 8 3
W 3 & woow
\% E 8 & 5
f JOB NUMBER )
DATE
09/18/2023
\_ y
( SHEET NUMBER )

Y,




( \ é PLANS PREPARED BY: )
0 30 45 60

(SITE MATERIALS & CONSTRUCTION NOTES A fUTILITY PLAN NOTES h E;!_-E

1inch = 30 ft.

GAS SERVICE. }

| e \@JLW’M' —
A . A\
S NG [ AR ENGINEERING

CIVIL ENGINEERING & SURVEYING
269.250.5991 PHONE | 866.569.0604 FAX

BENCHES
DRAWN: ar
 —

1. SOILS EXPOSED IN THE BASE OF ALL SATISFACTORY FOUNDATION EXCAVATIONS SHOULD BE WATER SERVICE. COORDINATE
PROTECTED AGAINST ANY DETRIMENTAL CHANGES IN CONDITION SUCH AS FROM DISTURBANCE, RAIN CONNECTION WITH PLUMBING PLANS.
AND FREEZING. SURFACE RUN-OFF WATER SHOULD BE DRAINED AWAY FROM THE EXCAVATION AND
NOT ALLOWED TO POND. IF POSSIBLE, ALL FOOTING CONCRETE SHOULD BE POURED THE SAME DAY 611 LF TO EXISTING WATERMAIN - 6" D.I.
THE EXCAVATION IS MADE. IF THIS IS NOT PRACTICAL, THE FOOTING EXCAVATIONS SHOULD BE CL 52 WATER SERVICE, CONNECT TO
ADEQUATELY PROTECTED. EXISTING WATER MAIN. COORDINATE

WITH THE CITY OF KENTWOOD- (616)
2. REMOVE ALL SUBGRADE GRADE MATERIAL THAT MAY BE SOFTENED BY RAINS, FREEZING, OR 554-0734

CONSTRUCTION TRAFFIC, ETC. AND REPLACE WITH COMPACTED GRANULAR FILL.

ROOF DRAIN/DOWNSPOUT (TYP).

3" PVC CONDUIT FOR IRRIGATION LINE.

SANITARY CLEAN OUT.

FHEOEE

OIL WATER SEPARATOR (SEE DETAIL

SEWER LATERAL. COORDINATE SHEET).

3. STORM SEWER SHALL BE CORRUGATED HDPE PIPE WITH SMOOTH INTERIOR WALL, BY ADS OR EQUAL. CONNECTION WITH PLUMBING PLANS.
LEACHING BASINS AND MANHOLES ARE TO BE REINFORCED CONCRETE WITH RIM AND SLOTTED
GRATING (AS SHOWN). STORM SEWER & LEACHING BASINS ARE TO BE WRAPPED WITH FILTER FABRIC. CONNECT TO EXISTING SANITARY MAIN.

COORDINATE WITH THE CITY OF 24" WIDE S300K 8" ACO POWERDRAIN

4. SANITARY SEWER PIPE MAY BE PVC SDR 3034 MATERIAL. KENTWOOD - (616) 554-0734 SLOPED TO CENTER DRAIN OUTLET.

FIRE HYDRANT.

EHi

www.arengineeringlic.com
GHECKED: ASR
5. ALL WATER SERVICE LINES SHALL BE 6" D.I. PIPE WITHIN 5' OF BUILDING, WITH COMPRESSION FITTINGS

OR MECHANICAL FITTINGS OTHER THAN FLARED ENDS. PROVIDE 5' COVER FROM FINISHED GRADE.

ELECTRIC SERVICE.

CONNECT TO EXISTING
GAS LINE

( )
_ M — -

GROUND TRANSFORMER.

©] &

TELEPHONE SERVICE.
6. PROVIDE MINIMUM 5' COVER FROM FINISHED GRADE FOR ALL WATER SERVICE LINES, IF COVER \_
CANNOT BE MAINTAINED DUE TO SITE CONDITIONS OR INVERT ELEVATIONS THE ENTIRE LENGTH OF
THE EXTERIOR PIPE MUST BE PROTECTED WITH 2" RIGID INSULATION BOARD ON THE TOP AND SIDES.

7.  PROVIDE MINIMUM 5' COVER FROM FINISHED GRADE FOR ALL SANITARY SEWER LINES, IF COVER
CANNOT BE MAINTAINED DUE TO SITE CONDITIONS OR INVERT ELEVATIONS THE ENTIRE LENGTH OF
THE EXTERIOR PIPE MUST BE PROTECTED WITH 2" RIGID INSULATION BOARD ON THE TOP AND SIDES.

(N V2
£

8. MAINTAIN 10 FOOT MINIMUM HORIZONTAL SEPARATION BETWEEN THE SEWER AND WATER MAIN
UTILITIES. PROVIDE 18" MINIMUM VERTICAL SEPARATION WHERE UTILITIES CROSS.

{

9. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL INSTALL A PEDESTRIAN FENCE AROUND ALL EXCAVATIONS TO BE LEFT OPEN

I
I
I
I
GAS LINE FOR TUBE HEATER. I
I
I
I
I
OVERNIGHT AS REQUIRED.

10. EXTERIOR CONCRETE SHALL HAVE A COMPRESSIVE STRENGTH OF 4000 PSI AND SHALL HAVE
LIMESTONE AGGREGATE AND SHALL HAVE 4 - 6 % AIR ENTRAINMENT WITH A BROOM FINISH.

|- co-1s *\ *
11. EXPANSION JOINTS IN CONCRETE PAVEMENT AND WALLS SHALL BE 1/2" ASPHALT IMPREGNATED FULL L

DEPTH 40' O.C. MAXIMUM & AT SIDEWALK INTERSECTIONS. CRACK CONTROL SCORING AT SIDEWALK
WIDTH DIMENSION AND @ 10-0" O.C. IN DRIVES.

\.

- J

|
4 ™ | \ ' N AN NAAAANNNY| T
GENERAL NOTES \ \J\)J S CTUOE 16450
|
|
|
|

sy [

ar

UTILITY CROSSING —{ TOP/WTR: 756.16
GRADE: 764.00 MAINTAIN 18" SEPARATION l

BTM/STM: 758.85
TOP/WTR: 757.35 CB-13
MAINTAIN 18" SEPARATION ||

1. ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO ALL LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS IN
FORCE AT TIME OF CONSTRUCTION.

L3
([]
|
Y Y Y Y

:
I

DATE

09/18/2023

- §
— e e c—
137'- 12" HDPE @ 0.30% \

a0

e 24'- 15" HDPE @ 0.30%
UTILITY CROSSING
NG

B/STM: 758.82 .
TOP/SAN: 758.08 SMH-3 84 -8 SDR 35 @0.40%

-
~N—

COORDINATE INVERT ELEVATIONS [ c
WITH PLUMBING PLAN N -
© I.E. 757.98 |

2. ELECTRICAL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A STATE OF MICHIGAN LICENSED ELECTRICIAN
ACCORDING TO THE N.F.P.A. NATIONAL ELECTRICAL CODE AS MODIFIED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN.
FURNISH AND INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND LABOR TO PROVIDE A COMPLETE WORKING SYSTEM.

. Aty
]

w
Q
>
&
it
7]
wi
[
i
a
o
~
&

@ 1.00%
@ 1.00%

(e
(@)
CB
— m

DR 35

< .
3 e 196~ 12" HDPE @ 1.18%=

S

i‘ > 458 SDR35 @0.40%
———L

0
- i aVy
——— (=} ————

o

M 3 o
4 K;A o o = b - -
3 S ‘ 0O

47'- 12" HDPE @ 5.92% — @

—_—— |

58 - 8' SDR35 @ 0.40% 1
WITH PLUMBING PLAN |

L.E. 757.32 N\
W

o —
/El — t® s _ __ DRIVEANDSHINE — — — —— ~ ~ |
p— 1 M
|

3. ALL PLUMBING WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED BY A STATE OF MICHIGAN LICENSED PLUMBER
ACCORDING TO THE INTERNATIONAL PLUMBING CODE AS MODIFIED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN AND
LOCAL HEALTH DEPARTMENT. FURNISH AND INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND LABOR TO PROVIDE A FULL
WORKING SYSTEM.

30!
6 -8'SDR35 @ 1.00%
6-8

6

(@]
vs}
©
21'- 15" HDPE @ 0.
—
o
—|
o
4
o

4. ALL MECHANICAL WORK SHALL BE PERFORMED ACCORDING TO THE INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL
CODE AS MODIFIED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN AND THE MICHIGAN ENERGY CODE. FURNISH AND
INSTALL ALL MATERIALS AND LABOR TO PROVIDE A FULL WORKING SYSTEM.

COORDINATE INVERT ELEVATIONS &
5.  ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE MICHIGAN HANDICAPPED ACCESSIBILITY CODE AND THE [ DETENTION BASIN B/STM: 758.70

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT. TOP: 764.00 < TOP/SAN: 757.82
BTM: 758.00 &

ISSUED FOR:

SITE PLAN REVIEW

—
S
' - 8“§SDF( 35 @0.40%
% '-15"
O
84' - 12" HDPE @ 0.30%
-

EXISTING STORMWATER | V) UTILITY CROSSING

6. WATER SERVICE PRESSURE TESTING AND CHLORINATION SHALL BE PER EGLE AND THE CITY OF
KENTWOOD REQUIREMENTS.

2
=)

o @

< =]

4 ®

S g

[=}

[©) T

l 1o}
°

I

sl deozrreetizass F.F. 764.50

|
|

| BN {’T_ﬂf_{_ [ . 2
= T T T | \ /\

1 " — G
| _— UTILITY CROSSING
| — BTM/STM: 758.84
8. ALL REGULATORY SIGNAGE (IF SPECIFIED) SHALL BE PER THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF /} TOP/ EX STM: 758.70

ST "
/
TRANSPORTATION.
. L~ Nk l
9. THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL PERMITS, PERMIT COSTS, > _{ | V.
TAP FEES, METER DEPOSITS, PERMANENT UTILITY APPLICATIONS, BONDS, AND OTHER FEES _ : / ¢
| Ve ’

7. SANITARY SEWER INSTALLATION AND TESTING MUST MEET THE REQUIREMENTS OF THE CITY OF
KENTWOOD AND THE EGLE.

23'- 12" HDPE @ 0.30%

\

= 15" HDPE @ 0.30%

BTM/STM: 758.29
CB-11 TOP/WTR: 756.79
MAINTAIN 18" SEPARATION

0
1
2
3
4

REPRODUCTION, COPYING OR OTHER USE OF THIS DRAWING WITHOUT WRITTEN CONSENT IS PROHIBITED © AR ENGINEERING ~ 2023

1

UTILITY CROSSING

ARy 4 s | I I GRADE: 764.84
REQUIRED FOR PROPOSED WORK.

) ( No.

J

5 .

N A L

\ 18 "

UTILITY CROSSING \ 5 :

BTM/STM: 759.67 ‘
] .
¥ 0
\\l e 3

TOP/SAN: 756.40

\ B/STM: 758.03
|\ 7S TOP/SAN: 757.54
7
10. CONTACT MISS DIG "811" FOR LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS -+ -/)\ »
BEFORE COMMENCING EXCAVATION WORK. THIS DOES NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR OF THE 32'- 12" HDPE @ 0.30%
RESPONSIBILITY OF NOTIFYING UTILITY OWNERS WHO ARE NOT PART OF THE "MISS DIG" ALERT ) % CB-4
SYSTEM. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONDUCT HIS OPERATIONS IN A MANNER AS TO ENSURE THAT b I |
THOSE UTILITIES NOT REQUIRING RELOCATION WILL NOT BE DISTURBED. | >

105' - 8' SDR 35 @ 0.40% \

UTILITY CROSSING /

B/STM: 759.04

TOP/SAN: 757.14
—)(-—-[:] \ T

UTILITY CROSSING )
@ UTILITY EASEMENT GRADE: 764.24

BTM/STM: 759.07

L. 3169, P. 1351 TOP/WTR: 757.57

MAINTAIN 18" SEPARATION |

11. ANY SANITARY SEWER, SANITARY SEWER SERVICE LEADS, WATER MAIN, WATER SERVICES, OR STORM |
SEWER WHICH IS DAMAGED BY THE CONTRACTOR DURING HIS OPERATIONS SHALL BE REPAIRED TO
THE OWNERS SATISFACTION, AND AT THE CONTRACTORS EXPENSE. IF ANY ELEMENTS OF THE
SANITARY SEWER SYSTEM ARE DAMAGED AND NEED REPAIRED, IT MUST MEET THE CITY OF
KENTWOOD SPECIFICATIONS.

- = —— =

PE W
- 12" HDPE @ 0.30% f — >
169 I / \ % \
1 6 CONSUMERS POWER uTILITY CROSSlNG\ \ /%{}‘
®

\Y

COMPANY EASEMENT GRADE: 763.89

BTM/STM: 759.65 2
L. 2114, P. 541 TOP/WTR: 758.15 — — a7 \

—  —— — MAINTAIN 18" SEPARATION ‘__’__, — i\ ELECTRIC

== = EQUIPMENT
CABINET

EX. SMH A
8"'CLAY E

12. THE ELECTRICAL CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER PAD PER THE
UTILITY COMPANY SPECIFICATIONS.

13. THE TELEPHONE UTILITY COMPANY SHALL PROVIDE UNDERGROUND TELEPHONE TO THE BUILDING AT
THE OWNERS EXPENSE.

YWY\ EXISTING TREE LINE (TYP.) §

N | [P — f—
ﬂ - — ‘——APPROX.

-

" LOCATION OF

SIGN EASEMENT l
e TN ww _
J——*-—% M\/_@ UNE
- EAS

— L2
UNDERGROUND UTILITY EASEMENT -
L. 77 OF PLATS, P. 44 =
L. 2194,P.15 _—
—_ — _—
WOODLAND DRIVE (41' PRIVATE ROW) ~ -~

14. REFER TO ELECTRICAL DRAWINGS FOR UNDERGROUND ELECTRICAL REQUIREMENTS FOR SITE
LIGHTING & SITE DETAILS SHEETS FOR THE FIXTURE AND & POLE SPECIFICATIONS.

AN

15. DESIGN, INSTALLATION AND SPECIFICATION FOR IMPROVEMENTS RELATED TO GAS, TELEPHONE,
ELECTRIC AND CABLE TELEVISION SERVICES SHALL BE COORDINATED BY THE CONTRACTOR.

Ry e/

16. CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE TELEPHONE, ELECTRIC, AND CABLE TELEVISION CONDUITS WITH
THE APPROPRIATE UTILITY PRIOR TO PAVEMENT INSTALLATION.

UTILITY PLAN
DRIVE & SHINE KENTWOOD
DRIVE & SHINE, INC
3311 WOODLAND DRIVE SE

SECTION 12, T11N, R11E

17. CONTRACTOR IS TO UNCOVER AND CONFIRM ALL TAP LOCATIONS. LOCATION DISCREPANCIES ARE TO
BE BROUGHT TO THE ENGINEERS ATTENTION FOR RESOLUTION.

¥@ UTILITY EASEMENT
e PLAT L. 77, P. 44

WATERMAIN. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAKE THE CONNECTION TO THE SHUT OFF VALVE, THE 4 N\
CONTRACTOR SHALL COORDINATE SERVICES WITH THE CITY OF KENTWOOD. STORM STRUCTURES

18. THE CONTRACTOR IS TO PROVIDE THE WATER SERVICE PIPING FROM THE BUILDING TO THE EXISTING s

19. CONTRACTOR/OWNER SHALL OBTAIN UTILITY CONNECTION PERMITS AND SETTLE APPLICABLE UTILITY
ASSESSMENTS PRIOR TO EXTENSION OF PUBLIC UTILITIES ONSITE. MH-1, 4' DIA. EJIW 5105 D6 ACO S300K & CB-13, 4' DIA. EJIW 5105
20. MANHOLE AND CATCH BASIN STRUCTURES SHALL BE PRECAST AND HAVE A MAXIMUM OF 2 R”:" = 763.79 RIM = 764.50 R”:" = 763.73 s ~
ADJUSTING RINGS FOR FINISH GRADE ADJUSTMENT. STORM STRUCTURES MUST ALL HAVE A SUMP OF 12" N 759.95 12" W 76150 12" E 758.93 EX. STORM STRUCTURES
TWO FEET. 12" SW 759.95 15" S 758.93 .
12" E 759.95 TD-8, ACO S300K 8"
21, ALL WATER MAIN TO HAVE A BURIAL DEPTH AS REQUIRED BY THE EGLE FOR THE SPECIFIC REGION OF RIM = 764.52 CB-14, 2' DIA. EJIW 5105 60770, 4 PRECAST
WORK IN CITY OF KENTWOOD. CB-2, 4' DIA. EJIW 5105 12" W 76152 RIM = 763.18 RIM = 763.54
RIM = 763.63 12" S 759.47 15" RCP E 757.79
22, DEMOLISH & REMOVE ALL EXISTING SITE FEATURES AS REQUIRED. e ~N 12" NE 759.65 CB-9, 4' DIA. EJIW 5105 18" RCP W 757.74 \

)
SANITARY STRUCTURES 12" W 759.65 RIM = 763.21 CB-15, 4' DIA. EJIW 1020 SOLID BTM 755.34
23. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REVIEW THE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT. 12" SW 759.19 RIM = 764.26
w

CB-3, 4' DIA. EJIW 5105 12" NW 759.19 12" N 759.34 2%73 ;é;EECAST -
24. DRIVEWAY LAYOUT AND CONNECTION TO WOODLAND DRIVE SHALL COMPLY WITH ALL ASPECTS OF SMH-1, 4' DIA. EJIW 1020 SOLID RIM = 764.05 12" W 759.34 : JOB NUMBER
THE CITY OF KENTWOOD DRIVE PERMIT.

) 18" RCP E 756.60
RIM = 762.21 12" E 759.14 TD-10, ACO S300K 8 18" RCP W 756.50

. J 8" SE 743.26 12 NW 759.14  RIM = 764.56 CB-16, 2' DIA. EJIW 5105 4 N | s 754.75 2139006
8" W 755.54 12" W 76156 RIM = 763.33 BENCHMARK |NFORMATION PROPOSED 12" HDPE S 756.60
CB-4, 4' DIA. EJIW 5105 12" W 760.02

SMH-2, 4' DIA. EJIW 1020 SOLID RIM = 762.11 CB-11, 4' DIA. EJIW 5105 60773, 8 PRECAST WITH 60774

DATE
) _ . | BM-A = Know what's helow.
RIIVIE= TR0 12 H\?v Zgg'% T;M ,\]E762'83 758,92 g,E,\;A1Z’726E !5A3' EJIW 5105 CHISELED X ON SW BOLT OF LIGHT POLE, IN PARKING RIM = 764.34
8" 756.57 . . - :

. ) LOT ISLAND, EAST SIDE OF LOT, SOUTH OF 2333 EAST 24 Sgg El 755.04 > Gallbefore you dig. 09/18/2023
8" N 756.67 12" SW 758.92 12" S 760.20 BELTLINE BUILDING 18 755.04 \_ )

MH-5, 4' DIA. EJIW 5105 ELEVATION : 761.73 2"TO 3" ORIFICE 755.04
SMH-3, 4' DIA. EJIW 1020 SOLID RIM = 765.49 CB-12, 2' DIA. EJIW 5105 BTM 755.04

RIM = 764.60 12" SE 758.94 RIM = 762.15 BM-B 60774. 8 PRECAST WITH 60773 ALL UTILITIES AS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS DERIVED
8" S 757.25 15" N 758.57 12" SE 759.35 CHISELED SQUARE ON NORTH SIDE OF LIGHT BASE, RIM = 764.35 FROM ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS AND AVAILABLE RECORDS. THEY

) ’ = 764. SHOULD NOT BE INTERPRETED TO BE EXACT LOCATION NOR
8" E 757.35 12" E 758.94 EAST SIDE OF PARKING LOT, SECOND PARKING LOT 2" TO 3" ORIFICE 754.85 SHOULD IT BE ASSUMED THAT THEY ARE THE ONLY UTILITIES IN THE
EX.15" W 758.29 SOUTH OF 2333 EAST BELTLINE BUILDING.

28" RCP S 755.05 AREA. FIELD WORK PERFORMED BY: FISHBECK
ELEVATION : 766.79
k \ J ) U AN ) / CB . O

SHEET TITLE:
PROJECT:
CLIENT:

SITE ADDRESS:
SITE SECTION

SHEET NUMBER )

“

S



AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
HVAC

AutoCAD SHX Text
GAS

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
16


-

GRADING NOTES

\_

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

ALL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO ALL LOCAL, STATE AND FEDERAL LAWS, RULES AND REGULATIONS IN FORCE AT TIME OF
CONSTRUCTION.

THE GENERAL CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING ALL PERMITS, PERMIT COSTS, TAP FEES, METER DEPOSITS,
PERMANENT UTILITY APPLICATIONS, BONDS, AND OTHER FEES REQUIRED FOR PROPOSED WORK. THIS SHALL INCLUDE, BUT SHALL
NOT BE LIMITED TO THOSE REQUIRED BY THE MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION.

CONTACT MISS DIG "811" FOR LOCATION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES A MINIMUM OF 48 HOURS BEFORE COMMENCING EXCAVATION
WORK. THIS DOES NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR OF THE RESPONSIBILITY OF NOTIFYING UTILITY OWNERS WHO ARE NOT PART OF
THE "MISS DIG" ALERT SYSTEM. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL CONDUCT HIS OPERATIONS IN A MANNER AS TO ENSURE THAT THOSE
UTILITIES NOT REQUIRING RELOCATION WILL NOT BE DISTURBED.

DEMOLISH & REMOVE ALL EXISTING SITE FEATURES AS REQUIRED.

MATCH EXISTING GRADES AROUND PERIMETER WITH SLOPES AS SHOWN.

ALL SPOT ELEVATIONS ARE TOP OF PAVEMENT GRADES AT EDGE OF METAL (EOM) UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.

ALL SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE IN PLACE PRIOR TO MASS GRADING.

ALL EARTHWORK SHALL BE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS AND GEOTECHNICAL REPORT.

ALL EXISTING ELEVATIONS ARE TO BE VERIFIED AND ACCEPTED AS SHOWN PRIOR TO COMMENCEMENT OF WORK.

CONTRACTOR SHALL TAKE PRECAUTIONS TO AVOID TRACKING SOIL ONTO ADJACENT ROADWAYS. CONTRACTOR SHALL SWEEP
IMMEDIATELY IF OCCURS.

ANY DISTURBED AREA WHICH WILL BE LEFT UNWORKED 15 DAYS OR LONGER MUST BE SEEDED TO ESTABLISH VEGETATION FOR
TEMPORARY STABILIZATION. BASINS TO BE SEEDED AND MULCH BLANKETS APPLIED IMMEDIATELY TO PROVIDE A STABLE BASE AND
AVOID EXCESSIVE EROSION.

SITE DOES NOT FALL WITHIN THE 100-YEAR FLOOD ELEVATION.

NO WETLANDS EXIST ON SITE.

ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL COMPLY WITH ARTICLE 2 OF CITY OF KENTWOOD ORDINANCE
78 AND PART 91 OF PUBLIC ACT 451.

ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROLS SHALL BE INSPECTED AND MAINTAINED ON A DAILY BASIS AND IMMEDIATELY
FOLLOWING EVERY SIGNIFICANT RAINFALL EVENT.

ALL EXCESS SPOILS ARE TO BE REMOVED FROM THE SITE. OTHERWISE, STOCKPILES MUST BE PROVIDED WITH TEMPORARY AND
PERMANENT STABILIZATION MEASURES.

EXCESS DIRT IS NOT TO BE PLACED ON ANY AREAS ON OR ADJACENT TO THE SITE WHERE THE PLAN DOES NOT SHOW THE AREA
BEING DISTURBED. SEE GRADING PLAN FOR LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION.

SILT FENCING IS REQUIRED ALONG ALL DOWNSTREAM EDGES OF THE GRADING LIMITS AND MUST REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL
VEGETATION IS UNIFORMLY RE-ESTABLISHED. THE SILT FENCE MUST BE TOED IN A MINIMUM OF 6 INCHES ALONG ITS BASE.

ALL DISTURBED BANKS EQUAL TO OR GREATER THAN 4:1 AND THE DETENTION BASIN BANKS AND BOTTOM MUST BE COVERED WITH
TOPSOIL, SEED AND NORTH AMERICAN GREEN S-150 (OR APPROVED EQUAL) EROSION CONTROL BLANKET. THIS BLANKET, ALONG
WITH THE NECESSARY STAPLES OR WOOD PEGS, SHALL BE PLACED PER MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS. SEAMS SHALL BE
PLACED PARALLEL TO THE DIRECTION OF SURFACE RUNOFF.

ALL SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INSTALLED PRIOR TO ANY EARTH MOVING OPERATIONS AND SHALL BE
MAINTAINED UNTIL VEGETATION IS UNIFORMLY RE-ESTABLISHED AND THE SITE IS PERMANENTLY STABILIZED

NO SEDIMENT SHALL BE TRACKED ONTO THE ADJACENT PUBLIC STREET AND IF IT DOES OCCUR, IT SHALL BE CLEANED DAILY.

THE STORMWATER DETENTION BASIN IS TO BE THE FIRST ITEM OF EARTH MOVING AND SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED IN CONJUNCTION
WITH THE INSTALLATION OF SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES.

EXISTING TREELINE (TYP.)

r

SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENT CONTROL NOTES A

® ®

® 6 & O

®

(® ®

ALL CONSTRUCTION METHODS SHALL BE DONE IN COMPLIANCE WITH CITY OF KENTWOOD-EGLE. THE OWNER SHALL
BE RESPONSIBLE FOR OBTAINING A "SOIL EROSION PERMIT" FROM THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY AND A "PERMIT BY
RULE/NOTICE OF COVERAGE" FROM THE GOVERNING AUTHORITY, IF APPLICABLE, PRIOR TO START OF
CONSTRUCTION. THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR COMPLYING WITH ALL REQUIREMENTS OF THE
"SOIL EROSION PERMIT" AND FOR ALL CERTIFIED STORM WATER INSPECTION SERVICE REQUIRED BY THE "PERMIT BY
RULE." EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHOWN ON THE PLANS ARE THE MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS AND SHALL NOT
RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR PROVIDING ALL REQUIRED EROSION CONTROL MEASURES.

AVOID UNNECESSARY DISTURBING OR REMOVING OF EXISTING VEGETATED TOPSOIL OR EARTH COVER, THESE
COVER AREAS ACT AS SEDIMENT FILTERS.

ALL TEMPORARY SOIL EROSION PROTECTION SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE UNTIL REMOVAL IS REQUIRED FOR FINAL
CLEAN UP AND APPROVAL.

GEOTEXTILE SILT FENCE SHALL BE INSTALLED AS REQUIRED WHEN CROSSING CREEKS OR WHEN ADJACENT TO
WETLANDS OR SURFACE WATER BODIES TO PREVENT SILTATION AND ELSEWHERE AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.
SEEDING AND/OR SODDING SHALL BE INSTALLED ON CREEK BANKS IMMEDIATELY AFTER CONSTRUCTION TO
PREVENT EROSION.

MAINTENANCE, CLEANING, AND REMOVAL OF THE VARIOUS SEDIMENT CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE INCLUDED IN
THE VARIOUS EROSION CONTROL ITEMS.

ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES SHALL BE PER MDOT STANDARD DETAILS. "P"
DENOTES PERMANENT MEASURE AND "T" DENOTES TEMPORARY MEASURE. SOIL EROSION CONTROL PLANS DENOTE
MINIMUM EROSION MEASURES REQUIRED AS DESCRIBED BELOW.

DENOTES PERMANENT SEEDING. ALL DISTURBED AREAS NOT PAVED OR GRAVELED SHALL BE RESTORED. PLACE
TOPSOIL SURFACE, SALV, 3 INCH, KENT COUNTY ROAD COMMISSION SEEDING, MIXTURE TUF APPLIED AT A RATE OF
220 LB/ACRE, FERTILIZER, CHEMICAL NUTRIENT, CL A APPLIED AT A RATE OF 228 LB/ACRE; MULCH AT A RATE OF 2
TON/ACRE AND MULCH ANCHORING. (APPLIES TO ENTIRE PROJECT)

DENOTES TEMPORARY SEEDING. TEMPORARY SEEDING SHALL BE PLACED AT LOCATIONS DETERMINED BY THE
ENGINEER IN THE FIELD AND SHALL INCLUDE CEREAL RYE SEED APPLIED AT A RATE OF 70 LB/ACRE AND MULCH.

DENOTES DUST CONTROL. DUST CONTROL MAY BE REQUIRED ON THE SUBGRADE CONSTRUCTION AND WILL
INCLUDE APPLYING FRESH WATER TO BE INCLUDED IN THE ITEM OF EMBANKMENT. DUST CONTROL ON THE
AGGREGATE BASE COURSE WILL BE ACCOMPLISHED BY APPLYING FRESH WATER (INCLUDED IN THE ITEM OF
AGGREGATE BASE, 6 INCH) AND APPLYING DUST PALLIATIVE, APPLIED, CACL, (TON) AS DIRECTED BY THE PROJECT
ENGINEER.

DENOTES AGGREGATE COVER/PERMANENT PAVEMENT RESTORATION

DENOTES GRAVEL ACCESS APPROACH. APPROACH SHALL BE INSTALLED TO PROVIDE STABLE ACCESS TO
ROADWAYS AND MINIMIZE DUST AND TRACKING OF MATERIALS ONTO PUBLIC STREETS AND HIGHWAYS. THE
APPROACH SHALL BE A MINIMUM OF 12' WIDE, 6" DEEP, AND CONSIST OF 2"-4" AGGREGATE.

DENOTES TEMPORARY SILT FENCE. SILT FENCE SHALL BE INSTALLED AT CREEK CROSSINGS, ADJACENT TO ALL
WETLANDS AND SURFACE WATERS, AND OTHER LOCATIONS AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER. EACH SILT FENCE
SHALL BE INSTALLED GENERALLY ALONG THE SAME CONTOUR ELEVATION.

DENOTES INLET PROTECTION FABRIC DROP. SHALL BE INSTALLED AT EXISTING AND PROPOSED STORM SEWER
INLETS TO PROVIDE SETTLING AND FILTERING OF SILT LADEN WATER PRIOR TO ENTRY INTO THE DRAINAGE SYSTEM.
(SEE DETAIL SHEET).

DENOTES MULCH BLANKET OR MATTING. SHALL BE NORTH AMERICAN GREEN DS150, OR APPROVED EQUAL. MULCH
BLANKETS SHALL BE PLACED ON ALL 1:3 SLOPES OR GREATER, IN AND AROUND DITCH BOTTOMS WHERE THERE IS
NO BIOSWALE BY CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR RESTORING THAT AREA.

y

- — — T — —_—

— —_—

_
—_—

—_—

- —

J— —_——

/
/
/
/

\
\
\

- ——

60— —— —
759
758

761

‘><,_—-7

124

! EX STORMWATER
{ DETENTION BASIN
\' TOP: 764.00

BTM: 758.00

- —
—_—_—_— Y —

0 30 45

™

1inch = 30 ft.

r PLANS PREPARED BY: )

—_—— — — —
—

8 =
Z_Z

=758 ————~

\

[

—_— — —

LANDSCAPE BERM -1

Ao~

——— [

—_

NORTH ROW LIN

& SEE WALL

o~ BLOW-UP THIS

764

,————7’—_‘

[ &

EQUIP. ROOM

Ve
7
e

CAR WASH

LUBE CENTER
RN

~— 76

SELF VACUUM

—_ e

=05

VA 761 ,\fa0 e 2 s
; — =& = — 760=/==—=—="SEEWALLBLOW-UP = —

i & A 77}:{__ — THISjHE!ET, ___
A/ N g e ) A »
H“' S s e igii’é — ;
*"%‘?ﬂﬁ;ﬂﬂﬁzﬁ _

';
i o —R — RV R /o

-_Tw

(

EX. STORM STRUCTURES

60770, 4 PRECAST
RIM = 763.54

15" RCP E

18" RCP W

BTM

60772, 4 PRECAST
RIM = 763.85

18" RCP E

18" RCP W

BTM

757.79
757.74
755.34

756.60
756.50
754.75

PROPOSED 12" HDPE S 756.60

60773, 8' PRECAST WITH 60774

RIM = 764.34
24" RCP N

18" RCP E

2" TO 3" ORIFICE
BTM

755.04
755.04
755.04
755.04

60774, 8 PRECAST WITH 60773

RIM = 764.35
2" TO 3" ORIFICE 754.85
k28" RCP S 755.05

Vv

S —

WOODLAND DRIVE (41' PRIVATE ROW) —

SCHEDULED ACTIVITY

CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

JAN

FEB

MAR

APR

MAY [JUN|JUL |AUG[SEP|OCT |NOV

DEC

\

A\
AR ENGINEERING

CIVILENGINEERING & SURVEYING

MICHIGAN | INDIANA | ILLINOIS | OHIO
269.250.5991 PHONE | 866.569.0604 FAX
www.arengineeringlic.com

TEMPERARY SESC MEASURES

STRIP AND STOCKPILE

LIMITS OF CONSTRUCTION

ROUGH GRADING

UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

(D
0N
a2 o

&S

ROAD INSTALLATION

X | X | X | X | X

X | X | X | X | X

SILT FENCE

GREATER THAN 4:1

SLOPES EQUAL TO OR

(SEE GRADING NOTE 15)

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

2
¢

AWALL BLOW-UP

1'=10'

PERMANENT SESC MEASURES X X
REMOVAL OF TEMP SESC
CONTROLS (AFTER SITE IS X

FULLY VEGETATED)

FINAL GRADE

LANDSCAPING

AWALL BLOW-

Gall befﬁre you dig.
|

DRAWN: ar
GHECKED: ASR
a4 N
\_ Yy,
r
o s
o
w| S :
E| g z
<2 g
Dg é
x 3
O z
L B
3|,
7| @
2|3 :
4 %
pd z
< £
—' 5
[a x
w o
= z
) &
gO\—N(‘O#é
L ['4
4 N
Z 3
L
g Qo 24
O =z Yz
- o -
(D%LIJ N =Z
W v £ n=-
D I 2+
g Zz N Jo
T 3 o;
(DU)LIJ OO
Z 5= 2F
= B3 = =k
>D FLU
¥k 8"
(DD
- g8
= = g 5
- g ¢ 2%
w e 5 E E
(7)) o O " ow

J
é JOB NUMBER A

2139006

ALL UTILITIES AS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS DERIVED
FROM ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS AND AVAILABLE RECORDS. THEY
SHOULD NOT BE INTERPRETED TO BE EXACT LOCATION NOR
SHOULD IT BE ASSUMED THAT THEY ARE THE ONLY UTILITIES IN THE

AREA. FIELD WORK PERFORMED BY: FISHBECK

“

DATE

09/18/2023
\ J

SHEET NUMBER )

C4.0

S



AutoCAD SHX Text
CONSTRUCTION SCHEDULE

AutoCAD SHX Text
JAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
FEB

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAR

AutoCAD SHX Text
APR

AutoCAD SHX Text
MAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUN

AutoCAD SHX Text
JUL

AutoCAD SHX Text
AUG

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEP

AutoCAD SHX Text
OCT

AutoCAD SHX Text
NOV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DEC

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEMPERARY SESC MEASURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
STRIP AND STOCKPILE

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROUGH GRADING

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
UNDERGROUND UTILITIES

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROAD INSTALLATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING CONSTRUCTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
PERMANENT SESC MEASURES

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
REMOVAL OF TEMP SESC CONTROLS (AFTER SITE IS FULLY VEGETATED)

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
FINAL GRADE

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
X

AutoCAD SHX Text
LANDSCAPING

AutoCAD SHX Text
X


.

PLEASE PAY ATTENTION TO THE BID/SPECIFICATION DOCUMENT
INCLUDED IN THE FRONT SECTION OF THE ARCHITECTURAL DRAWINGS.
ALL NOTATIONS MADE IN THERE BECOME PART OF THE DRAWINGS. IN
CASE OF A DISCREPANCY BETWEEN DRAWINGS AND BID/SPECIFICATIONS
DOCUMENT, CONSULT THE OWNER BEFORE YOU PROCEED AS OWNER
HAS THE RIGHT TO CHOOSE THE HIGHEST/BEST SPECIFICATIONS AS
DETERMINED BY HIM SOLELY AND TO HIS DISCRETION.

\.

~

J

51/2"

~lN
X<

—a— 6'X4"REDUCER PVC

H 6 1/16" —=

— 6'PVC
;
~— /—

6" WYE OPENING FOR CLEANOUT IS TO BE SET
AT 45° ANGLE TO C/L OF LEAD

—

INSTALLATION DETAIL

ISOMETRIC VIEW

WHEN:

WATER DRAINAGE SYSTEM.

WHY:
TO PREVENT SEDIMENT FROM ENTERING STORM WATER SYSTEMS.

WHERE:

HOW:
1. AFILTER FABRIC BAG IS HUNG INSIDE THE INLET, BENEATH THE GRATE.

2. REPLACE GRATE, WHICH WILL HOLD BAG IN PLACE.

3. ANCHOR FILTER BAG WITH 1" REBAR FOR REMOVAL FROM INLET.

STANDARD FLAG ARRANGEMENT: 12'x18'

NEOPR

INLET

WHEN SEDIMENT LADEN STORMWATER REQUIRES TREATMENT BEFORE ENTERING A STORM

USE IN OR AT STORM WATER INLETS, ESPECIALLY AT CONSTRUCTION SITES OR IN STREETS.

— 2 |<— & -
!
\&)/FTSLOE_ . A _}D_T

ono

ROLLING CURB AND

AGUTTER DETAIL

STEEL AIRCRAFT CABLE

ENE COATED 2" DIAMETER

10"

L 7/8"
|——
| 7" ——

L —o'—

3

18
9

r #4BARS /i

4-‘—‘ T STope — — |, -

MDOT DETAIL C2

ACURB AND GUTTER ___

\NANNNNN||

\

& N
Y

STEEL COUNTERWEIGHT
NYLON BEADED RETAINER RING

| TAPERED PORTION: 53-4"

Q
ANMARRRNNN

EXPOSED HEIGHT: 66'-0"
|

e

GROUND SPIKE

/

* C5.0- 110106

45° BEND | ]
MDOT 6A STONE SUPPORT FOR WYE GEARLESS. SELF LOCKING
TO UNDISTURBED GROUND DIRECT DRIVE WINCH WITH
6'X6" WYE SIX TUMBLER CYLINDER LOCK
REVOLVING NON-FOULING INTERNAL
6" SERVICE LEAD | Fow N\ ALUMINUM FLASH COLLAR = HALYARD TRUCK, GAST ALUMINIUM
i — WATERPROOF BONDING g BODY, 26 STAINLESS STEEL BALL
. 7 It BEARINGS, AND 2-1/2" DIAMETER PLATED
MATERIAL < g STEEL SHEAVE.
I HARDWOOD WEDGES REMOVE g &
AFTER SAND COMPACTION s |2
ELEVATION (SUPPLIED BY OTHERS) ) 2 |8
g |3 S
3000 PSI CONCRETE g
_
GRADE—___
SANITARY SEWER o smio i s u 5=
AFTER ALIGNING POLE <L I\//
:
ACLEANOUT DETAIL _ FOUNDATION SLEEVE 15 ——| :
™ C5.0 - 090109 NOT TO SCALE GA HOT DIPPED GALV. >~ z A
STEEL I WINCH DETAIL
CONCRETE BASE ——_ L2
SLOPE TO DRAIN L ® & |&
=12 ALL SHAFTS WITH OVERALL
(4) WELDED STEEL — |/ — 10— 215 LENGTH OF MORE THAN
CENTERING WEDGES 3 38-6' ARE SHIPPED IN TWO
| I'I'1 sections
1/4" STEEL —— ||
BASE PLATE \ i L /’ %’ | || EACH SECTION MATCHED MARKED FOR
) N | FIELD ASSEMBLY. EXPOSED PORTION OF
1/4" STEEL SUPPORT PLATE RN I} | JAM SLEEVE MUST BE WELL
WELDED TO GROUNDING SPIKE 2= \Jr —}— | | {l  LUBRICATED PRIOR TO ASSEMBLY.
1" REBAR FOR BAG & ! \%" O X 40 | |I
REMOVAL FROM LoXA NG 1-1/2" MAXIMUM SHOP GAP

ALLOWED FOR FIELD FITTING
(RAM FOR TIGHT JOINT)

WFLAGPOLE

NOT TO SCALE

ACCORDANCE WI

ALL PAVEMENT STRIPING MUST BE IN

OF THE MICHIGAN MANUAL ON UNIFORM
TRAFFIC CONTROL DEVICES (MMUTCD)

TH THE CURRENT EDITION

CONC. SIDEWALK
(BROOM FINISH)

= C5.0- 030107 NOT TO SCALE = C5.0-030108 NOT TO SCALE
4' TOPSOIL, MDOT ROADSIDE SEED CONCRETE OR ASPHALT PAVEMENT
AND MULCH (TYP.) (SEE PAVEMENT DETAILS THIS SHEET)
| 5'WIDE | VARIES - SEE PLANS
MOUNTABLE CURB DETAIL
~C5.0 - 030112 NOT TO SCALE . #R
*2% MAX —=—  SLOPE 1/4" PER FOOT
N
4" CONC. SIDEWALK (GRADE P1 MIX e L
DESIGN 6.0 SACK CONCRETE MIX)
4" MIN. COMPACTED (95% DENSITY) .
VIDOT GLASS | SAND BAGE COMPACTED (85%) SAND ~
*TRANSVERSE SIDEWALK SLOPES ARE TYPICALLY 1.5% OR 2% MAXIMUM. GRANULAR MATERIAL
PLACE CONCRETE SLAB IF CLEANOUT IN ORDER TO MEET SITE CONDITIONS, IF THE TRANSVERSE SLOPE IS
IS LOCATED IN A PAVED AREA. SLAB REQUIRED TO BE LESS THAN 1.5%, LONGITUDINAL DRAINAGE MUST BE
MAY BE OMITTED IF CLEANOUT IS PROVIDED.
\ e e e ABAISED WALK SECTION _
o AREA = C5.0- 030303 NOT TO SCALE
REFER TO MDOT STANDARD PLAN R-29-|
\ (DRIVEWAY OPENINGS & APPROACHES, AND CONCRETE SIDEWALK)
24X CONG. SLAB (3000 PS1) \5' WIDE SIDEWALK SECTION
(< _______________________________________________________________________________________4
TOP VIEWW /= oo NOT TO SCALE
EJIW CLEANOUT FRAME & COVER
V-8513 (OR APPROVED EQUAL)
- AR TIGHT SCREW CAP
- 7%
* SINGLE SHEAVE TRUCK, CAST
| ' | & oRe ALUMINUM REVOLVING, NON-FOULING,
? INTERNAL HALYARD TRUCK
. - 2PVC 1/8'x7x19 MIL-C-5424 STAINLESS

NOTE:

9" STAINLESS CURB-:

PROVIDED BY OWNER
INSTALLED BY
CONTRACTOR

1" CONDUIT TO XPT /

\LICENSE PLATE READER

v
!

——
/

™ C5.0- 030111

#4 BAR

CONTINUOUS

\"E2" CURB DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

He

‘ _—6" PAVEMENT

36"

| 24"

/

™ C5.0 - 030404

>
"1 3/a"
,ﬁ?\

NOT TO SCALE

53——‘
+

& =

1] ©
| » 1%/FT SLOPE _+_ ; ‘
) -1"/FTSLOPE — ]

.

J FT SLOPE
|- 4"

/

™ C5.0- 030109

ALL HANDICAPPED RAMP AND ACCESS
AISLES SHALL MEET ALL CODES AND
ADAAG REGULATIONS.

[[T—— BOLLARD WITH HANDICAP

PARKING SIGN, AS REQUIRED

4. FLAPS OF BAG THAT EXTEND BEYOND THE BAG CAN BE BURIED IN SOIL IN EARTH AREAS.

MAINTENANCE:

DAMAGED FILTER BAGS SHOULD BE REPLACED.

CLEAN AND/OR REPLACE FILTER BAG WHEN 1/2 FULL.
REPLACE CLOGGED FABRIC IMMEDIATELY.

IF NEEDED, INITIATE REPAIRS IMMEDIATELY UPON INSPECTION.

REMOVE ENTIRE PROTECTIVE MECHANISM WHEN UPGRADIENT AREAS ARE STABILIZED AND
STREETS HAVE BEEN SWEPT.

N

AJNLET PROTECTION - SILT SACK

/ ™ C5.0-130103 NOT TO SCALE

DROP INLET FILTERS SHOULD BE INSPECTED ROUTINELY AND AFTER EACH MAJOR RAIN EVENT.

O o o o
7 § %‘ T ~_
_5-0 KO 50"
BOLLARD WITH ~ N -
HANDICAP
PARKING SIGN, o
AS REQUIRED /
5
Q
BOLLARD /
PAINTED YELLOW
BLUE COLOR
N

8.0" 10-0"

/

™ C5.0 - 040902

8-0"

\HANDICAP PARKING DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

" PARKING SPACE STRIPE,

- t4: T

MDOT F4 CONC.

H—— 4" PAINTED STRIPES - H.C. BLUE
COLOR @ 24" O.C. AT 45 DEGREES.

" STANDARD HANDICAP PARKING
! | SYMBOL PAINTED ON PAVEMENT,
BLUE COLOR

/

«CURB & GUTTER

NOT TO SCALE
= /|
O
I
B
— N
I
>
= o
&
%
I

NPy

3

\O
«?‘“((?

1. FOUNDATION ANCHOR (BY GATE INSTALLER)

2. CONDUIT

3. CONCRETE FOUNDATION

/

NOTE

-

™ C5.0-030108

\GATE BASE

6"-5,000 P.S.1.

CONCRETE (WITH FIBER
REINFORCEMENT WHERE

INDICATED ON SITE PLAN)
\ / SHEET))
N 14

i © M ¢ S i © B

#5 BAR, 24" O.C. EACH WAY, WITH 2"
CHAIRS AT A MINIMUM OF 48" O.C.
(SEE REINFORCEMENT DETAIL THIS

TOPSOIL

|<——

—1.0' MIN.

AGGREGATE BASE

NOT TO SCALE

2'-0"TYP.—~ [~

1'- 9" TYP.

THROUGH

2'-8" TYP.

N

A
20,

LEFT TURN RIGHT TURN

: ALL TRAFFIC ARROWS SHALL BE REFLECTIVE YELLOW PAINT

TRAFFIC FLOW ARROW

/

*C5.0

\FOR PARKING LOTS

NOT TO SCALE

(STRIPING LEGEND

YELLOW CURBING
AND BOLLARDS

PARKING LOT

SURFACES SHOULD BE CLEAN, DRY AND METAL
SURFACES FREE OF HEAVY RUST 2 COATS
SHERWIN WILLIAMS - KEM 4000 ACRYLIC ALKYD
ENAMEL SAFETY YELLOW B55Y300

STRIPING - PARKING
LOT

SURFACES SHOULD BE CLEAN, DRY. TOP COAT
SHERWIN WILLIAMS - PROMAR TRAFFIC MARKING
PAINT YELLOW TM5495

HANDICAP STRIPING -
PARKING LOT

SURFACES SHOULD BE CLEAN, DRY. TOP COAT
SHERWIN WILLIAMS - PROMAR TRAFFIC MARKING
PAINT "H.C." BLUE y

STANDARD STATE APPROVED

HANDICAPPED SIGNAGE INSTALLED

ON A METAL COLUMN AT THE
PROPER HEIGHT REQUIRED.

PROVIDE ADDITIONAL SIGNAGE
BELOW THE HANDICAPPED SIGN AS

REQUIRED PER REGULATIONS

\ BOLT SIGNS TO GALVANIZED

METAL 1" DIA. PIPE COLUMN

STEEL PIPE BOLLARD WITH

PLASTIC COVER (COLOR PER OWNER)

CONCRETE SURROUND
/ AROUND PIPE COLUMN

L
b

o
a

T

<

<

I=T=""1

I Q
E\:

™ C5.0- 090102

[
-6" MIN.

_

\HANDICAP PARKING SIGN DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

———— 6" DIAMETER CONCRETE FILLED

BASE COVER PLATE

LEVELING NUT

8" MDOT 22A / \
12" MINIMUM COMPACTED (98%) SAND

SUB-BASE (MDOT CLASS Il) OR

ACCEPTABLE COMPACTED SUB-BASE
(AS RECOMMENDED BY
GEOTECHNICAL ENGINEER)

/

™ C5.0 - 030402

o1

o ~L
|

/

™ C5.0 - 030404

36"

WCONC. PAVEMENT SECTION

NOT TO SCALE

#5 REBAR

2'0.C. EACH WAY

\REINFORCEMENT DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

6" DIA. CONCRETE
FILLED STEEL PIPE
BOLLARD

/ SCH 80 GALV
A

BOLLARD
PLACEMENT AT
24" DIA.
CAR WASH EXIT CONCRETE
BASE
g GRADE

TYP. BOLLARD
PLACEMENT AT
0O.H. DOOR

46"

/

= C5.0- 140101

FEE)

CONSULTANT
PROVIDED

SPEC'S

3 &

——HAND HOLE

/—GROUND LUG

ON POLE

1/8" SLOPE

PHOTOMETRIC

POLE STANDARD

CONNECT GROUND
WIRE TO GRND. LUG

24"

LLED PARKING LOT
LIGHT FIXTURE - SEE

22'-0" ABOVE GRADE

16" DIA. BOLLARD DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

'

L
BOLT PATTERN PER :'E: 1 :h =
TEMPLATE AS FURNISHED PN ny
BY FIXTURE MFR. ANCHOR BOLTS PER —— | £ 777
MANUF. REQS. Lh
- FINISHED
Lol | GRADE
Ll _]
FINISH GRADE T :
SN 1 Z T I =
© = L_a_d [ =
CADWELD = FoBAR R CONDUIT
S GROUND WIRE R _L
g g e g e gy I 1 = I ey e e J
| s ——————— s —— __:__— y_:___ el s ———
3/4"@ X 10-0"— PROVIDE /4"  ———— | | F——=—H
LONG COPPER PREFORMED JOINT l l gﬁgfgégﬁﬁm)
CLAD GROUND FILLER WHEN SLAB loa_ o]
ROD ABUTS POLE BASE (TYP.) RN
I I — el
CONCRETEBASE— L___1 ?g'ES @10
20" DIA. $

/

™ C5.0-090110

\PARKING LIGHT POST DETAIL

NOT TO SCALE

r PLANS PREPARED BY: )

\

N

A\
AR ENGINEERING

CIVILENGINEERING & SURVEYING

MICHIGAN | INDIANA | ILLINOIS | OHIO
269.250.5991 PHONE | 866.569.0604 FAX
www.arengineeringlic.com

DRAWN: ar
GHECKED: ASR
4 N
\_ Y,
r
o s
” z
w| S :
E| g z
<2 g
() g é
o
L B
3|,
7| @
a3 g
h'd )
Z z
3
[a x
w o
= :
@ S
g o ~— N (42] ﬁ'é
& ['4
4 N
()
S, Bu
SQ us
E= 2«
0w G5u oz
Z 5% 2F
L -
|<£ Zz O I«
W T Sz
ol = =
wx -9
> 0 <
0 P}
()
; 4 3
a .. X =
W 3 & woow
\5’ E 8 & 5
f JOB NUMBER )
DATE
09/18/2023
\_ )

\

“

SHEET NUMBER

C5.0

S




NDSCAPING NOTES

LEGEND

. MAINTAIN TREES AND SHRUBS FOR ONE YEAR FROM DATE OF SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION BY

. REMOVE AND REPLACE DEAD PLANTS IMMEDIATELY. REPLACE PLANTS THAT ARE MORE THAN 25%

. TREES, AND SHRUBS SHALL BE WARRANTED FOR ONE YEAR FROM DATE OF SUBSTANTIAL

INSTALL CONSTRUCTION FENCE AROUND DRIP LINES OF EXISTING TREES TO REMAIN. NO
COMPACTION OR INCREASED DEPTH OF SOIL OVER THE ROOT SYSTEM AREA PRIOR TO AND DURING
CONSTRUCTION.

ALL LAWN AREAS SHALL BE SEEDED AND MULCHED WITH THE FOLLOWING MIXTURE: 20% IMPROVED
PERENNIAL RYEGRASS, 40% FINE FESCUE, AND 40% KENTUCKY BLUEGRASS AT A RATE OF 3-4 LBS/
1000 SFT.

ALL EDGING SHALL BE STANDARD COMMERCIAL-STEEL EDGING %" X 4", ROLLED EDGE, FABRICATED IN
SECTIONS OF STANDARD LENGTHS, WITH LOOPS STAMPED FROM OR WELDED TO FACE OF SECTIONS
TO RECEIVE STAKES IN STANDARD FINISH OF GREEN PAINT.

PROVIDE QUALITY, SIZE, GENUS, SPECIES, AND VARIETY OF EXTERIOR PLANTS INDICATED, COMPLYING
WITH APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS IN ANSI Z60.1 "AMERICAN STANDARD FOR NURSERY STOCK."
MEASURE ACCORDING TO ANSI Z60.1 STANDARDS.

MAINTAIN AND ESTABLISH LAWN BY WATERING, FERTILIZING, WEEDING, MOWING, TRIMMING,
REPLANTING, AND OTHER OPERATIONS. ROLL, REGRADE, AND REPLANT BARE OR ERODED AREAS AND
REMULCH TO PRODUCE A UNIFORMLY SMOOTH LAWN.

BEGIN LAWN MAINTENANCE IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH AREA IS PLANTED AND CONTINUE UNTIL
ACCEPTABLE LAWN IS ESTABLISHED: A MINIMUM OF 60 DAYS AFTER SUBSTANTIAL COMPLETION.
PROTECT ADJACENT AND ADJOINING STRUCTURES, UTILITIES, SIDEWALKS, PAVEMENTS, AND
PLANTINGS FROM HYDROSEEDING OVER-SPRAY AND DAMAGE CAUSED BY PLANTING OPERATIONS.
REMOVE STONES LARGER THAN 1" IN ANY DIMENSION AND STICK, ROOTS, RUBBISH, AND OTHER
EXTRANEOUS MATTER FROM SITE.

MAINTAIN LAWN UNTIL A HEALTHY, UNIFORM, CLOSE STAND OF GRASS HAS BEEN ESTABLISHED, FREE
OF WEEDS AND SURFACE IRREGULARITIES, WITH COVERAGE EXCEEDING 90% OVER ANY 10 SFT AND
BARE SPOTS DO NOT EXCEED 5 BY 5 INCHES.

PRUNING, CULTIVATING, WATERING, WEEDING, FERTILIZING, RESTORING PLANTING SAUCERS,
TIGHTENING AND REPAIRING STAKES AND GUY SUPPORTS, AND RESETTING TO PROPER GRADES OR
VERTICAL POSITION, AS REQUIRED TO ESTABLISH HEALTHY VIABLE PLANTINGS. SPRAY AS REQUIRED
TO KEEP TREES AND SHRUBS FREE OF INSECTS AND DISEASE.

DEAD OR IN AN UNHEALTHY CONDITION AT END OF WARRANTY PERIOD. A LIMIT OF ONE REPLACEMENT
OF EACH PLANT WILL BE REQUIRED, EXCEPT FOR LOSSES OR REPLACEMENTS DUE TO FAILURE TO
COMPLY WITH REQUIREMENTS.

COMPLETION AGAINST DEFECTS INCLUDING DEATH AND UNSATISFACTORY GROWTH, EXCEPT FOR
DEFECTS RESULTING FROM INCIDENTS THAT ARE BEYOND CONTRACTOR'S CONTROL.

1 NUMBER AND TYPE OF PLANTS TO
Xx BE PROVIDED AND INSTALLED

@ PROPOSED DECIDUOUS TREE

W,

i,
N

PROPOSED SHRUB DECIDUOUS/ EVERGREEN

7

2,
1N

SOD LAWN WITH IRRIGATION ON 4"
TOPSOIL

PERENNIAL RYE GRASS WITHOUT IRRIGATION
ON 4" TOPSOIL

ALL PLANTINGS AND LANDSCAPED BEDS REQUIRE IRRIGATION - EITHER
DRIP LINE OR MISTERS AS REQUIRED TO ESTABLISH GROWTH AND
MAINTAIN HEALTH OF ALL PLANTINGS/LANDSCAPED BEDS.

LANDSCAPING CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE FOR TOUCHING-UP AND

FINISH-LEVELING OF TOPSOIL AS NECESSARY TO ENSURE HYDROSEED
AND SOD ARE INSTALLED ON A SMOOTH AND LEVEL SURFACE FREE OF
CLUMPS, STICKS, HOLES, ETC.

L

0 30

™

1inch = 30 ft.

( PLANS PREPARED BY: )

N

AR ENGINEERING

CIVILENGINEERING & SURVEYING

MICHIGAN | INDIANA | ILLINOIS | OHIO
269.250.5991 PHONE | 866.569.0604 FAX

www.arengineeringlic.com

Mo
K
)

(LANDSCAPING CALCULATIONS

BUFFER YARD REQUIREMENTS

FRONT (ALONG ROW)
REQUIRED: 281 LF
1 CANOPY TREE PER 40 FT OF FRONTAGE
7 SHRUBS PER 40 FT OF FRONTAGE

THE PUBLIC ROW PARALLEL TO A MAJOR ARTERIAL STREET
PROVIDED:

281/40 = 7.025 = 7 CANOPY TREES

(329/40)*7 = 49.175 = 49 SHRUBS

SIDES
REQUIRED: 213 LF
10' MINIMUM WIDTH
1 CANOPY OR EVERGREEN TREE PER 40' ALONG PROPERTY LINE 213/40 = 5.325 = 5 TREES
5 SHRUBS PER 40' ALONG PROPERTY LINE (213/40) *5 = 26.625 = 27 SHRUBS
PROVIDED:
EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN

REAR
REQUIRED: 649 LF
10' MINIMUM WIDTH

5 SHRUBS PER 40' ALONG PROPERTY LINE (649/40) * 5 = 81.125 = 81 SHRUBS
PROVIDED:
EXISTING VEGETATION TO REMAIN

PARKING LOT LANDSCAPING
REQUIRED: 10-100 SPACES
1 CANOPY TREE PER 10 SPACES 34 SPACES/10 = 3.4 = 3 CANOPY TREES
100 SFT OF LANDSCAPED AREA PER 10 SPACES (34 SPACES/10)*100 = 340 SFT

PROVIDED:
6 CANOPY TREES
1,902 SFT

DEFINED AS THE AREA WITHIN 18' SURROUNDING THE PARKING LOT

DETENTION/RETENTION POND:
REQUIRED:

ELEVATION

9 SHRUBS PER 50' OF POND PERIMETER, AS MEASURED ALONG THE TOP OF THE BANK
ELEVATION

*REQUIRED LANDSCAPING SHALL BE PLANTED IN A RANDOM PATTERN, NOT LIMITED TO THE
TOP OF THE POND BANK

*WHERE NATURAL LANDSCAPE IS FOUND NOT TO BE PARTICULAR OR DESIRABLE, THE
PLANNING COMMISSION MAY REQUIRE SOME TYPE OF DECORATIVE FENCING.

3' HIGH BERM MAY BE REQUIRED IN ADDITION TO THE PLANT MATERIALS ALONG AND OUTSIDE

1 CANOPY OR EVERGREEN TREE PER 40' ALONG PROPERTY LINE 649/40 = 16.225 = 16 TREES

A MINIMUM OF 1/3 OF THE TREES SHALL BE PLACED ON THE INTERIOR OF THE PARKING AREA,

1 CANOPY TREE PER 50' OF POND PERIMETER, AS MEASURED ALONG THE TOP OF THE BANK

AAAAAA A AA XA

WOODLAND DRIVE (41' PRIVATE ROW)

Know what's helow.

Gall efore you dig.

DRAWN: ar
GHECKED: ASR
4 N
\_ Yy,
(
% | s
o
w| S :
E| g z
<|® :
Dg é
i -
2
1N
7| @
2|3 :
4 u
pd z
< £
1 5
[a x
w o
= £
@ g
gO\—N(‘O#é
& ['4
4 N
o
L
Z 0 » W
<E§O w =
J g £ >r
- -
D'ELIJ N =Z
B_JXZ e
T ZF
<%U) < o
Ofoes Al
O 5= =F
Z 2 20
EZD o N
' (ep)
)]
i 3 3
.. ¥ =
W 3 & wow
T x ] E E
kw o O c/)c/))
é JOB NUMBER )

2139006

DATE

09/18/2023
\ J

ALL UTILITIES AS SHOWN ARE APPROXIMATE LOCATIONS DERIVED
FROM ACTUAL MEASUREMENTS AND AVAILABLE RECORDS. THEY
SHOULD NOT BE INTERPRETED TO BE EXACT LOCATION NOR
SHOULD IT BE ASSUMED THAT THEY ARE THE ONLY UTILITIES IN THE
AREA. FIELD WORK PERFORMED BY: FISHBECK

“

SHEET NUMBER A

L1.0

S




PLANS PREPARED BY:

1inch = 30 ft.

\D

—
A \ 4

AR ENGINEERING

VL ENGENEERNEGRESLRVEY NG

ICHEGAN WEEA M

pww_arengineernglic.com

DRAWM:

CHECKED:

*T 1 e ——
! i S ey I | I\ I | | | I
W LA Wﬁo 0.0* 0.0 ‘0.0 ‘0.0 00 ‘0.1 04 01 ‘0.1 0.0 ‘0.0 00 00 ‘02 03 0.3 %03 ‘o 'd3 ‘03] 'd2 0.0 +1.0 +IF.O 00 00|00
— 00 00 00 00 00 0.1 01 04 0.1 01 0.0 00 0.0 0.0 00 0.4 o4 04 4 ‘da—a4 o3 o1 0.0 Joo oo ‘*o.o 0.0
+ + + + + + + + + o+ e L T e —— = o 1 L
00 '00 ‘00 00 p1 ‘01 01 01 01 02 00000 00 0006 06 06oW6 (06 04 01 00 PO 00 00 00
ok ——
‘00 "00 ‘01 01 b1 o1 o1 02 ‘02 ‘03 2.2 i 0.6 _/ */% "0l 11 Ay Lo o8 02 +1).0 .0 0.0 0.0 +°-°L_A_A.M L
- a
| |
00 01 01 01 Q1 ‘0.1 02 ‘02 ‘02 ‘04 28 18 19 ERGEV IR R *1.9‘ w7 16 T04 00 P00 —o0—00
| A 5 ; o \
00 01 ‘01 01 42 02 '03 03 037 07 29 20 +1. +1. "17]22 26 E.s 27 07 40 a,ln 00 0.0 00 m :
ol 1 [
5 A, . — S . =z
0.0~ 01 o1 <%0 1. 24 e 1.2 +-1-&*2.0 26 '32|{37 37 10 ‘00 'dp 00 ‘00 ‘0.0 o B
0.1 01 ‘02 46 41 1 ‘do ‘b ‘00 0.0 00 <|2 :
) Ol a 2
0.1 0.2 03 59 44 09 ‘oo &P 00 ‘00 00 - £
| I
o A E-
01 02 03 6*4.5 !1.@ ‘0o ‘op 00 ‘0.0 00 £
). ) 5
01 02 03 45 13 op ‘ob ‘00 ‘00 ‘00 g
01 02 03 49 a7 [W3 00 e 00 0.0 0.0 E
_ ] J & £
‘0.1 02 03 47 "a3 14 T0.0 0§ T0.0 0.0 00 O g
— — Q) L =
01 f02 03 ‘45 41 16 0.0 ‘of 00 ‘00 00 T g
— > £
01 02 03 45 40/[44 "od ‘e 0.0 ‘00 0.0 A g
01 02 ‘0.2 a5 44 Ho| 00 +o 0.0 0.0 0.0 " 4 s
VAR * O L TR
‘01 02 0.2 50 4.9 W6 0.1 0l 0.0 T0.0 T0.0 Z 5 Z0
N T =3 = O
+ + + + + +41., |+ A0+ + + < z L O
01 '02 ‘03 56 58 ff3 |'0.2| &) 00 0.0 ‘00 s ; w3
— - o (&)
7 -
+ + + + + +
01 02 03 56 6.0 4B 2 wZ
= . S 2 > 4
01 f02 04 49 52 "4k Z2| 7N T E H X
— | \ [ a 1
e 01 02 ‘04 40 O Y Q
1. =
‘04 02 ‘04 07 haloe pa™Ys 57 514 a9 43 a2 44 ‘49 N\ 9 0 B3 34 33
| . l——————
| 0.1 02 "04\'06 {1 {2.2 0 o 50 46 [45 41 40 43 48 16 1.6 +1*,%‘.1..2 +1.1\*1.2 23 27 124 24//p6 23 "9
| ‘ - .
01 02 03 05 0% [12 ™AL 37 37 38738 38 41 A5 M 56 61 63 61 56 4.9%g = 949491920 20 2.1 2.2\ 22 21 +1.91-j!1-.7 20 %5 31 32 22206 "15 14 10
- .
+ + + + + | + + + + + + + + + + + + + = - : ; = = : ‘ | T
; 25 2608 bg—os—or—uprs 5 25 3a—po—a 0 09 08 0.
%C”IWB{E”E?’S \ 01 02 02 04\ 0708 W2 26 28 30 32\ 34 36 39(4 . A4 FT—42.37 33 28 2 26> >6 PR ﬁ_ﬂ 0 09 08 /05
Lghting ,-{OW %08 20 23 25 J27 3% 38 N4 g— T o 3.? 28 25 |27 \*2.9 31 37 43 ‘a5 41%TB 34 +\z.9 5 28 84 42 /48 58 552907 05 05 03
| 01 01 o W15 18 20 22 26 50 32 34 ‘34 34—s4—35 3332 30 ‘glg *2.& 24 23 b6 33 38 45 56 60 523 36 +22.8 23 28 /41 ‘g5 72 83 87 '57) 04 04 03 0.2 7P 8 "
' 0.1 M4 Tta~l15 18 21 24 27 08272625 25 04 22 22 *_2_.1.:2_3__*20\49—12.3 ‘st 7043 43 428 35 27 20 26 41 o 79 87 '89-°75 02 62702 ‘o0 ﬂ Qo f_ﬁ' =
Schedule 07 10 11 13 1.6 19 2U—e4—to—t7T—T6 15 14 13 13 13 13 12 11 2 15 18 10 14Wg "0 "07"07 07 11 B2 "41\[66 89 ‘87 [84 2 '02 "01 01 o E = ?E} o
o Number  Lamp Input B Y .
Symbol Label Image QTY Manufacturer Catalog Description Lamps Output LLF P Polar Plot + 4 + + n 4 + + + + + 4 4 + + + ¥ + 4 4 + + 4 + + + + + 4 4 " + + —_ LLI D Z
P Fyv— . u e ——_ 08_0.1,01 01 Pp1 02 0507 08 09 12 1314 13 1.0 '09 0707 06 06 0606 0605 p4 03 02 01 01 01 00 '01 01 0307 16 33465 757+ {6586 01 01 01 00 Q U!-l Z AcC
T4!VI Performanc_e Package 5000K CCT 70 CRI A M - . - S —_— - m f Z I:
25" MOUNTING HEIGHT | Type 4 Medum ‘0.0 '00 ‘01 01 81 01 _03 04 05 07 0708 08680605 05 04 03 03 02 03 03 03 03 §3 02 02 01 01 01 '0.0_'00 00,00 01 0263 = Ws <
@ A == R +_ + _+ + + + + + + + + + 4 + e b R + =ﬁnf+ + + + + + + + + + + | + + + + T + + + U Su + (W] E od al E
00 0.0 00 01 41 01 02 03, 03 QA —Obunsdbm 05 —gmFrgr— 03 0.3 02 02 01 01 01 01 01 02 02 01 01 01 01 00 00 00 00 00 00 00 01 Jo.1 01 01 04 01 00 00 00 00 00—00 00 00 00 ,,_,—/“:,: s I 8z
e ’ ] e . W L
Maz: 29004cd n - : - - T T + + + + + + + + + T + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + + - + + + + + + + + + + T L (@] 9
ey e - : o oe s T 00 00 00 01 01 01 02 02 02 03 03 03 02 02 02 02 0 04 0.1 04 01 0.4 04 01 ‘0.1 04 01 04 00 00 0.0 00 00 0.0 00 00 fo1 01 0.1 0.0 00 0.01007 00 0.0 0.0 W.o 0- 1 O o5 = =
BLC4 Performance Package 5000K CCT 70 CRI - e e /T T T e I— D'_" u
25' MOUNTING HEIGHT |Type 4 Extreme Backlight Control —_— = T T e —_— O |.|.| G — Lu
2 | . WOODLAND DRIVE (41' PRIVATE ROW) — Tz 39
D = - - — o’ A
i o
: Plan View Q
Max: 25276cd _ - Scale - 1" = 30ft
1 Lithonia Lighting DSX2 LED P4 50K 70CRI | D-Series Size 2 Area Luminaire P4 1 37302 0.95 545.3
T5M Performance Package 5000K CCT 70 CRI
25' MOUNTING HEIGHT |Type 5 Medium
. _
X c S
Max: Z0463cd
1 Lithonia Lighting DSX2 LED P4 50K 70CRI | D-Series Size 2 Area Luminaire P4 1 26218 0.95 272.65
LCCO Performance Package 5000K CCT 70 CRI
25' MOUNTING HEIGHT | Left Corner Cutoff Extreme Backlight i
X D Control Note H E %
- > = . r
1. FC GRID 10' X 10° b : g
Max: 40591cd ; é % |-||_J E
1 Lithonia Lighting DSX2 LED P4 50K 70CRI | D-Series Size 2 Area Luminaire P4 1 37302 0.95 272.65 k o o (5] w W
T5M Performance Package 5000K CCT 70 CRI
25' MOUNTING HEIGHT |Type 5 Medium
X E m
JOB NUMBER
Max: Z0463cd
1 Lithonia Lighting WDGE1 LED P2 50K WDGE1 LED WITH P2 - PERFORMANCE 1 1995 0.95 15.0178 21 390 06
80CRI VW PACKAGE, 5000K, 80CRI, VISUAL
8' MOUNTING HEIGHT COMFORT WIDE OPTIC
X |wP1 % DATE
Max: 1504cd 1 2/0 9/2 022 Designer
6 Lithonia Lighting WDGE?2 LED P4 50K WDGE2 LED WITH P4 - PERFORMANCE 1 4774 0.95 46.6589
70CRI T4M PACKAGE, 5000K, 70CRI, TYPE 4 MEDIUM Date
10' MOUNTING HEIGHT | OPTIC 09/25/2023
>< | WP2 AT Scale
SHEET NUMBER Not to Scale
Max: 2916cd Drawing No.

L2 . O Summary
1of1




STAFF REPORT: October 16, 2023

PREPARED FOR: Kentwood Planning Commission
PREPARED BY: Joe Pung
CASE NO.: 28-23 DAMA Ventures, LLC

GENERAL INFORMATION

APPLICANT: DAMA Ventures, LLC
276 Honey Creek Avenue, SE
Ada, MI 49301

STATUS OF

APPLICANT: Property Owner

REQUESTED ACTION: Special land use and site plan review for indoor vehicle sales in an
industrial district.

EXISTING ZONING OF
SUBJECT PARCEL.: I-1 Light Industrial

GENERAL LOCATION: 3350 Broadmoor Avenue

PARCEL SIZE: 3.04 acres
EXISTING LAND USE
ON THE PARCEL.: Vacant Building (former Spectrum Urgent Care Facility)
ADJACENT AREA
LAND USES: N: Office
S: Industrial
E: Railroad Line
W: Broadmoor Avenue ROW

ZONING ON ADJOINING
PARCELS: I-1 Light Industrial
I-1 Light Industrial
I-1 Light Industrial

- 1-1 Light Industrial

sm®PZ



Staff Report
Case No.: 22-23
Page 2

Compatibility With Master Plan

The Master Plan recommendation is for industrial development in this area. The proposed indoor
vehicle sales business is a special land use in industrial districts and would therefore be consistent
with the Master Plan recommendation.

Zoning History

The property is currently zoned 11 Light Industrial and has been since at least 1976.

Relevant Zoning Ordinance Sections

Indoor vehicle sales are a special land use in the I-1 Light Industrial district (Zoning Ordinance
Section 10.02). Section 13.04 requires Planning Commission review and approval of special land
uses. Section 15.02 outlines the general approval standards for special land uses. Section 13.09
outlines the general review standards. Section 14.05 outlines the site plan review standards.
Section 15.04.HH lists the site design standards for indoor vehicle sales.

SITE INFORMATION

Site Characteristics

The parcel is 3.04 acres in area. The existing 15,317 square foot building was constructed in 1999
for Spectrum Health Occupational Services and Rehabilitation Service facility and was later used
as an urgent care clinic.

Traffic & Circulation

The property has one (1) curb cut onto Broadmoor Avenue that is intended for egress only. Access
to the site if from the adjacent property to the south.

Parking

The Zoning Ordinance does not identify minimum parking requirements for indoor vehicle sales
in industrial districts. The site plan depicts sixty-one (61) parking spaces. The minimum required
parking for office use of the building is fifty-one (51) spaces. Based on the description of the
operation, the parking currently provided on-site should be sufficient.

Engineering

The development will have to meet all applicable Engineering Department regulations.



Staff Report
Case No.: 22-23

Page 3

Fire

The development will have to meet all applicable Fire Department regulations.

Staff Comments

1)

2)

3)

4)

In June of 2012 the City amended the zoning ordinance to remove the option to request use
variances from the Zoning Board of Appeals. In conjunction with amending the ordinance
to remove the option to request use variances, staff reviewed the history of use variance
requests and made recommendations to amend use allowances based on that research.

One recommendation was to permit limited indoor vehicle sales in industrial districts as a
special land use and specify specific site design criteria for the use. The City approved the
amendment to allow for indoor vehicle sales in industrial districts in June of 2012.

The vehicle sales operation would occupy 3,984 square feet of the existing 15,317 square
foot building. The maximum capacity of the sales area would be eight (8) vehicles.

In 2003 the Zoning Board of Appeals granted a variance for an increase in sign area of
thirty (30) square feet and to allow for a sign base of four (4) feet. The variance was
conditioned on only being allowed for urgent care use and if the use were to be discontinued
the sign must conform to the standard ordinance requirements.

Section 15.02 of the Zoning Ordinance (Special Approval Standards) states that the
Planning Commission must determine that the proposed special land use and its location
meet the following standards:

A. Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance, with the existing or intended character of the general
vicinity and that such a use will not change the essential character of the area in
which it is proposed.

The site is developed, and the only exterior changes related to the indoor
vehicle sales that are proposed are the addition of an overhead door and
entrance door to the east side of the building and the removed of two (2)
parking spaces to accommodate the new overhead door access. Use of the
property would continue to be industrial in nature.

B. Be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such as highways,
streets, police, fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and
sewage facilities or schools.

The site is adequately served by essential public services.



Staff Report

Case No.: 22-23

Page 4
C.

G.

Not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and
services.

The proposed use is not anticipated to create additional requirements for
public facilities and services at public cost.

Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials and equipment or conditions of
operation that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare
by reason of excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare or odors.

The proposed use is not anticipated to create excessive traffic, noise, smoke,
fumes, or odors that will be detrimental.

Be consistent with the intent and purpose of the zoning district in which it is
proposed to locate such use.

The proposed use is a special land use within the zoning district and as such
can be considered consistent with the zoning and the Master Plan
recommendation for industrial development.

Be subject to stipulations by the Planning Commission of additional conditions and
safeguards deemed necessary for the general welfare, for the protection of
individual property rights and for insuring that the intent and objectives of the
Zoning Ordinance will be observed. The breach of any condition, safeguard or
requirement shall automatically invalidate the granting of the Special Land Use.

Comply with all applicable licensing ordinances.

5) Section 15.04.HH lists the following specific requirements that apply to indoor vehicle
sales in an industrial district. The requirements are:

A

All activity to occur within the enclosed building.

The applicant has indicated all vehicle sales would occur within the showroom.
No open-air display or storage of inventory.

There will be no open-air display or storage of vehicles.

No vehicle repair or maintenance to occur on-site.

No vehicle repair or maintenance will occur on-site.

Vehicle display and/or storage area limited to 5,000 square feet.

The vehicle showroom and supporting storage areas would occupy 3,984
square feet of the building.



Staff Report
Case No.: 22-23
Page 5

Exhibit 1: Project Location (20120 Aerial Photo)

Exhibit 2: April 2023 Pictometry Photo (View from the South)

&




Staff Report
Case No.: 22-23
Page 6

Exhibit 3: April 2023 Pictometry Photo (View from the West)




Staff Report
Case No.: 22-23
Page 7

Exhibit 5: May 2023 Pictometry Photo (View from the North)

Exhibit 6: East (rear) Elevation of Existing Building




Staff Report
Case No.: 22-23
Page 8

Exhibit 7: Existing Dumpster Enclsoure in Need of Repair or Replacement




KENTWOOD FIRE DEPARTMENT Station 1: 616-554-0800
4775 Walma Ave., SE Station 2: 616-949-1780
Kentwood, M|l 49508 Station 3: 616-534-7117

KENTWOOD PLAN REVIEW

Fire Department Information

Occupant ID: 24414 Inspection Date: 10/16/2023
Inspected By: QUICK, PATRICK

Facility Information

Occupant Name: SBS TRANSPORT

Business Address: 3350 BROADMOOR Avenue
Southeast

Inspection Information

Inspection Type: SITE PLAN ONLY
Inspection Notes: Site plan review for change of use for site. Plans approved as submitted.
Fire Code Reference

Description Comments

Approved vehicle access for fire fighting shall be provided to all
construction or demolition sites prior to and during the time of
construction. Access road(s) (20 feet wide, designed and maintained
to support a vehicle weighing 20 tons on a single axle with dual wheels
and standard road tires) shall be constructed as required. This road
may be gravel, but vehicle access must be maintained and

unobstructed at all times. (IFC 501.4, 503.1.1, 503.2.3, 503.4, 3310.1)

Provide fire lane(s) on the side(s) of the building. Current fire lanes are sufficient. If building
Each side of the building where a fire lane is required must have an footprint changes, changes to fire lanes may be
entrance as close to the middle as possible. The fire lane must be a required.

minimum of 10 feet and a maximum of 30 feet from the building, and
within 100 feet of all fire department connections. (IFC 503.1.1)

“No Parking — Fire Lane” signs shall be placed no closer than 25 feet
apart or further than 75 feet apart. (IFC 503.1.1) The bottom of the
sign must be 6’4" from grade level.

Install inch Arabic numerals on the front of the building in a 4 inch address number facing the street required.
color that contrasts with the immediate background on which the

numerals are mounted and that will be readily visible during normal

daylight. (IFC 505.1 - 505.1.7)

Required means of egress shall be maintained during construction and
demolition, remodeling or alterations and additions to any building.
(IFC 3311.2)

An approved automatic sprinkler system shall be provided Sprinkler system to be maintained.
throughout the entire building or

in specific portion(s)/area(s) identified by the Fire Marshal in

accordance with the code. (IFC 903; NFPA 13)

Signatures
First Name Last Name Signature Date
Pat Quick 10/16/2023

Page 1 of 1



Received) 10-03-2033

City of Kentwood Planning Commissioners,

| am the owner of the building located at 3350 Broadmoor Avenue SE. This is the site of the
former Spectrum Health Services clinic. At this time, | am considering a small renovation which
will allow me to provide indoor vehicle sales in the northeast portion of the building. The small
sales area (which will only accommodate 8 cars at full capacity) will focus on the resale of used
vehicles via internet sales with standard working hours Monday through Friday from 9am to
5pm.

In discussions with the Kentwood Planner, | learned that indoor vehicle sales is only allowable
in this zoning district when approved by the Planning Commission as a Special Land Use. |
have had drawings prepared by my Architect to clearly demonstrate the intent of this business.
I’m also providing this narrative to clarify the limited impacts of the proposed use.

Per City of Kentwood Zoning Ordinance 15.02, The proposed special land use and its location
shall:

A. Be designed, constructed, operated and maintained so as to be harmonious and
appropriate in appearance, with the existing or intended character of the general vicinity
and that a use will not change the essential character of the area in which it is proposed.

Response: The proposed addition of the indoor vehicle showroom shall be compatible

and harmonious with the general vicinity. The use is a low impact operation which will

not detract from the character of the area.

B. Be served adequately by essential public facilities and services such as highways, streets,
police and fire protection, drainage structures, refuse disposal, water and sewage facilities
or schools.

Response: The existing building is adequately served by public facilities. The proposed

indoor vehicle sales activities shall not have any detrimental affect on those existing

facilities.

C. Not create excessive additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and
services.

Response: The proposed indoor vehicle sales use shall not create any excessive

additional requirements at public cost for public facilities and services.

D. Not involve uses, activities, processes, materials, and equipment or conditions of operation
that will be detrimental to any persons, property, or the general welfare by reason of
excessive production of traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, electrical or electromagnetic
interference or odors.

Response: The proposed indoor vehicle sales use is a low impact operation which will

not negatively affect the surrounding area. Other than the limited traffic created by staff

and customers visiting the site, no other activities will occur on-site which would result in
excessive traffic, noise, smoke, fumes, glare, electrical or electromagnetic interference
or odors.

E. Be compatible and in accordance with the goals, objectives and policies of the master plan

and promote the intent and purpose of the zoning district in which it is proposed to locate.
Response: The proposed indoor vehicle sales shall be compatible with the Kentwood
master plan and support the purpose and intent of the overlaying zoning district.



F. Be subject to stipulations by the Planning Commission of additional conditions and
safeguards deemed necessary for the general welfare, for the protection of individual
property rights, and for insuring that the intent and objectives of this ordinance will be
observed. The breach of any condition, safeguard, or requirement shall automatically
invalidate the granting of the special land use.

Response: The proposed indoor vehicle sales shall be subject to the conditions of the
Kentwood Planning Commission which they deem necessary.

G. Comply with all applicable licensing ordinances.

Response: The proposed indoor vehicle sales will comply with all applicable licensing
ordinances.

In addition, per City of Kentwood Zoning Ordinance 15.04, The following subparagraph
identifies specific requirements that shall be complied with by the individual special land use:

HH. Indoor vehicle sales in industrial.

1. All activities to occur within the enclosed building.

Response: All the proposed vehicle sales shall occur within the showroom. No outdoor
sales of vehicles is proposed.

2. No open-air display or storage of inventory.
Response: No open-air display or storage of inventory is proposed.

3. No vehicle repair or maintenance to occur on-site.

Response: There are no vehicle repair or maintenance activities proposed to occur on-
site.

4. Vehicle display and/or storage area limited to 5,000 sqft.
Response: The vehicle showroom and supporting storage rooms are 3,984 sqft.

Thank you for your time and consideration of this exciting business venture.

Sincerely,

Marko Franovic

Enclosures:

-Special Land Use Application
-Application Fee

-15 copies of drawings (24”x36”)



b/

A

ARCHITECTURE

523 Ada Drive SE, Suite 200
PO Box 404
Ada, Mi 49301
p. (616) 682-4570

www.dixonarch.com

. ) L. . - AT AT e T . . : . ’ ’ .

. ..~.__. _.' -~ ~ . \? \\w.“‘—' * “—..‘"%.__,.‘ e~ 2 . T "%-q... .",,_ ' - : .——N.,._N‘YO’/' — A ST .
' P - o 6504 28th Street Southeast Suite )
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49546
p. (616) 777-1844

- B E . : . = i — . o s e . T ‘.. 2 .
.v’_——‘w ‘mb‘.\ . . ‘-. "V.S\N——'«—.—"" o '706"" —————. ’ ’ GI‘S L’b{E

. con T 2
..,..:'-.,-;——»*--".“*""‘-'6'34;76. |

https://sbstransportiic.com

DCl

DYKHOUSE CONSTRUCTION INC

PHONE 510872 0184 Fax 816 872 0740

www.DykhouseConstruction.co

o

Y23 AYYLINYS |, pZ |

A
AL f‘u \

Q.

p 34
p—
..

£L'(.:Z$

-y

=
Y

e M, -}-',}f:w- %

«sar\*;:.

Existing
Building

s Ui,

-

~Q.
=l

WA

‘ .
»n . .
| .
7 - .
, |

Grand Rapids, Michigan

Proposed Site Plan

-

3350 Broadmoor Avenue SE

DAMA Ventures SLU

ce e

KA AIR Y Vo]

.
SEEIEN GIEXD SOMRP CINLIP GREIS YFAND ATy O,
5 . o
. . . L . ‘. .
. e s . :_ .
ol .. e '. .

- b - e . e . . PN
- t . e - N . LI . ., . .. L e PR -
N SN . . . . . . L . . .
.b
. $. . . R '. ' . . .
L. . . . . . . . . . . . . M N
0 ' * . . Lt . . . : ‘L . * LY . . . » . .
] . N - .7 < . .. . "
- o mmmmmmLOA mvumm“mmmw N . e .
R : . . . .. AR . T . N - L ] . . . . . . .
., . . . . O . . . ' . :
£ . T, . . . . . .« o, . .. .’ .

e TR RS LS 8
» . .. .
. »

NYINSILYM ;;9';\'\‘;.. R T

. RN SN "‘. N".'\" . ‘ga";:’- '
™ NDEPDRNXJI o} I:’
:‘-f,f';f [ 1 : :} / \’ PARKING Revisions:
S M Bt L e : Bid Set: 06/20/23
SLU Submit: 9/26/23

. e

.- A A e

: ""-:b.: . i

Vr )0/ »3' J ISP o
.... /0;‘*-”‘ M‘:-": *‘A"l“~ Ay

PROP: 288 —-18"
C SOUAT- 0,33

p- 'M' aﬂ-:tui......ﬁ“‘“" ”aa’-"

ae . L. - -~ p J »
. .
- - BN . . ’
g - -
- - . ’
. L AR R RN 7Tt -’
o ) A . ey e e R
- - teeT 4 A
' 4 R R A R ~ 7
Lo - R R SR S L. D - 1,
. ',' . s L LRI Pt . S
RN 2, e PRl SES .
A i TN, . .
B . -

Project No: __223008

Issue Date: 9/26/23

4 .n-‘.aan ' . w
U; L
. \::-, ) / e Reviewer: KCD
B D Drawn By: KCD

A1.1

" "."/,"7 |
| ExTerd

I o d e

§ .. ..
0
m@

T L e s'(No SUBbASE
LS THRU ISLAND

223008 A11 A20 A21 A31 A32 A41 Plans SB27/23, 1:57 PM

©2023 Dixon Environmental Architecture, Inc.



i /f \\‘ //’“\\
{9y §
General Notes | (D
L | | ;
1. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. ALL NON-LOAD BEARING INTERIOR PARTITION WALLS SHALL BE % | /
CONSTRUCTED OF STEEL STUDS W/ SOUND ATTENUATION BATTS AND 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD EACH SIDE. i ' (
PROVIDE GYPSUM BOARD CONTROL JOINTS @ 30™-0" O.C. I !
REFER TO WALL TYPES AND EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS FOR ALL EXTERIOR WALL MATERIALS. I ‘
3. ALL WOOD FRAMING THAT COMES IN CONTACT WITH DISSIMILAR MATERIAL SHALL BE TREATED TO RESIST | — = — — S~
DECAY AND/OR HAVE A BARRIER TO PREVENT MOISTURE TRANSMISSION. _ e e | - - 7.1
S N
4. ALL METAL TO METAL CONNECTIONS SHALL BE SUCH AS TO AVOID DISSIMILAR METAL GALVANIC <
CORROSION.
5. FLOOR DRAINS, UNLESS REQUIRED OTHERWISE, SET ALL FLOOR DRAINS 1/2" BELOW FLOOR LINE AND H
PITCH FROM 24" RADIUS !
6. UNLESS INDICATED OTHERWISE, FLOOR MATERIAL CHANGES SHALL OCCUR BENEATH DOORS OR o ARCHITECTURE
7. GYPSUM BOARD PARTITION SYSTEMS: o ; 523 Adapgrg’s sibi“'te 200
A) EXTEND STUDS ABOVE CEILINGS TO BOTTOM OF STRUCTURE AND ANCHOR FIRMLY, z /HE X
USING SAME STUD SIZE AND SPACING. < Ada, Ml 49301
B) STUDS SHALL BE SPACED AT 16" O.C. UNLESS NOTED OTHERWISE. < p. (616) 6824570
C) GYPSUM BOARD SHALL EXTEND TO STRUCTURE OR RATED ASSEMBLY. s g —
D) ALL INTERIOR STUD PARTITIONS SHALL HAVE GYPSUM BOARD ON EACH SIDE. I | - - AR - - - 6.3 www.dixonarch.com
E) WHERE SOUND BATT INSULATION IS REQUIRED PROVIDE UNFACED NOISE BARRIER BATT — Z TR ’ :
INSULATION TO FRICTION FIT IN STUD PARTITION FROM FLOOR TO UNDERSIDE OF STRUCTURE. 4
8. WHERE OPENINGS IN INTERIOR PARTITIONS OCCUR (INCLUDING DOORS AND WINDOWS), CONSTRUCTON ’ Ci office #1 ‘N
ABOVE OPENINGS SHALL MATCH ADJACENT CONSTRUCTION IN FINISH AND FIRE RATING. | 481 N
9. PROVIDE DEFLECTION TRACK OR SIMILAR ASSEMBLY THAT WILL ALLOW FOR MINIMUM 1" DEFLECTION AT Y ! i |
TOP OF ALL INTERIOR STUD WALLS THAT EXTEND TO THE STRUCTURE. N :
CREDARD ' ' 504 28
CREZED A ) ; % S 6504 28th Street Southeast Suite |
Wall Types Legend Tl T | | @ S Grand Rapids, Michigan 49546
1. ; . p. (616) 777-1844
N . : ! ?
FIRE RESISTANCE RATING WALL INSULATION . e N
- NONE A SOUND ATTENUATION ©- e PROP oAﬁaE:?gaﬁsﬁT odel A ! - hetps://sbstransportlic.com
1 1 HOUR T THERMAL | ieens : -3, 5
2 2HOUR - NONE . T - |
2 2 nggg >A A | Vehicle Showroom |
l"" X WALL STUD & FINISH HEIGHT — | ? 150
WALL COMPOSITION E EXTERIOR, SEE SECTIONS . ’ '
NUMBER -EXTERIOR WALL TYPE X SHAFT, SEE SECTIONS e - £73 ]
LETTER -INTERIOR WALL TYPE S BOTTOM OF STRUCTURE - —l - ¥ - - ——— S e - - 53
c EXTEND 6" ABOVE CEILING ywy Work Rm} A
STUD SIZE O  OTHER, SEE WALL TYPE : 315 152 |
1 1 5/8" METAL STUD #  TOP OF WALL IN INCHES : é
2 2 1/2" METAL STUD R UNDERSIDE OF ROOF DECK ; ‘ i :
3 35/8» METAL STUD Mg k - DYKHOUSE CONSTRUCTION |NC
4 4" METAL STUD CONCRETE WALL THICKNESS } s iR e
5 2x4 WOOD STUD A 4" NOMINAL BLOCK/ 4" CONC — e ;
6 6" METAL STUD B 6" NOMINAL BLOCK/ 6" CONC P i
7 2x6 WOOD STUD Cc 8" NOMINAL BLOCK/ 8" CONC /e f
8 2x8 WOOD STUD D 10" NOMINAL BLOCK/ 10" CONC e ;
9 2x10 WOOD STUD E 12" NOMINAL BLOCK/ 12" CONC N ! © www DykhouseConstruction.com
o OTHER: SEE WALL TYPES F 14" REINFORCED CONCRETE /7 , B -
. (TN ~ . <
N Storage 7 . i &
::s 3 1!53 \\:\‘\v ~ . / £
{2 N
Wall Types nrerior - penotep wim LETTERS) Floor Plan Key Notes ot ai keynotes appear on each ficor pian) - N\ %
ARIE (0 NOT USED \/ i
WALLTAGS" @) NOT USED o | e——— e , I 7| R i 7:\;
” N
T () NOTUSED \ i
,
\ EXISTING STRUCTURAL COLUMNS, VERIFY STRUCTURAL SIZING AND LOCATIONS IN FIELD. ALL : ; : : s e
T——>5/8" GYPSUM BOARD - @ STRUCTURAL ITEMS TO BE RETAINED DURING ALL STAGES OF DEMOLITION AND CONSTRUCTION. N | 1 . 7 E
MOISTURE RESISTANT AT _ , i _ !
WET WALLS OF RESTROOMS. @ NOT USED i i O Ly, .- g ] . 1904 i
Ex Mens Lockers L J e 156 =
H—METAL STUD FRAMING (3-5/8" (®) DEMO EXISTING WALL TO PROVIDE ACCESS FOR NEW DOORWAY, DEMOLITION SHALL ONLY BE IN 154 Ex Wmns Lockers - H L61S e B 5 : -
I TYPICAL, REFER TO WALL THE EXTENTS AS NEEDED FOR THE NEW DOOR AND SHALL MAINTAIN THE SAME FINISH AS ) ne | _— = | 2
{  TAGS) - FILL CAVITY W/ PREVIOUSLY CONSTRUCTION WHEN FINISHED. , : ~ I | | )
i SOUND ATTENUATION BATT o K S T ; S N R 1 _ 7 W —
INSULATION WHERE NOTED. (D) NOT USED 3 ! A | o 9N n.
| , T b So=m / o - © S
I3 ; | : ) e - = .
- 5/8" GYPSUM BOARD - NOT USED p—rt - n : e m— . ——+ = iy A g 2 8
MOISTURE RESISTANT AT @) NoTusED . : ® Dss O
WET WALLS OF RESTROOMS. > | T N S8 o
{9 DEMO EXISTING DOOR AND DOOR FRAME AND INFILL VOID WITH STUD FRAMING AND FINISH AS : U TEX N < S
A APPLICABLE TO PROVIDE SMOOTH TRANSITION FROM EXISTING TO INFILL. : I8 © 5a W
v L i ]
INT.  _INT. @ wor useo [ ‘ g S o]
{2 CONFIRM EXISTING PLUMBING FIXTURES MEET ADA CLEARANCE DIMENSIONS; REFER TO ¥ | S 5? o
TYPICAL NON FIRE RATED ENLARGED RESTROOM PLANS. > B . | o > ©
INTERIOR PARTITION WALL; SEE - : = ] e - - (B) Sv O
WALL TAG FOR STUD SIZING 1 e : = T T Ty = q Q@ S 3
i y . \4 \Q /\ 8 L
| = o
| ™ O
VARIES AR ,
e FUTURE Remodel B S &
Ao - TO WORK PROPOSED .
- ‘ Area: 2,075 Sq ft i L
He TWO LAYERS OF 5/8" a 1
GYPSUM BOARD - MOISTURE L]
RESISTANT AT WET WALLS
OF RESTROOMS.
RESILIENT CHANNEL PER UL . 5
DESIGN U453 , >
| 0
H—METAL STUD FRAMING (3-5/8" | 4.1
TYPICAL, REFER TO WALL .
TAGS) - FILL CAVITY W/ L
SOUND ATTENUATION BATT '
INSULATION. , g
—5/8" GYPSUM BOARD - o
MOISTURE RESISTANT AT .
WET WALLS OF RESTROOMS. B
| B SN A Revisions:
INT. INT. == e e ‘ ! e A S S M Bid Set: 06/20/23
TYPICAL NON-RATED ACOUSTICAL ' N [y ; BN it
(B) INTERIOR PARTITION WaLL (SEE ENLARGED N : | E) SLU Submit: 9/26/23
PLAN FOR LOCATIONS) UL DESIGN U453, i | .
ASSEMBLY TO REACH STC OF 55 MIN; STUD N . |
SIZE PER WALL TAG. T .
v i o b
oL ’ ; i L i
L .
L Project No: _ 223008
T
Y Issue Date: _ 9/26/23
i | ‘: .
e S —— e T L R B S e T R Reviewer: KCD
— | =it e e e EE} f T e — B I B - i»_i >*m“\\i/'
T o AN Drawn By: LPW/KCD
H kY 7 y
_________________________________ e o U e ol i Il S P - 1 i | e
15-0 2-0" 20 50" 2-0"1 3.0 20 ] S T L - -
722 j Ny
e SN SN AN FEN AN A 7S IIN AN
(9) (8)(7)(8) (5) (4 (3 (2 AT
S NN “E/f N AN AN ‘\J/' “1;1/"

N
1. Proposed Main Floor Plan WALL DESIGNATION (Reproduce in Color) A 2 " 1

SCALE: 3/16" = 1"-0" [y | | — —
IMPROVEMENT FLR AREA: 2,137 SQ FT o > @ g NEW PROPOSED WALLS STRUCTURAL ITEMS EXISTING MASONRY WALLS

223008 A11 A20 A21 A31 A32 A41 Plans SLU  9/27/23, 1:57 PM

a)y

©2023 Dixon Environmental Architecture, Inc.



ARCHITECTURE

523 Ada Drive SE, Suite 200
PO Box 404
Ada, MI 49301
p- (616) 682-4570

www.dixonarch.com

6504 28th Street Southeast Suite |
Grand Rapids, Michigan 49546
p- (616) 777-1844

https://sbstransportlic.com

DCi

DYKHOUSE CONSTRUCTION INC

NN //‘\‘ /,\\ ; /\_\’ N /‘""\\\ AT www.DykhouseConstruction.com
OlG 20 B A 83
' .
k\\ 2 o | |
I § !
! ,
| i ]
+117'-10" ELEV. ! ‘ ‘
T.0. ROOF ‘ : ‘
% Z
7 % 7 /)]
// % g
4 % 7
+110-10" ELEV. - = =
T T.0. CANOPY ¢ Z 7 S
4 7z 7z q g
7 7 W
% 7 7 No. o
7 7 0w sS '-T.l
, , , D S
O ) SI= 0O
% z /% w s g
A Z : g g w
4 % 7 QDS =
+100-0" ELEV. N RC X
— FLOOR FINISH $ ! ! | S o lu
b P P | | ¢ QS
K B 3 | ‘ 86 O
I L S————— oS — . — S — S — S50 3
:._.L_}._-_: ____________________________ S P L-,-{-—------_--—--—--------—-—--—--—--—————§ ------------------------------------ b e e e e ™
' ] -g ! P H i < m
! i P . Q °
- . . o
2. East Elevation Exterior Materials Legend (ALL SELECTIONS TO BE CONSIDERED "BASIS OF DESIGN") [
SCALE: 3/16" = 1'-0" Moo LABEL MATERIAL MANUFACTURER|STYLE COLOR Q
0' 2! 4! 8'
ALUMINUM STOREFRONT SYSTEM TUBELITE OR EQ.{TBD BLACK FOR PRICING 4 Made in
GLASS OVERHEAD DOOR TBD TBD BLACK FOR PRICING ‘ Michigan
Revisions:

Bid Set: 06/20/23
SLU Submit: 9/26/23

Project No: __ 223008
Issue Date: 9/26/23

Reviewer: KCD

Drawn By: LPW/KCD

A4.1

223008 A11 A20 A21 A31 A32 A41 Plans SLU

©2023 Dixon Environmental Architecture, Inc.



	Agenda
	Minutes
	Case 17-23 Findings of Fact
	Case 24-23 Recommendation
	Case 26-23 Recommnedation
	Case 26-23 Site Plan
	Case 27-23 slu recc
	Case 27-23 Business Narrative
	Case 27-23sp
	Case 27-23 Civil Site Plans
	Sheets and Views
	T1.0 Title Sheet
	C0.0 Overall Site Plan
	C1.0 Existing Conditions
	C1.1 Demolition Plan
	C2.0 Site Layout
	C3.0 Utility Plan
	C4.0 Grading & SESC Plan
	C5.0 Details
	L1.0 Landscape Plan
	L2.0 Photometric Plan


	Case 28-23 Staff Report
	Case 28-23 Fire Review
	Case 28-23 Description
	Case 28-23 Site Plan
	Image_20231010_0001
	Image_20231016_0001
	Image_20231016_0002


